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Renze Harvest International Limited (the “Company”) was established in
2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 15 December 2010 (Stock Code: 01282.HK). The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
automation, property investment and development, financial services, and
securities investment.

The Group is one of the leaders in the distribution of automation equipment in
the PRC. It maintains a close relationship and collaboration with key business
partners in the PRC. It is committed to seizing the opportunities brought by
the smart manufacturing transformation under “Made in China 2025” and the
opportunities for 5G market development.

The Group’s property investment and development segment is engaged with
a number of property projects in Hong Kong and various major cities in the
PRC, covering projects including commercial complexes, upscale residences,
hotels, commercial apartments and office buildings. It will continue to explore
quality property projects in the Greater Bay Area to increase its land reserves
for future development.

The Group holds licences to provide financial services, including securities and
futures trading, asset management and money lending in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Adhering to its philosophy of “sustainable development and giving back to the
community”, the Group is committed to providing allrounded quality products
and services to maximise return for its shareholders, and at the same time
contributing to the well-being of the society as a whole. Looking ahead, the
Group will rise to the challenges of the formidable business environment and
look for local and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Wansheng — Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Ms. Zhao Yizi
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Mr. Huang Wansheng — Chairman
(resigned on 10 October 2024)

Mr. Zhang Chi — Acting Chairman
(appointed on 10 October 2024)

Mr. Li Minbin

Mr. Chan Manwell

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yuen Kit Wai

(resigned on 10 July 2024)
Mr. Sze Wing Fung

(appointed on 10 July 2024)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Li Minbin
Mr. Sze Wing Fung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISER
King & Wood Mallesons
Lee & Company, Eddie

AUDITOR
Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2308, 23/F., China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D,

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100,

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F., Far East Finance Centre,

16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

LISTING VENUE/STOCK CODE

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/01282

BOARD LOT
8,000 shares

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.hk1282.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEHE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=t—-HLHEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECmE —Eo=E —EoCF —T-—fF —ECTHF
HK$’million HKS’million HKS’million HKS’ million HK$’million
HEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
OPERATING RESULTS  &E#%#&
Revenue (Note 1) eCIERD) 1,142.9 740.3 811.4 2,614.8 1,573.5
Gross profit (Note 1) EF (FzE1) 362.8 138.6 182.2 605.5 338.1
EBITDA (Note 182) EBITDA (i1 % 2) (313.3) 155.4 (503.1) 119.7 (135.5)
EBIT (Note 1&3) EBIT (FfizE1 &3) (330.1) 99.2 (549.5) 53.6 (187.3)
(Loss)/profit from 298 (518) /%7
operations (Note 1) (Bf3E1) (317.9) 117.6 (440.0) 66.0 (203.3)
(Loss)/profit attributable to A ] #EH A &S
owners of the Company (&#8),/ &7 (227.2) 102.5 (551.5) (189.0) 217.3)

6 RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HFZ2EEBR AR D &



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

As of 31 December
R+=A=t+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-MEF —E-=F —TE-fF T —E-TF
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BEAT BEET BEET BEET BEET

FINANCIAL POSITION BRI

Total assets BEMLE 9,929.8 11,643.1 7,9405 9,884.2 33,124.2
Net assets BEFE 5,590.3 7,099.3 5111.4 6,334.0 10,862.1
Net current assets TBVEEFE 874.5 1,985.7 1,051.1 1,765.4 7,789.3
KEY STATISTICS TERE
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EF& (fH5E 1) 32% 19% 22% 23% 21%
Operating (loss)/profit B (1B) RAR

margin (Note 1) (BfF3E1) (28%) 16% (54%) 3% (13%)
Net (loss)/profit margin F(B18) EFE (28%) 7% (66%) (1%) (7%)
Return on equity PeNEEEd (6%) 1% (11%) (1%) (5%)
Interest coverage (Note 4)  FI BB ELL & (fifzt4) 5.5 3.2) (13.2) 0.8) (9.4)
(Loss)/earnings per share &A% (E518) /B

(HK cents) (L)

— Basic —HXK (8.48) 474 (35.14) (0.60) ©0.71)

— Diluted — 8 (8.48) 474 (35.14) (0.60) 0.71)
Dividend per share (HK cent) &REALE (L) - - - - -
Current ratio PrEIfE RS 1.2 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.6
Notes: BT
1. The revenue, gross profit, EBITDA, EBIT, profit/(loss) from operations, gross profit marginand 1. ZE_NERZTE=ZFHOKkE ETF -

operating profit/(loss) margin in 2024 and 2023 represent the operating results. EBITDA « EBIT * #8357/ (F518) - EFMER

EERN S (BE) TEEEEE -

2. EBITDA is calculated at profit/(loss) before income tax subtracted by finance costs — netand 2. EBITDA Ty R KRR A5 B ASE F, 7 (B8 ) Il A B

adding back depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible KA — F58 - BMEYE - BRERSERTE
assets. REREESHNTE -
3. EBIT is calculated at profit/(loss) before income tax subtracted by finance costs — net. 3. EBIT TR IERBR FTS B ATE T, (518 5 A B 75
A — SFEERTHE -
4. Interest coverage is calculated at profit/(loss) before income tax subtracted by finance costs 4. FMEBELRIRERAEHANGET(EI8)
— net and divided by finance cost — net. TRABTISRR AN — JFREWBR A ISR AN — JF R85
&
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue Revenue
1) g g2
(APPROX. HK$1,142.9 MILLION) (APPROX. HK$740.3 MILLION)
(891142958 7T) (#7403 BBET)
546.1 (47.8%) 354.7 (47.9%)

Year 2024 Year 2023

—EEF —EB-=F

38.2 (56.2%)
347.4 (46.9%)

54.1 (4.7%)
542.7 (47.5%)

o el ST @ Financial Services @ Automation and others () #3484 RER @ =aEy @ EBiRit

and Development

Revenue Gross Profit
g EF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(&%) (B&ET)
2,614.8
605.5
1,573.5
1,142.9
338.1 362.8
811.4 2403
(Year)
(F15)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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EBITDA
EBITDA
(HK$ million)
(B8%T)

119.7 155.4
(135.5) (503.1) (313.3)

(Year)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 (F13)

Total Assets

BE#E
(HKS million)
(B&%T)

33,124.2

11,6431
9,929.8

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the
Company

FLOFHE AR (BR) 2T

(HK$ million)

(B&%T)

102.5

(217.3) (189.0) (551.5) (227.2)

(Year)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 (F17)

Net Assets
HERE
(HKS$ million)
(&%)

10,826.1

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Renze
Harvest International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$1,142.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 54.4% in revenue from
approximately HK$740.3 million as recorded in the previous financial
year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase of trading
volume of automation business and increase in sales revenue amounting to
approximately HK$191.4 million in property investment and development
segment in the Year as compared with those in the previous year.

The Company recorded a loss for the Year of approximately HK$319.6 million
(2023: profit for the Year of approximately HK$55.3 million). The decrease
in the profit for the Year as compared to the previous financial year was
primarily due to (i) the fair value loss on investment properties of approximately
HK$280,741,000 in the Year and (i) write-down of inventories of properties of
approximately HK$151,329,000 in the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2024, China’s GDP increased by approximately 5%, with industrial added
value reaching RMB40.5 trillion. The overall scale of manufacturing sector
has maintained its position as the world’s largest for 15 consecutive years,
driven by enhanced innovation capabilities in high-end equipment, artificial
intelligence and other fields were further improved, leading to further industrial
upgrades. The real estate market in Mainland China continued to adjust, with
the introduction of a series of supporting policies to facilitate the stabilization
of the market. However, it will take time for the market to resume its growth. In
2024, Hong Kong’s focus on economic development resulted in stable growth.
The Hong Kong SAR Government forecasted a year-on-year increase of 2.5%
in 2024. However, internal and external factors led to a contraction in Hong
Kong’s consumer market and a continued decline in the property market. As
an outward-looking economy, Hong Kong’s exports were affected by changes
in regional trade policies, putting pressure on the overall economy. The Hang
Sang Index rose nearly 18% in 2024, marking the end of decline of a four-year
decline. The scale of total asset of the asset and wealth management industry
continued to grow, demonstrating a further recovery in Hong Kong’s financial
market, which will help enhance market confidence and benefit all sectors of
Hong Kong’s economy.

Automation Business

Benefiting from the continuous growth of China’s electronics and information
technology manufacturing sector, the Company’s automation business
experienced a significant revenue growth in 2024. In 2024, the consumer
electronics market recovered, with global smartphone shipments reaching
1.24 billion units, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.4% as compared
with 20283. The surging demand in the general market was mainly driven by
the replacement of smartphones purchased during the pandemic and the
replenishment by sales channels. The Chinese government has introduced
policies to stimulate consumption, including consumption and trade-in
incentives, which injected new vitality into the consumer electronics industry.
The rapid development of artificial intelligence technology and its widespread
application scenarios have ushered in the era of Industrial 4.0, characterized
by artificial intelligence, big data, 5G and other technologies. As Al applications
are witnessing explosive growth, various electronic product manufacturers are
actively exploring new development opportunities for integration with large
Al models. The rapidly growing demand for application scenarios and smart
terminal products will drive the need for related manufacturing equipment,
leading to a continued increase in market demand for intelligent electronic
manufacturing equipment in the future. With the continuous upgrade of
industrial structure and the increase of labor cost, more major manufacturers
demand for intelligent manufacturing equipment. The manufacturers growing
emphasis on intelligent manufacturing is driving the demand for high-end
manufacturing equipment such as surface mount technology (“SMT”) and
semiconductors, placing the Group’s automation business in a favorable
position.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

As a leader in the distribution and servicing of SMT equipment and
semiconductor manufacturing equipment as well as in the provision of
intelligent manufacturing solutions in China, Gallant Tech Limited (“Gallant
Tech”), a subsidiary of the Group, has been serving customers in high-tech
industries for over 20 years. With Chinese manufacturers improving their global
competitiveness and expanding their manufacturing operations overseas,
Gallant Tech is well-positioned to support these Chinese manufacturers
abroad. In 2024, Gallant Tech actively aligned with the overseas strategy of its
customers, offering them comprehensive manufacturing solutions overseas.
Gallant Tech has launched business operations in countries such as Vietnam,
Indonesia and Thailand, with overseas sales revenue accounting for more than
20% of the Company’s annual revenue, significantly higher than in previous
years. Amid trade policy changes and geopolitical reasons, our customers
are increasingly moving their production bases outside of China. By actively
seizing such business opportunities, Gallant Tech will continue to expand its
overseas sales and service network and grow its service team, so as to ensure
robust support for its customers.

Gallant Tech has actively optimized its business structure to provide customers
with customized service solutions and comprehensive technical support.
Cooperation with other distributors and leasing service providers has been
strengthened to improve the leasing product portfolio. Flexible “combined
leasing and sales” solutions with competitive pricing, empowered by the
combination of equipment distribution and financial leasing businesses,
continue to enhance its market competitiveness. The equipment leasing
business recorded a significant growth during the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Property Investment and Development Business

In 2024, China’s real estate market remained under pressure, continuing
to hover at the bottom. According to relevant data, the national real estate
development investment dropped by 10.6% year-on-year in 2024, marking the
largest drop in history, with the scale of investment falling back to the level of
2016. Newly commenced construction area decreased by 23% year-on-year,
while area under construction dropped by 12.7%, and completed construction
area fell by 27.7%, indicating that the real estate companies are cautious
regarding quantitative increase in development. The land market also faced
challenges, with residential land sales in 300 cities falling by more than 30%
year-on-year.

In response to the ongoing downturn in the property market, the Political
Bureau of the Central Committee of the PRC proposed measures to “stop
the decline and promote the stabilisation of the property market”, with a
combination of policies, including the lifting of purchases and sales restrictions,
lowering of down payment ratios and lending rates, and implementing tax
exemptions and reductions, effectively lowering the threshold for home buyers.
In the fourth quarter of 2024, Sales in first-tier cities in the Mainland increased
by 40% year-on-year, while sales in second-tier cities increased by 14%, with
notable improvements in cities such as Shenzhen and Guangzhou. 2025 is
expected to see a continuation of the rebound trend seen in the fourth quarter
of 2024, although a rapid rebound in sales growth may be difficult to achieve.
Core cities are likely to lead in stabilising due to policy easing and released
demand, while third- and fourth-tier cities will still face inventory pressure and
population outflow constraints.

Given the complex economic situation, the Group’s overall strategy for its
property investment and development business in 2024 will focus on strategic
contraction and targeted expansion. This involves accelerating the liquidation
of the Group’s inventory of immovable assets and recovering capital through
asset realisation or refinancing to support the automation business and the
investment and development of key properties.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

Financial Services Business

In 2024, the global financial services industry navigated a complex landscape
marked by elevated interest rates, geopolitical uncertainties, and shifting
investor priorities. Despite these challenges, the financial services sector
continued to evolve, with growing demand for innovative solutions such as
thematic ESG-focused funds, digital asset offerings, and hybrid investment
strategies. The Hong Kong Government reinforced its commitment to
strengthening the city’s position as a premier financial hub, introducing
targeted measures to attract global capital and talents. Initiatives such as
streamlined tax incentives for family offices, enhancements to the Cross-
boundary Wealth Management Connect scheme etc. underscored efforts to
revitalize the sector. These policies have begun to yield results, with a notable
increase in family offices establishing regional headquarters in Hong Kong,
drawn by its connectivity to Mainland China and global markets.

Looking ahead to 2025, we remain cautiously optimistic about Hong Kong’s
economic recovery. The city’s unique role as a gateway linking international
investors with Mainland China’s vast market positions it to capitalize on the
gradual stabilization of global interest rates and anticipated policy support for
domestic demand in China. Hong Kong’s ongoing efforts to build a diversified,
sustainable, and dynamic financing platform will enhance its competitiveness
as a global financial center.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Established in 2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in December 2010, the Group is principally engaged in
the business of automation, property investment and development, financial
services and securities investment. Over the past years, the Group has been
adhering to its philosophy of “sustainable development and giving back to the
community” with its commitment to provide all-rounded quality products and
services to maximise return for its shareholders and contribute to the well-
being of the society. In the face of a challenging business environment, the
Group will strive to improve its business planning and operating performance
in 2025 to promote its long-term growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

AUTOMATION BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue of the automation
segment recorded approximately HK$508.8 million (2023: approximately
HK$431.8 million), representing an increase of 17.8% over last year and
accounting for approximately 44.5% (2023: approximately 58.3%) of
the Group’s total revenue. The operating profit increased by 236.8% to
approximately HK$42.4 million (2023: approximately HK$12.6 million). The
growth in revenue and operating profit was primarily due to the increased
desire of relevant electronic manufacturers to invest in equipment, driven
by the continuous growth in sectors such as consumer electronics and
automotive electronics. In addition, the accelerated deployment of overseas
manufacturing bases by Chinese manufacturing customers also contributed
to further improvement of revenue from sales of the Group’s automation
equipment.

Gallant Tech, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, focuses on the
sale of high-end intelligent manufacturing equipment, such as SMT and
semiconductor production equipment, and provides ancillary services for the
equipment sold, including technical support and equipment rental. Currently,
Gallant Tech is one of the major suppliers of SMT production equipment
and semiconductor packaging and testing equipment in the PRC market.
Gallant Tech’s vision is to become a leading supplier of high-end intelligent
manufacturing equipment and solution provider in China’s electronics
manufacturing industry, as well as the most trusted partner in intelligent
manufacturing, making intelligent manufacturing simple while adding greater
value.
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To provide customers with world-class intelligent manufacturing equipment
and technical services, Gallant Tech’s business model is based on the
objective of timely response to the rapidly changing technological environment
and customer needs and adopting the strategy of maintaining product
competitiveness and upgrading core technologies, while setting the standards
to improve overall product quality, service level and personnel quality. Gallant
Tech primarily serves renowned manufacturers in telecommunications,
computer, automotive electronics, smart charging station, new energy,
integrated circuit and other electronics and information technology industries.
The Company is the brand agent of ITW MPM printing machines, Koh Young
inspection systems and other intelligent manufacturing equipment, all of
which are top sellers among similar brands in China, while Fuji SMT pick-
and-place machines have seen the highest sales growth in China. From its
early involvement in the computer and display industries, to its development
into mobile phones, smart home appliances, and industries such as the
burgeoning new energy vehicles, 5G and artificial intelligence, Gallant Tech
has been a key player in every industrial development and industrial upgrading
of China’s electronics manufacturing sector. As artificial intelligence continues
to advance, the demand for intelligent and automated production methods
will deepen across the electronics manufacturing industry, further driving
the need for advanced intelligent manufacturing equipment among Chinese
enterprises. Looking back on 2024, Gallant Tech has strengthened and
improved the development of MES (Manufacturing Execution System) service
modules, leading to increased adoption of its independently developed
GT LINK MES system by its customers. GT LINK system is a one-stop,
integrated system that collects, records and aggregates real-time production
data from the customers’ workshops by linking up the intelligent equipment
that Gallant Tech carries. By consistently improving and developing the GT
LINK system, Gallant Tech will provide customers with better customized
services and more intelligent solutions for production lines management. To
address customers’ growing demand for artificial intelligence applications in
intelligent manufacturing, Gallant Tech will implement its “artificial intelligence +
manufacturing” strategy, increasing investment in technologies and resources,
while exploring large model scenario applications in the industry, so as to
provide customers with optimal artificial intelligence solutions for intelligent
manufacturing.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue of the property
investment and development segment was approximately HK$546.1 million
(2023: approximately HK$354.7 million), accounting for approximately 47.8%
(20283: approximately 47.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the accelerated disposal of properties in Ganzhou
during the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the operating loss of the property
investment and development segment was approximately HK$425.6 million,
compared to the operating loss of approximately HK$249.5 million recorded
in the previous year. The increase of the operating loss was primarily due
to the recognition of the write-down of inventory properties amounting to
approximately HK$151.3 million and fair value loss on investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$280.7 million including Ganzhou Project and
Shantou Project (defined below).

Shenzhen Bangkai Science and Technology Industrial
Park Project

Bangkai Science and Technology Industrial Park (the “Park”), located at
Fenghuang Town Industrial Zone in the hinterland of Guangming Science City
in Guangming District, Shenzhen, is one of the 18 key development zones
in Shenzhen. It is adjacent to Fenghuang Town Station of Metro Line 6 and
Guangmingcheng Railway Station, and 1 km away from Guangming Exit of
Longda Expressway. Occupying an area of 114,502 square meters and with
a total construction area of 547,850 square meters, this project plans to build
an industry-city complex integrating science and technology research and
development (“R&D”), pilot plant, headquarters base, business office, smart
apartment and leisure and business. The project consists of three phases,
of which Phases | and Il, consisting a total of seven buildings, have been
completed, with a total area of 187,199 square meters in property ownership
certificates and a rentable area of 187,379 square meters, including office,
R&D plant, apartments, hotel and ancillary business.
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In 2024, the operation of the Park faced challenges on two fronts. On the
one hand, the supply of business offices in Guangming District, Shenzhen
continued to rise, resulting in further intensified competition. On the other
hand, the overall economy of 2024 remained weak due to the ongoing
downturn of the property sector, and there was a decline in the operating
condition of a small number of tenants in the Park.

Under the challenging economic situation, the management team at the
Park followed the policy direction of the Guangming District Government
and actively launched investment promotion work. Leveraging its excellent
geographical location and comprehensive industrial support services, the
Park’s key corporate clients, medium-sized, small and start-up corporate
clients remained stable in operations and tenancy. Although the occupancy
rate of the apartments experienced a slight drop due to ongoing renovations,
the Park’s occupancy rate was maintained at 90% throughout the year of
2024, ranking among the highest occupancy rates in Shenzhen Guangming
District’s key industrial parks. In 2024, the Park organised 16 industrial service
activities and 5 community activities in collaboration with Guangming District
Industry and Information Technology Bureau, Guangming District Science and
Technology Innovation Bureau and other partners. The Park was also ranked
top in the service satisfaction evaluation activities for industrial customers
organised by Guangming District Government for a number of times. In
addition, the multi-industry integration in the Park has also garnered high
praise from its clients.

Ganzhou Real Estate Project (“Ganzhou Project”)

The Group has developed two large-scale comprehensive real estate projects
in Ganzhou, Jiangxi, namely Century Plaza and Taigu Plaza. The residential
buildings and apartments of the two projects were all sold out. Currently, office
buildings and hotels are all also fully occupied. The shopping malls of the two
projects, namely Universal Square* (32 3k [ ) and Joyous Square* (#X £ [#),
are operated by the company in Ganzhou.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In 2024, the Group stepped up its efforts to revitalise its properties in
Ganzhou, adopting various methods such as whole sale, whole lease and
public auction. The Group successfully completed the auction of two hotels
in its inventory, namely the Taigu Plaza Hotel and the Century Plaza Hotel,
through a combination of online and offline auctions. The inventory of Century
Plaza office properties was revitalised by way of whole sale and the first stage
of delivery and settlement was completed. The Group’s cash reserves were
enriched through the auction and sales of properties. As at 31 December
2024, only two shopping malls and underground car parks in Universal Square
and Joyous Square, were remained as inventory of real estate properties in the
Ganzhou area.

The operations of Universal Square and Joyous Square remain stable, with
Universal Square housing a number of renowned brands and being a popular
integrated shopping centre in Ganzhou as well as a popular destination for
visitors.

Shantou Real Estate Project (“Shantou Project”)

In 2024, the Group completed the additional acquisition of 42.33% equity
interest in Shantou Taisheng Technology Limited (“Shantou Taisheng”), and
is currently holding 93.33% equity interest in Shantou Taisheng. Shantou
Taisheng is engaged in the development of a real estate construction project
— Shantou Times Bay* (JIIZER{X &) located at Longhu District, Shantou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The project encompasses a total land area of
approximately 167,000 sg.m. and a gross floor area of approximately 951,000
sqg.m. It is divided into three zones: South, Central and North, featuring office
and commercial buildings, residential units and loft apartments.

With regard to sales in 2024, the property market in Shantou City was
relatively quiet due to the continuous downturn in the Mainland property
market, resulting in slow turnover for office properties. Despite the challenges
faced by Shantou Taisheng, the sales team leveraged on the project’s excellent
geographical location and focused on the sales of existing office properties
in the southern district of the project. Targeted sales and inventory turnover
strategies were formulated to facilitate transactions.

In terms of investment promotion and operation, the excellent geographical
environment and the strong support from the Shantou Overseas Chinese Pilot
Zone Government have attracted a number of enterprises and institutions such
as Shantou Overseas Chinese Pilot Zone Management Committee, Shantou
Overseas Chinese Economic Pattern Co-operation and Experimental Zone
Cultural Development Bureau, Shantou Banking and Insurance Association to
move in.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The Group continues to provide comprehensive financial services in Hong
Kong through its subsidiaries, maintaining its commitment to bridging onshore
and offshore capital markets. Upholding its operational philosophy of stability
and innovation, the Group contributes to the economy by delivering all-aspect
financial solutions to its clients. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
financial services segment generated approximately HK54.1 million in revenue
(2023: approximately HK$38.2 million revenue), representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 41.6% and accounting for approximately 4.7% of
the Group’s total revenue (2023: 5.2%). The operating profit amounted to
approximately HK27.3 million (2023: approximately HK 70.5 million operating
loss).

Securities Brokerage Services

The securities brokerage team remains unwavering in its commitment to
delivering professional, comprehensive and convenient services including
agency securities trading, margin financing, placing and underwriting services,
financial products and one-stop integrated investment and financing solutions
for institutional investors, high-net-worth individuals and listed companies.

During the year under review, the Hong Kong stock market faced significant
challenges. The market was impacted by a combination of global and local
factors, including persistently high interest rates, geopolitical tensions,
economic slowdown and currency volatility. These factors contributed to
a subdued trading environment which reduced investor participation and
lowered trading volumes across the industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Despite these challenges, our team demonstrated resilience and adaptability
to mitigate the impact of market headwinds. We remain steadfast in our
commitment to drive profitability: we focus on operational efficiency, we
leverage our expertise and innovative capabilities to deliver client-centric
solutions and assist their navigation through the complexities of the market.
Looking ahead, we are optimistic about the opportunities that lie ahead with
global interest rates expected to stabilize and potential easing of geopolitical
tensions, we anticipate a gradual recovery in investor confidence and market
activity. Our strategic initiatives for the coming year include investing in
technology to furnish the seamless and efficient trading experiences for our
clients; diversifying our spectrum of financial products and services to meet the
evolving needs of our clients; deepening our engagement with high-net-worth
and institutional clients through personalized solutions and tailored advisory
services; and identifying growth opportunities in emerging markets and cross-
border collaborations to expand our footprint.

As we continue to adapt to the dynamic market environment, we remain
focused on delivering value to our clients and stakeholders, ensuring long-
term success for the Group. We are confident that these efforts will position us
for sustainable growth and profitability in 2025 and beyond.

Asset Management Services

As we progress into 2025, Hong Kong’s asset management industry is
navigating a landscape marked by both opportunity and significant challenges.
The recent removal of foreign ownership caps is a positive development aimed
at attracting international investors. However, the sector must contend with
the ramifications of ongoing trade wars and the unpredictable policies of the
United States, which continue to create volatility in global markets. Additionally,
Hong Kong has taken significant steps in the cryptocurrency space. Since
January 2025, the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) has issued
three more crypto operational licenses to virtual asset trading platforms,
bringing the total licensed platforms to ten. This cautious yet progressive
approach aims to regulate the virtual asset industry while enhancing investor
protection. With more platforms seeking SFC’s approval for operation, Hong
Kong is positioning itself as a leading hub for digital assets in Asia. Despite
these hurdles, the city’s strategic position as a financial hub offers unique
opportunities for growth, provided that firms can adapt swiftly to evolving
market conditions and investor expectations. We expect that several long-
term macro factors will drive the ongoing growth of the industry. These include
the expansion of the capital market, a growing awareness among investors
regarding professional asset management services, and improved distribution
efforts.
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Atlantic Asset Management Limited, approved by the SFC, allows our
managed fund to invest less than 10% of assets under management (AUM)
in Virtual Assets. Furthermore, we provide asset management and investment
advisory services to high-net-worth individuals, corporations, and institutional
clients in global markets. As of the date of this report, we act as the investment
manager for two segregated portfolio company funds with three segregated
portfolios with total assets under management at around HK$192 million. In
2024, the fund performed positively, demonstrating our effective investment
strategy and adaptability in a changing market environment.

In the coming year, we expect our fund to focus on global equities, futures and
options. The coverage areas include indices, foreign exchange, commodities
and cryptocurrency. It invests in five different strategies: buy and hold fixed
income securities or high-yield bonds until maturity; top-down and then
bottom-up position-taking approaches; special situations with a focus on
mergers and acquisitions, new issues and event-driven areas; market-neutral
long/short equities and futures; and swing trading strategies that rely on typical
indicators and ratios to detect signals for upcoming movements, including
arbitrage and short-term trading.

Money-lending Business

The Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary, namely Glory Sun Credit
Limited (“Glory Sun Credit”), engaged in the money lending business
primarily on the provision of short-term and long-term share mortgage loans,
property mortgage loans and collateral loans to customers in Hong Kong
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163) (the “MLO”).

In light of the challenging economic and property environment, Glory Sun
Credit has adopted stringent credit control to conduct its share mortgage loan
and property mortgage loan business to reduce associated credit risks. As
at 31 December 2024, the overall weighted average loan-to- value ratio of its
loan portfolio was at 96.6% (2023: 68.0%).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Compliance with Ordinances and Regulations

Glory Sun Credit has strictly complied with all relevant laws and regulations.
The MLO and the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Cap. 615) (the “AMLO”) have a significant influence on the money
lending business during the current year.

The MLO acts as the principal ordinance governing the money lending
business in Hong Kong while the AMLO governs the matters in relation to
the money laundering and terrorist financing. During the current year, Glory
Sun Credit did not receive any objection from the Registrar of Money Lenders
(the “Registrar”) nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the renewal of
the money lenders licence. Glory Sun Credit has also established policies
and procedures to strictly follow the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders (the “AML-CTF Guideline”) issued by the Registrar for the money
lending business operations to mitigate the risks of money laundering and
terrorist financing.

To the best of its knowledge, Glory Sun Credit has complied with the MLO and
AMLO in all material aspects, and that it is not aware of any matter that might
come to its attention that the money lenders licence would be suspended,
terminated or would not be renewed in foreseeable future.

Business Model and Loan Portfolios

Glory Sun Credit mainly offers share mortgage loans, property mortgage loans
and collateral loans.

For share mortgage loans, Glory Sun Credit granted secured loans to
customers and held collaterals against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over listed shares owned by these customers. All of these
collaterals were listed in Hong Kong. The gross share mortgage loans
receivable was accounted for approximately nil of the entire gross loan
receivable of Glory Sun Credit as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 64.1%). The
interest rates of the share mortgage loans, mainly determined with reference
to factors such as the quality and liquidity of the collaterals provided by the
customers, loan-to-value ratios, loan amounts, tenors, and customers’ net
worth, ranged from 8.0% to 18.0% (2023: 8.0% to 18.0%).
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For property mortgage loans, Glory Sun Credit granted secured loans
to customers and held collaterals against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties owned by these customers. All of these collaterals
were located in Hong Kong, of which nil (2023: more than 66.6%) were
residential properties. The gross property mortgage loans receivable was
accounted for approximately nil of the entire gross loan receivable of Glory
Sun Credit as at 31 December 2024 (2023: 32.6%). The interest rates of the
property mortgage loans, mainly determined with reference to factors such
as the quality, type and location of the collaterals provided by the customers,
type of mortgages, loan-to-value ratios, loan amounts, tenors, and customers’
net worth, ranged from 6.0% to 9.5% (2023: 6.0% to 9.5%).

During the current year, the customers comprised individuals and corporations
in Hong Kong and were all independent third parties (within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules).

As at 31 December 2024, Glory Sun Credit had 2 (2023: 7) active accounts,
of which nil (2023: 3) of them were individual customers and the remaining
of 2 (2023: 4) were corporate customers; and of which nil (2023: 3) of them
were share mortgage loan customers and nil (2023: 3) of them were property
mortgage loan customers.

During the current year, the top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 100.0% (2023: 99.8%) of the
total revenue of Glory Sun Credit, and the single largest customer accounted
for approximately 52.7% (2023: 79.1%) of the total revenue.

As at 31 December 2024, the largest and top five customers (as determined
by loan receivable balance) of the total gross loan receivables balance
accounted for 76.7% (2023: 50.8%) and 100.0% (2023: 45.6%) respectively.

Credit Approval Processes and Credit Risk Assessment
Policies

All information and data provided by customers for loan applications will have
to go through credit assessment and approval procedures in accordance with
credit risk policies.

Prior to the acceptance of any loan application submitted by customers, Glory
Sun Credit will carry out know-your-customer procedures (“KYC procedures”)
to verify the identities of customers and assess the credit risk associated
with these customers by referring to documents, data and information
available from reliable and independent sources, such as government and
public authorities. It will also assess the risk of money laundering and terrorist
financing associated with the customers in accordance with its established
policy and the AML-CTF Guideline.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Glory Sun Credit will verify the ownership of the collaterals provided by the
customers and confirm if there is any incumbency on them.

With reference to the application information and the results of the
KYC procedures, the credit team would make recommendations to the
management on the proposed terms of the loan. Here are the main factors
being taken into consideration during the loan approval stage:

(i) For property mortgage loan applications

° the quality, type and location of the properties provided by
customers as collaterals;
o type of mortgages (i.e. first mortgage or second mortgage);

° loan-to-value ratios;

° loan amounts;

° tenors; and

° customers’ net worth.

(i) For share mortgage loan applications
° the quality and liquidity of the collaterals provided by customers;

° loan-to-value ratios;

° loan amounts;

o tenors; and

o customers’ net worth.

Loan Impairment Assessment

The Group has developed policies and procedures to appropriately assess
and measure the expected credit loss (‘ECL”) in accordance with impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9. Details of the movement of provision for impairment
and written-off of loan and advances receivables are disclosed in Note 23.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS AND ADVANCES
RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recognised provision for impairment
loss on loans and advances receivables of approximately HK$698,983,000
(the “Impairment Loss”). The Group engaged an independent professional
qualified valuer (the “Valuer”) to carry out a valuation of the ECL as at 31
December 2024 (the “Valuation Report”). The movement on the provision for
impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 is illustrated as below:
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HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-_=F—H—H 629,343
Provision for impairment BB 351,386
Recovery of impairment losses on financial assets arising WE—HNBAREENSRIEERE
from acquisition of a subsidiary gt (259,117)
#:“—:¢+—H:+—E&
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 —E-mMF—H—H 721,612
Recovery of impairment losses REEEKD (22,629)
At 31 December 2024 R-TE_MFE+_A=+—H 698,983
Save as disclosed in the 2024 Annual Report, further information regarding the B =Z —UFFWRETFEEEIN - BEARME
Impairment Loss is set out below: EERE—SERINT
Nature of the Impairment Loss BEBRZHEE
The balance of loans and advances receivables represents the outstanding B E R R BAREHR AR EE © BLRH

principals and interests from customers of the Group on financial services
segment (the “Financial Services Segment”) and unallocated business
units. As at 31 December 2024, accumulated impairment loss on loans and
advances receivables of the Financial Services Segment of approximately
HK$191,060,000 (2023: approximately HK$200,985,000) was recognised
and loans and advances receivables of the unallocated business units of
approximately HK$507,923,000 (2023: approximately HK$520,627,000) was
recognised.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Details on the Circumstances and Reasons for the
Impairment Loss

The debtors of the Group in the Financial Services Segment and unallocated
business units faced unexpected cash flow issues due to the downturn of
the Chinese economy in the past few years resulting serious disruption and
adverse impact to the macro-economic environment. Therefore, the probability
of recovery of outstanding debts from these debtors is questionable. The
Group carried out an assessment of the ECL of loan and advance receivables
of the Financial Services Segment and unallocated business units with
reference to the Valuation Report performed by the Valuer, which was based
on certain key assumptions. Key assumptions used by the Valuer included
probability of default (“PD”) of 100% considering defaulted status of loan
and advance receivables without repayment and loss given default (‘LGD”)
of over 90% with reference to post-default market bond price movements.
Based on the Valuation Report, the management of the Group considered
the recoverability to be low. The Group has been following up the status and
the Group has taken and/or is planning to take legal actions against the legal
representative of the such customers.

Movement of impairment losses on loans and advances

For events and circumstances that lead to the Company in recognising or
further making impairment of its loans, factors would normally include (a)
delay in settlement of loan interest or loan principal amounts by the borrowers
on the due date; (b) legal actions being taken by the Company against the
borrowers; (c) decrease in value of the collaterals due to the decline in the
global equity market in general; and (d) the decrease in confidence in the
properties development industry in China considering some of the borrowers
of the Company are in this industry.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, a recovery of impairment loss of
around HK$22.6 million was recognised (2023: impairment loss of HK$351.4
million), of which HK$19.4 million (2023: HK$334.9 million) was related to
other loan receivables (“Impairment of Other Loan Receivables”) apart
from regular money lending business. The recovery of impairment losses
was mainly related to certain borrowings recovered from disposal of the
pledged assets. The other loans were considered an attempt by the Group to
establish business relationships with the debtors, given that the debtors are
the owners of property development projects in the PRC. The Group might
consider investing in the projects if the developments gone well and the Group
assessed the possibility to convert the other loans to equity in the projects. By
way of granting loans instead of capital injection at the early stage of project
provides an exit strategy to the Group if the project development did not
proceed as expected. Either way is in line with the Group’s business strategy
in diversifying investments, and to generate profits for the Group, whether in
short-term as loan interest income, or in long-term as revenue from property
segment.
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Notwithstanding that these borrowings were secured by corporate guarantee
and equity interests, taken into consideration that (i) the borrowers are
principally engaged in property development business in China and the
property sector in China over the past few years has been thrust into a severe
debt crisis; (i) failure of borrowers in making timely loan settlement to the
subsidiary of the Company on the loan maturity date; and (iii) legal proceedings
have already been instituted by the Group against the PRC project companies,
impairments were recognised on their overdue loans outstanding during the
year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Due to the above factors, the business strategy has not been materialised,
not owing to the strategy itself but the fact that PRC property development
projects or other related opportunities are not the best investment options
for the time being given the current macro environment. Depending on the
worthiness and potential of the investment projects themselves, the Group
may revisit the said strategy in the future.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The Group has been investing in listed shares in Hong Kong, the PRC
and foreign countries and adjusting its investment strategy to ensure
that it is sufficiently prudent to cope with the uncertainties in the financial
market. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the securities investment
business generated a gain of approximately HK$33.9 million (2023: loss of
approximately HK$84.4 million). The operating loss of the segment amounted
to approximately HK$22.2 million (2023: approximately HK$86.1 million).

OTHER INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Company held 32%
equity interest in Yunnan International Holding Group Limited, an associate
principally engaged in the business of clean energy, health, investment
management, new energy and financial services. Through the cooperation
with the shareholders of the associate, the Company vigorously participated in
the strategic construction brought by The Belt and Road Initiative.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2025, following the pace of global economic recovery in the
post-epidemic era, the Company will shift the focus of industrial development
from quantitative to qualitative growth, seeking innovation while maintaining
stability, and supporting the country’s development direction of new productive
forces. The Company will actively and steadily promote the development of
its various business segments to maintain Hong Kong’s unique status as an
international financial center.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Prospects of Automation Business

The automation segment has been providing automation manufacturing
devices and services for the industries of smartphones, Internet of Things,
semi-conductors, automobile electronics in the PRC. The application of
automation manufacturing equipment, including SMT production equipment,
in key industries in the PRC is still in the rising stage of development. Following
the gradual sophistication of 5G application business regimes together with
the accelerating progress proposed by China in terms of the new infrastructure
facilities construction as representative of 5G, Artificial Intelligence, Industrial
Internet and Internet of Things, there will be a new source of vitality to benefit
the development of the automation segment.

To enhance sales revenue and market competitiveness, the Company will
further enrich its product portfolio by continuing to develop new products in
terms of semiconductor equipment, other automation equipment and related
materials. It will also seek to obtain more authorisations to act as suppliers’
agent. Considering the increasing number of manufacturing clients establishing
production bases overseas, the Company will conduct business with a global
mindset and implement overseas market strategies in a timely manner. In
terms of overseas market expansion, the Company will follow the footsteps
of its clients to align with their overseas market layouts and provide long-term
service planning.

The Company will focus on leveraging its core strengths, combining market
demand with technological development trends, and strategically positioning
itself in business areas with growth potential. It aims to create competitive
new products and services to meet the diverse needs of customers. By
enhancing its R&D capabilities and strengthening collaborations with intelligent
manufacturing industry partners, the Company will gradually transform from a
distribution-based enterprise to a technology manufacturing enterprise.

Prospects of Property Investment and Development
Business

In 2024, with strong support from the Group and the efforts of the team,
Phase Il of the Park completed the safety rectification required by the relevant
government departments in Guangming District, and is set to accelerate the
construction in 2025. The total gross floor area of Phase Il of the Park is
approximately 340,000 square metres, featuring apartments, industrial and
research premises, commercial units and underground spaces for activities.
The first part of Phase lll, comprising approximately 160,000 square metres of
apartments and underground space for activities, is expected to be completed
by 2026.
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In 2025, Shantou Rastar Group, a PRC listed company, and Shantou Branch
of China Minsheng Bank are also planning to move in the properties of
Shantou Project, enhancing the business atmosphere and further highlighting
the area’s business value.

The team will continue to make timely adjustments to its policies on new
leases, lease renewals and team incentives based on market conditions and
customer needs to further increase occupancy rates. At the same time, the
team actively approached the government for assistance to attract enterprises,
exploring both upstream and downstream entities, to facilitate office leasing
transactions through various activities such as segmented marketing activities,
rejuvenate the business vitality, further broadening the park’s business base
and attracting more customer flow.

The Group also holds certain investment properties in Hong Kong for the
purpose of leasing, which are currently vacant. In 2025, the Group will focus
on retaining high-quality existing tenants for property renewals while actively
seeking new premium tenants to lease vacant properties, aiming to achieve a
100% occupancy rate for Hong Kong’s investment properties.

Prospects of Financial Services Business

Notwithstanding the uncertainties plaguing the global economic outlook,
the Group’s securities brokerage team will continue to capitalise on the
opportunities brought about by the economic recovery in the financial markets
in 2025 proactively, and continue to optimise the trading experience of its
clients in order to enhance the competitiveness of its market segments. At the
same time, the securities brokerage team will adhere to its prudent approach
in reviewing its financing services and adopting appropriate strategies
to minimise downside risks, with a view to maintaining stable business
development.

In 2025, under the macro-environment of accelerating global market
integration and constant geopolitical events, the asset management team of
the Company will continue to adopt scientific and rational investment analysis
strategies to screen investment targets in the global market and evaluate
their investment value, and implement rebalancing strategies for major assets
based on regional market characteristics. The Company will continue to rely
on the advantages of Hong Kong as an international financial center to focus
on investment opportunities in the Greater China region.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

In 2025, the Group will continue to capture the development opportunities and
strive to create better returns to its shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Renze Harvest International Limited

Zhang Chi
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B ¥ E

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024 decreased by 4.5% AREBR _Z_MWFE+_A=+—HNEA

to approximately HK$4,339.5 million due to the acquisition of a subsidiary (E48%8F 4 4.5% £ #414,330.5B&B T (=

during the Year (2023: approximately HK$4,543.9 million). The gearing ratio, T = =4 : #14,543.9BBHET) - TERV

which is calculated at borrowings divided by net assets value was increased to  AREEFEWE —RHMNBATIRY - EEBE

28.8% (2023: 24.3%). b =& ( ?Z? 1*%% BRLABEREAE)EME
28.8% (ZZ =4 : 24.3%) °

Revenue Wiz
The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 increased ANEBEHZE_ZT_WE+_= ﬂ :—I—— A1k

by approximately 54.4% (2023: decreased by approximately 8.8%) to FE KW B INHI544% (T = =F
approximately HK$1,142.9 million (2023: approximately HK$740.3 million). 54 4)8.8%) 2#)1,142 9B BEL(=F

The revenue analysis by segment is presented as follows: Z=F 7403 EBEIIL) o pHkE D
23T -
2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
Proportion Proportion
to total to total
HK$’ million U HKS? million revenue % change
LG
BEER ]| BEAT HRWELN BoEs
Automation BEt 508.8 44.5% 431.8 58.3% 17.8%
Financial Services T RIARTS 54.1 4.7% 38.2 5.2% 41.6%
Property Investment and
Development VIR E KR 546.1 47.8% 354.7 47.9% 54.0%
Securities Investment BHITE 33.9 3.0% (84.4) (11.4%) 140.2%
1,142.9 100% 740.3 100% 54.4%

During the year, automation and property investment and development R A - Q@JTKM&%%&%&%E“*
segments were the major source of revenue for the Group, accounting for A% lH’JIxHﬁZmXﬁ 7 BIMG B Was
approximately 44.5% (2023: 58.3%) and approximately 47.8% (2023: 47.9%) #)44.5%(—Z =4 : 58.3%) & %47.8%
of total revenue, respectively. TETZF 4T7.9%) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit for the year has increased by approximately 161.8% to
approximately HK$362.8 million (2023: approximately HK$138.6 million), while
the gross profit margin increased to 31.7% (2023: 18.7%). The change was
mainly due to the decrease in competition of automation segment in the Year
which broadens the gross margin achievable as compared with those in 2023
and increase in sales revenue amounting to approximately HK$191.4 million in
property investment and development segment.

Other Gains/Losses — Net

The net other gains during the year was approximately HK$28.8 million
(2023: the net other loss during the year was approximately HK$7.4 million),
which was mainly due to gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$45.1 million during the Year.

Other Income

The other income decreased by approximately 69.7% to approximately
HK$4.6 million (2023: approximately HK$15.2 million) due to the decrease in
sundry income from approximately HK$12.1 million in 2023 to approximately
HK$3.8 million in 2024.

Distribution Costs

The distribution costs increased by approximately 116.5% to approximately
HK$43.6 million (2023: approximately HK$20.1 million), accounting for 3.8%
(2023: 2.7%) of the total revenue, owing to the increase in commission cost in
property sales.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately 11.0% to
approximately HK$217.7 million (2023: approximately HK$244.6 million),
owing to the decrease in deprecation of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$39.4 million.

Finance Costs — Net

The net finance costs during the Year was approximately HK$59.7 million
(2023: approximately HK$31.1 million). The increase in net finance costs was
because of the increase in interest expense on other loans of approximately
HK$27.8 million in the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWNE TN

Income Tax Credit/Expense

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded an income
tax credit of approximately HK$70.3 million (2023: income tax expense of
approximately HK$12.8 million) which was mainly due to the temporary
differences arising from fair value loss of investment properties and write-down
of inventories.

Loss/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$227.2 million
(2023: profit of approximately HK$102.5 million).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

By adopting a prudent financial management approach, the Group continued
to maintain a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$777.7 million
(2023: approximately HK$562.3 million). The working capital represented
by net current assets amounted to approximately HK$874.5 million (2023:
approximately HK$1,985.7 million). The current ratio was approximately 1.2
(2023: approximately 1.6). The gearing ratio, which is calculated at borrowings
divided by net asset value, was 28.8% (2023: 24.3%). The borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 included corporate bonds of approximately
HK$290.0 million (2023: approximately HK$313.0 million), bank loans of
approximately HK$195.9 million (2023: approximately HK$422.8 million),
and other loans of approximately HK$1,124.0 million (2023: approximately
HK$987.6 million). The borrowings as at 31 December 2024 were secured
by (i) guarantees provided by the Company, shareholder of the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries and related parties; (i) property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$149.9 million (2023: approximately HK$198.3
million); (iii) investment properties of approximately HK$1,740.4 million
(2023: approximately HK$1,832.5 million); and (iv) pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$14.4 million (2023: approximately HK$237.8 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital and Other Commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contracted but not provided for
capital commitments of approximately HK$215.2 million and HK$3,389.4
million relating to the investment in an associate and investment properties
and property development expenditures respectively (2023: approximately
HK$215.2 million and HK$3,585.1 million and HK$1,255.0 million relating
to the investment in an associate, investment properties and property
development expenditures and the second tranche acquisition payment of the
equity interest of Shantou Taisheng, respectively).

Currency Exposure and Management

During the year, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi (‘RMB”), and US dollars. The Group’s payments were mainly
made in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars.

As the business activities of the Group’s automation and property investment
and development segments were mainly conducted in the mainland China,
most of the Group’s labour costs and manufacturing overheads were settled
with the RMB. As such, fluctuation of the RMB exchange rate will have an
impact on the Group’s profitability. The Group will closely monitor movements
of the RMB and, if necessary, consider entering into foreign exchange forward
contracts with reputable financial institutions to reduce potential exposure to
currency fluctuations. During the year, the Group did not enter into any foreign
exchange forward contract.

Future Plans for Capital Investment and Expected Source
of Funding

The Group finances its operating and capital expenditures mainly by internal
resources such as operating cash flow and shareholders’ equity and bank
facilities. The Group expects to have sufficient internal resources and banking
facilities to meet its capital expenditure and working capital requirement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWNE TN

Fund raising for future business development

When the Group considers that there are funding needs for the expansion of
its businesses and development of new businesses, it will explore possible
fund raising methods, such as debt financing, placing of new shares or
issuance of corporate bonds.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 270 (2023: 406) full-time employees
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Employees’ remuneration is determined in
accordance with individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical
insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company adopted a share
option scheme on 2 June 2020 and share options will be granted to eligible
employees.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE SUBSCRIPTION
IN JULY 2019

On 10 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
Bao Xin Development Limited (the “BXD”), in relation to the subscription of
4,000,000,000 new shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”) at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 per Share (the “BXD Share Subscription”). Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 10 July 2019 and the circular of
the Company dated 10 October 2019 (the “2019 Circular”) for more details
regarding the BXD Share Subscription.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 December 2019, the Company issued and allotted 2,400,000,000 new
Shares to BXD and received a proceeds of HK$600.0 million. On 8 May 2020,
the Company issued and allotted 1,600,000,000 new Shares to BXD and
received a proceeds of HK$400.0 million. The net proceeds of the BXD Share
Subscription were approximately HK$999.4 million and had been utilised as
follows:
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(i)  corporate finance division @iy EEREDIL 26.7
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4, General working capital 4. —REEERE® 355.6
999.4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWNE TN

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE SUBSCRIPTION
IN APRIL 2023

On 20 April 2023, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with China Grand Developments Limited (“China Grand”) in relation to the
subscription of 800,000,000 new shares of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.281 per Share (the “China Grand Share Subscription”).
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 April 2023 and
the circular of the Company dated 2 June 2023 for more details regarding the
China Grand Share Subscription.

On 26 July 2023, the Company issued and allotted 800,000,000 new Shares
to China Grand and received proceeds of HK$224.8 million. The net proceeds
of the China Grand Share Subscription were approximately HK$224.7 million,
approximately 90% of which were applied for the repayment of maturing
indebtedness and the rest were applied as general working capital of the
Group. The net proceeds designated for general working capital were utilised
for the (i) distribution costs of the Group including but not limited to staff costs,
advertising, promotion and exhibition expenses and (i) administrative expenses
of the Group including but not limited to utilities expenses.

The table below demonstrates the breakdown and description of the utilisation
of the net proceeds from the China Grand Share Subscription:

1. Repayment of maturing indebtedness 1.

(i) distribution costs of the Group including but not (i)
limited to staff costs, advertising, promotion and
exhibition expenses

(i)  administrative expenses of the Group including but (ii)
not limited to utilities expenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2023:
nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 2 June 2020. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 156,937,561,
representing approximately 5.86% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this announcement.

As at the date of this report, no option had been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those illustrated
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can never be
eliminated completely due to the inherent limitations in measures taken to
address them. Nevertheless, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
they are deemed not cost-effective to mitigate.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing the Group’s operational risks rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures, limits
of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will identify and assess key
operational exposures and report such risk issues to the senior management
as early as possible so that appropriate risk responses can be taken.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWNE TN

Industry Risk

The financial services business of the Group is subject to extensive regulations.
Among others, operating subsidiaries such as Glory Sun Securities Limited
and Atlantic Asset Management Limited are obliged to operate in accordance
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”). The Group
is required to ensure consistent compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and guidelines and satisfy the relevant regulatory authorities that it remains
fit and proper to be licensed. If there is any change or tightening of relevant
laws, regulations and guidelines, the Group will face a higher compliance
requirement for its business activities. In addition, if the Group fails to comply
with the applicable rules and regulations from time to time, it may face fines or
restrictions on its business activities or even suspension or revocation of some
or all of its licenses for operating the financial services business. Furthermore,
the financial services business, like all other businesses of the Group, is not
immune from market changes. Any downturn in the financial market may also
adversely affect the financial services business of the Group.

The automation business of the Group operates in a highly competitive
environment. The Group faces fierce competition from global technology
companies and rapid technological changes which may render technologies
developed and employed by the Group obsolete. As such, the Group’s
products may lose its competitiveness, adversely affecting the Group’s ability
to maintain its market share. Failure to maintain the Group’s competitive
position may lead to a material adverse effect on the results and profit margins
of these business segments. Furthermore, the current trade war between
the PRC and the US may have an impact on the business environment in the
PRC. The Group is prepared to pay close attention to market conditions and
will establish a contingency plan if the trade war persists over a period of time.

The securities investment business of the Group is sensitive to market
conditions and fluctuations in the prices of the securities held by the Group.
Any significant downturn in the securities market may affect the mark to
market value of the Group’s securities investments and may adversely affect
the results of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The changes in the
currency environment and interest rate cycles may significantly affect the
Group’s financial position and results of its operations in the PRC.

The Group’s earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s functional
currency may affect its gross profit margin. The Group closely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities and allocates
its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to minimise foreign
currency risk.

The Group may be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain adequate
funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and credit facilities to
enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The Group is subject to credit risk from its clients. To minimise risk, new clients
will undergo stricter credit evaluation, while the Group continuously monitors
its existing clients to further improve its risk control measures.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The competition for human resources in the countries that the Group operates
in may result in the Group not being able to attract and retain key personnel
with the desired skills, experience and levels of competence. The Group will
continue to provide remuneration packages and incentive plans to attract,
retain and motivate suitable candidates and personnel.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding promptly
to market changes within the sectors that it operates in. Any failure to interpret
market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes accordingly
may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial position,
results of operations and prospects.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
EERFTEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Minbin (Z80#), aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in August 2015 and re-designated as an Executive Director
in November 2015. He has been the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since October 2024 and the Vice President of the Company since
January 2016. He serves as a director to multiple subsidiaries of the Company.
He also serves as a member of each of the Strategic Committee (“Strategic
Committee”) and Investment Committee (“Investment Committee”) of the
Company.

Mr. Li obtained the Master’s degree of Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has comprehensive experience in
operation and management of logistics, real estate, investment and financial
industries.

Ms. Liu Jiaxin (ZI{£fiX), aged 24, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company in March 2025. She also serves as a member of Investment
Committee. Ms. Liu graduated from the University of Melbourne with a Master
Degree in Marketing Communications. She joined the Group in July 2024 as
the Accounting Manager and HR & Admin Officer of the Group. She is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
she has gained practical internship experience in branding and commercial
property marketing at Shenzhen Blue Focus Digital Marketing Co., Ltd.,
ByteDance Ltd. and China Resources Land (Shenzhen) Development Ltd.
Seventh Branch* (228 & i R I) B R E R A 8 % £ 5 2 7). From March
2024 to July 2024, she worked for Baidu International Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. as an integrated marketing strategist.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Chi (3&3h), aged 36, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in July 2017 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director
in August 2019. He has been the Acting Chairman of the Board since
October 2024. He also serves as the acting chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”), Strategic
Committee and Investment Committee respectively and a member of each
of the Audit Committee (“Audit Committee”) and Remuneration Committee
(‘Remuneration Committee”) of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws from the Shenzhen
University and obtained a Master’s degree of Science in Management from
New York University. He is experienced in fund investment. He served as
an officer in the investment department in Shenzhen Sichuang Technology
Development Co. Ltd.* (FIIBEIRHLERAR AR from January 2013 to
June 2013. He worked in Shenzhen Creative Investment Group Limited* (%
YT BIFIEE £E B R A 7)) and served as an intern in the fund management
headquarter from September 2015 to April 2016, an officer in the fund
management headquarter since April 2016, and has acted as an investment
manager in a management headquarter managing a Government Guide Fund
since October 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhao Yizi (#f#F), aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in October 2022. She also serves as a
member of Nomination Committee.

Ms. Zhao graduated from the Shenzhen University with a Bachelor’s degree
in Laws. She was admitted as a lawyer in the People’s Republic of China in
2017. From July 2011 to May 2015, Ms. Zhao served as a manager in the
credit department of Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Futian Technology Branch*
(FB 2SR 1TE ARHE 2 17). From May 2015 to August 2016, she served as a
manager in the legal department of Guangdong Zhongmeng Group Holdings*
(EERFR BRI 22 B)). From August 2016 to September 2021, she successively
served as a trainee lawyer and a lawyer in Guangdong Shenxin Law Office*
(ERRZERETSFT). She has worked as a partner in Guangdong Chunting
Law Office* (B3R HFZEEEMETFT) since September 2021,

Ms. Zhang Juan (3R18), aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2023. She serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics with a
degree in Accounting. She has extensive managerial experience in accounting
and taxation advisory business. She has been a certified tax agent in the PRC
since 2011. She has been a manager of the audit department and a partner of
Shenzhen Jinnuo Tax Agency Co., Ltd.* (&I &M EBAER A R)

since November 2008.
* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
EERFTEAE

Mr. Chan Manwell (FR3{%), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in November 2023. He serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Strategic Committee.

Mr Chan graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a degree in Public
Administration. He has over 20 years of experience in political and business
sectors in Hong Kong. He is currently the director of the Hong Kong Youth
Affairs Development Foundation. From 2020 to present, he has been the vice-
chairman of Area Committee, Tuen Mun North East. From 2008 to 2019, he
was a member of the Tuen Mun District Council. He is currently a member
of the Appeal Tribunal Panel under the Buildings Ordinance, a member of the
Tenth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Haifeng County,
Shanwei City, the Vice President of the Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei
Clansmen, an honorary advisor of Pok Oi Hospital, the Vice President of the
Hong Kong Youth Innovation and Entrepreneurship Association, the Vice
President of Hong Kong Youth Power Association, the Vice Treasurer of the
16th Executive Committee of Y.Elites Association, the President of Y’s Men’s
Club (New Territories), a director of the Yuen Yuen Institute Chan Kwok Chiu
Hing Tak Primary School, an advisor of The Federation of Tuen Mun District
Association and an advisor of Tuen Mun Merchants Association. He was
awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service and the
Medal of Honour in 2018 and 2023 respectively.

KEY PERSONNELS

Mr. Sze Wing Fung (} 58 £), aged 37, joined the Group in October 2023
as the Chief Financial Officer. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting and Finance
from Monash University in Australia, and a Master of Corporate Governance
degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of each
of the CPA Australia, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute. He is also an EFFAS Certified ESG Analyst.
Mr. Sze has over 10 years of solid experience in professional accounting,
financial management, auditing and company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Group, he served as the group financial controller of a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhou Mingjia (EB{£), aged 37, joined the Group in April 2023 as the
Group Vice President and is in charge of domestic finance and financing
business. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a Master of Economics degree from Jinan University and a professional
qualification of Certified Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Zhou has served
at Shenzhen branch of the Agricultural Bank of China, Huaneng Guicheng
Trust Corp.,Ltd. and Pearl River Life Insurance Co., Ltd.. He works in the
financial industry in the PRC for over 10 years and has extensive experience in
investment and financing.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY PERSONNELS
EERTEAE

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS EFEHETE

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since the  1R#E FHEAIFE 13.51BN)IEZEE » AR
publication of the 2024 interim report of the Company required to be disclosed FIZEFHE B AN G —E —Fh HizRE
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out below: FIBLAR c EFER c HFEEHINNT :

Name of Directors

BEEHR

Details of Changes

BEFE

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Huang Wansheng

BEBLLE

Ms. Liu Jiaxin
BIEMLZ L
Non-executive Director

FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi

SRt sEE

Resigned as an executive Director, and ceased to be the chairman of each of
the Nomination Committee, Strategic Committee and Investment Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 10 October
2024

BHINTESRTHEIREEES BBEEEREZESRANER
MEMEZEENKE BT -NF+ AT HIBEXK

Appointed as an executive Director and a member of the Investment
Committee with effect from 28 March 2025
BEARMTEERIREZEEKE BT A=A+ /\BREX

Appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee and an acting
Chairman of each of the Nomination Committee, Investment Committee and
the Strategic Committee with effect from 10 October 2024
BZARTNEZEEGKENRIEREZE S  KEZEGREKEZEEEEAN
REXE B2 -NF+A+BBER

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed Bk E X PR & 51 - BLE H A & BRI
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The updated biographical =1 BI % 13.51B(1) 1§ 2 2 & M T A
details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the preceding section & ° ARBIERZ EHEEFIFEHEN X

headed “Directors and Key Personnels”.

[BEEREBRAB] —®-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Renze Harvest International Limited and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A business review of the Group during the year under review and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development, possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2024 are provided in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 31 and the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 32 to 41 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2024 using financial performance indicators is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 32 to 41 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 82 to 85.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following
periods for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2025 annual general
meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration:
4:30 p.m., Tuesday, 3 June 2025

Closure of register of members:
Wednesday, 4 June 2025 to Friday, 6 June 2025
(both days inclusive)

Record Date:
Friday, 6 June 2025

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2025 annual general meeting,
all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) with
the properly completed transfer form(s) either overleaf or separately, must be
lodged with the branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than the respective
latest dates and time set out above.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and noncontrolling
interests of the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the
consolidated financial statement, and restated as appropriate, is set out on
the inside front cover. This summary does not form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not make external
donations (2023: approximately HK$1,500,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2024,

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 87.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) (the “Companies Law”) of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$4,790.8 million (2023:
HK$5,933.3 million). No dividend (2023: nil) has been proposed for the year.
Under the Companies Law, HK$4,778.9 million as of 31 December 2024
(2023: HK$4,778.9 million) is distributable from share premium account of
the Company to the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The Company’s share premium account may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 33.7% (2023: 37.5%) of the Group’s revenue and 90.6%
(2023: 61.0%) of the Group’s purchases, were attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and five largest suppliers, respectively; and 22.5%
(2023: 9.2%) of the Group’s revenue and 56.5% (2023: 47.4%) of the Group’s
purchases were attributable to the Group’s largest customer and supplier,
respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Wansheng (Chairman)
(resigned as Executive Director on 10 October 2024)
Mr. Li Minbin
Ms. Liu Jiaxin
(appointed as Executive Director on 28 March 2025)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Chi (Acting Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Zhao Yizi

Ms. Zhang Juan

Mr. Chan Manwell

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non- Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the current Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 42 to 44 of the annual report and can be found on the Company’s
website.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the executive Directors and non-executive Director had respectively
entered into a service contracts with the Company. Details of the service
contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the
date of appointment, reappointment or re-election; and (2) the contracts shall
be terminated according to the terms of each contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of appointments mainly
include: (1) a term of directorship for three years with effect from the date of
appointment, reappointment or reelection; and (2) the letter of appointment
shall be terminated according to the terms of each letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 11 and 9, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the Group’s results.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or were
in existence during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(i) to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO; or (jii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme (as defined in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME OF THE COMPANY” below), at no time during the year ended
31 December 2024 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate. Save for the disclosed, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such right during
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director, other officer
and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director,
Auditor or other officer of the Company about the execution of the duties of
his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors, the following,
not being a Director or the chief executives of the Company, have an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

Capacity in which

RO R FRAR 6 3L
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ITHEIGMA e BB AR HRE 2 —
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FERREHMA LA AR
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R-F-mE+=A=+—H  REEFH
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i AR FIRIA SLABBIR 15 P A 1R
1558 3 T R D 56 XV BB 2 R B e
5 R A VR R I 2B 5 A e
#0836 KRB L FERNAR AL B
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RELTFIRG REMRGZIERNA
wRE

Approximate
percentage of

interests in Number of shares in issue as
Name of Shareholder shares are held shares held at 31 December 2024
R=Z-MmF
_ +=—A=+—H
BEREE RROPEERZNSH BFERAHE CERTROHBAEI
(Note 1)
(Bg=E1)
Ma Jianghao Interest in 800,000,000 (L) 29.85
__controlled corporation (Note 2)
5Tk ARSI R (Kizt2)
China Grand Developments Limited  Beneficial owner 800,000,000 (L) 29.85
FEERARAT EmlEEA

Note 1: As at 31 December 2024, the total issued share capital of the Company amounted to
2,680,000,000 shares.

Note 2: 800,000,000 shares of the Company are held by China Grand Developments Limited,
which is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Jianghao (“Mr. Ma”). Pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, Mr. Ma is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which
China Grand Developments Limited has, or deemed to have an interest.

Abbreviations: “L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, the Company had not
been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement plans which
cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a mandatory provident
fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement
plans are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 2 June 2020, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the Share Option Scheme were
summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was (i) to attract and retain
the best quality personnel for the development of the Company’s
businesses; (i) to provide additional incentives to employees; and (i) to
promote the long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to its shareholders.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may at its
absolute discretion grant options to any employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries (including any director, whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not, of the Company or its subsidiaries)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with the Company or its
subsidiaries at the time when an option is granted to such employee, or
any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 156,937,561,
representing approximately 5.86% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company as of the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

54

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue, unless approved by the shareholders in
the manner as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which may commence on the
date on which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No minimum
period for which the option must be held before it can be exercised is
specified in the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by the Board at
the time of the grant of the options, but in any case the subscription
price shall not be lower than the higher of:

° the closing price of the share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date on which the
options are offered, which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on which the
options are offered; and

o the nominal value of a share on the date on which the options are
offered.

Payment on acceptance of option
A non-refundable sum of HK$1 or other amount as determined by the

Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option is required to
be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.
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(h) Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from its adoption date (i.e. 2 June 2020). The Share Option Scheme will
terminate or expire (as the case may be) on the earlier of (i) the approval
of the shareholders in a general meeting, and (i) at the close of business
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date (the “Share Option Scheme Period”).

After the Share Option Scheme Period, the Company cannot grant
new options but for so long as there are options granted but not yet
exercised, outstanding vested or unvested options, the Share Option
Scheme will remain in full force and effect of such outstanding vested or
unvested options or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this report, no option had
been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Group’s Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed that none of them
is engaged in, or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly,
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 2009 with written
terms of reference set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”). The principal duties of the audit committee includes the review of
the Group’s financial reporting matters, risk management and internal control
procedures.

At present, the Audit Committee comprises one Non-Executive Director,
namely Mr. Zhang Chi and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Ms. Zhang Juan and Mr. Chan Manwell, of which Ms. Zhang Juan is the
Chairman.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including the review of the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have
been audited by the Company’s independent auditor, Moore CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

AUDITOR

With effect from December 6, 2023, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has resigned as
the auditor of the Company and Moore CPA Limited has been appointed as
the new auditor of the Company. The consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024 have been audited by Moore CPA
Limited. Moore CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited as the auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zhang Chi
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of disclosure as well
as more effective risk management and internal control. The execution and
enforcement of the Company’s corporate governance system is monitored by
the Board under its terms of reference as formally adopted on 2 November
2015, including but not limited to the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
their compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior members of the Company.

In line with the best corporate governance practice, the Company has
established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a Nomination
Committee, a Strategic Committee and an Investment Committee. The
Board and all subordinate committees evaluate and monitor their respective
effectiveness on a regular basis in accordance with their terms of reference.

The Company believes that its commitment to high standard practices will
translate into long-term value and ultimately making returns to shareholders.
The Company’s management pledges to building longer-term interests for
shareholders via, for example, conducting business in a socially responsible
and professional manner.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of association (the
“Articles”) of the Company as well as relevant rules and regulations. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, there were no significant changes to the
Articles.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group is determined to be a good corporate citizen by fulfilling its
corporate social responsibilities and contributing to the society for the good of
the community. In 2024, the Group provided a donations to help the needy.
Meanwhile, it cares for its employees by providing safe and healthy working
environment and regularly hosting events and activities for the employees to
benefit from work-life balance.

The Group encourages its employees to minimise the use of paper by
using e-files. While ensuring the observance of high level of confidentiality,
employees are prompted to use reusable papers. The Group has largely
replaced its lighting systems from metal halide lamps to light-emitting diode
(LED) energy-saving lighting to reduce carbon emissions.
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Details of the environmental policies and performance of the Group are
disclosed in the 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
published in compliance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance with a view
to enhancing the management of the Company as well as preserving the
interests of the shareholders as a whole. During the year under review, the
Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except the deviations disclosed herein.

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Huang Wansheng assumed the roles of both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Company deviates from
this provision as it believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Huang will be able
to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership. It allows for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long-term business strategies of the Group. As such, the structure is beneficial
to the business prospects of the Group. Furthermore, the Company’s
present management structure comprises sufficient number of independent
nonexecutive directors and all major decisions are made after consultation
with the Board, appropriate Board Committees and key personnel. The Board,
therefore, believes that a balance of power and authority have been and will
continue to be maintained. Following the resignation of Mr. Huang Wansheng
with effect from 10 October 2024 and the re-designation of Mr. Li Minbin and
Mr. Zhang Chi as acting Chief Executive Officer and acting Chairman of the
Board respectively, the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities,
overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the management for
the Group’s daily management and operations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee, a remuneration committee, a
nomination committee, a strategic committee and an investment committee
with clearly defined written terms of reference. Each committee reports to
the Board on its decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or
regulatory restrictions on its ability to do so.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 November 2009,
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of
the Group’s financial reporting matters, risk management and internal control
procedures. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive director,
namely Mr. Zhang Chi and two independent non-executive directors, namely
Ms. Zhang Juan and Mr. Chan Manwell, of which Ms. Zhang Juan is the
Chairman. The Audit Committee has reviewed and approved the preliminary
announcement of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 November
2009, with written terms of reference consistent with those set out in the CG
Code. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include considering
and recommending to the Board on the appointment of all the Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Zhang Chi, Ms.
Zhang Juan and Ms. Zhao Yizi, of which Mr. Zhang Chi is the Acting Chairman.
During the year, the Nomination Committee has duly discharged the above
duties.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 November
2009, with written terms of reference consistent with those set out in the
CG Code. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining and reviewing the remuneration packages of all the Directors and
senior management of the Company. The senior management of the Company
comprises only the Executive Directors of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Chan Manwell, Mr. Zhang
Chi and Ms. Zhang Juan, of which Mr. Chan Manwell is the Chairman. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has duly discharged the above duties.
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Strategic Committee

The Company has established the Strategic Committee on 28 March
2012. The principal duties of the Strategic Committee include considering
and recommending to the Board on the Group’s business strategies and
investment opportunities. The Strategic Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. Huang Wansheng, Mr. Li Minbin and Mr. Chan Manwell, of
which Mr. Huang Wansheng is the Chairman. During the year, the Strategic
Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Investment Committee

The Company has established Investment Committee on 26 August 2016. The
principal duties of the Investment Committee include the consideration of the
proposals regarding investment, fundraising, acquisition and disposal made by
the Company and its subsidiaries. The Investment Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Zhang Chi, Mr. Li Minbin and Ms. Liu Jiaxin, of which Mr.
Zhang Chi is the Acting Chairman. During the year, the Investment Committee
has duly discharged the above duties.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS

MEETINGS

The attendance of individual members of the Board at Board meetings,
meetings of the Board Committees and general meetings during the year
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ended 31 December 2024, as well as the number of such meetings held, are BE&@ZmEREAEZHER - DA KET
set out as follows: e HERIDT
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Strategic  Investment

Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General

Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EiZEE ReZBE  §MZEE BMZEE  REZEE
EZ Ezeed &3 ] &3 EE ] EE KRAg
Executive Directors Bi7EE
M Huang Wansheng (Note 1) el patia)) n 1 1 00 33 4/
Mr. Li Minbin 35 (it 1212 00 5/5 44
Ms. Liu Jiaxin (Note 2) B L (i2)
Non-Executive Director HTEs
Mr. Zhang Chi FTE 12112 44 il i 00 22 4/4
Independent BukyrEs
Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Zhao Yizi BfFfat 12112 22 4/
M. Zhang Juan LT 12112 44 2 2 44
M. Chan Manwel yeFi 12112 44 202 00 44
Notes: gz
1. Mr. Huang Wansheng was resigned as an Executive Director on 10 October 2024. 1. BEEBAER_T_NFETATEBEINTE
$ °

2. Ms. Liu Jiaxin was appointed as an Executive Director on 28 March 2025. 2. BEMEZTR T RF =A==+ \BEZEA

HITES -
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered that diversity
of board members can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits of the selected candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly
appointed Director or alternate Director would receive materials covering the
Group’s businesses and director’s duties and responsibilities. The Company
provides the Directors with market news and regulatory updates for them to
understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors participated in the
following trainings:

EFEESTILBE

EXCCRMEFTESLMBER  HPH
BEREEE LN - ARARR
AR T HEZEERESFENES T
£ BREETRNMER - Fi - XEEHK
BER HELR KRR -EFg
FIBRERABARES BRA - XHEEE
BREARAEBENROBEREZES T
LAy ES -

BEBREZEABUN-—RIZTLBRER/E
% BERETRRMER - Fik  EEK
EER HELR - AEMREF
Hi o RERTEFIZPMEREANEH LE
BAEEETRNBRMIEL -

EFRIIRERER

EEHATHESERE B2 REN
EERETESHAN LERESBENSA
AEBEXBNENREERENEE - K
REIAESREMSHMEEEREF - A
FBETREIRMARERENSHER -

BE_T-_MF+-_A=T—HLFE"
EE28H T

Directors Types of training
=23 EIER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Huang Wansheng (resigned on 10 October 2024) BEBEE (RZFWF1 A1 HET) A B
Mr. Li Minbin FHEORESE A B
Ms. Liu Jiaxin (appointed on 28 March 2025) BlERZE (R=F=—AF=A=+1H

EZ(F)
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi SRS A A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. Zhao Yizi HFEFLt AB
Ms. Zhang Juan RIBE L A B
Mr. Chan Manwell BRIE KA A B
A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HERANG R REERLRE
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, latest changes and ~ B: BIEABEAE  EMmRAIZENEHRERE -

development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, and etc.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct of the Group regarding securities transactions of
the Directors. All Directors have confirmed that throughout the year ended 31
December 2024, they have complied with the provisions of the Model Code.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company, with a term of directorship for 3 years with
effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or reelection. Upon the
expiry of the aforesaid term of 3 years, the appointments shall be subject to
the approval by the Board of the Company. The term of appointment shall be
terminable by either the Independent Non-executive Director or the Company
by giving the other party not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk management and internal control report

The Group has established and adopted the “Renze Harvest Group Risk
Management System” as a simple and effective management procedure
for all business units. Pursuant to which, risks were identified, reviewed
and prioritised to facilitate resources allocation for the appropriate risk
management. The Group has also engaged independent consultants to
conduct review of the internal control system of our business segments. The
management, through the framework, also developed clear understanding on
the material risks faced by the Group, which formed the basis for its decision
and project implementation, thereby enabling the Group to deliver better
operating results.

It is the sole responsibility of the Board to build and maintain a comprehensive
and effective risk management and internal control system for the Group
for the purpose of safeguarding shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. Such system is designed to identify and manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. This risk management and internal control
report describes the structure and major features of the risk management and
internal control system.

EERERRE

BHRXHHRLETA

R BVERA_E AR BB SR 1 PR A LT 8
TABRETESFRZNEESTA]) ([H2E
SJADERARERESETESRIIH
IRTRl- 2REFCHER REBEE-T
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BB B TR ST AR -
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Risk management structure

Based on the different functions performed by each component, the risk
management structure of the Group is organised into three basic lines of
defence under the leadership of the Board, namely the business departments
and subordinate units directly under the Group; the Risk Management

Taskforce; and the Audit Committee and internal audit.

R EERE

RIBEAKEBY BB TR AEENE
REBAMRBOAETSAETHN=8
BRI IASEEBEBHFLTE
By BRERER/NE: BRZBER
MEBEE

Functions & Duties
heERBE
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Ultimate
responsible body
BRAREEHRE

Monitoring
(third line of defence)
EEREE
(B=EBLH)

Management

(second line of defence)

EEEE
(E=ERR)

Implementation
(first line of defence)
HITREE
(B—EmBH)
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Board
£xg

Audit Committee and
Internal Audit
BEZEZEER

NEBET

Risk Management
Taskforce
R EREE /A

Business departments and

subordinate units directly
under the Group
RNEEEEFBEDFT
R TEBEN

° The right to give guidance and final decision on the
risk management system and risk response plan.

o HREHEREIRNGIEIAKERES S EETESIM
BRERER o

o To monitor the dynamics among staff, corporate
strategy, risk, internal control and compliance.

e  ERBET - K- Ak AESH - SRMZE
MBS o

° Monitor the implementation of risk management and
the timely report of outcomes to the Board.

e AFHEREEBNERBEETER  URKMES
EWMEER -

o To review the risk assessment report and review the
effectiveness of the risk management mechanism of
the Group at least once a year.

s BREBRAEmERZIEF R EERRER
Mt B A 2L

o Responsible for the establishment and optimisation
of the risk management framework of the Group and
the supervision and coordination of risk identification,
assessment, mitigation, as well as the risk
management report and presentation.

e BEEBYRTEASENEREERBR BEAER
A BREERER - R - REY - A KRER
EIRERTAE o

o To perform self-review and inspection of the risk
management work by the respective department or its
subordinate units of the Group, so as to identify and
rectify deficiencies in a timely manner.

e HAKEMREIMFRTEECNRRERETIELETE
ERER - KARF IR OE -
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Risk Management Methodology

The Group adopts the enterprise risk management framework of the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
establishing the risk management system, which illustrates the key elements
necessary for managing risks and their integration at all levels.

The top-down approach is adopted in the Group’s risk management system.
This is facilitated by strong oversight exercised by the Board of Directors, the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce in the establishment
and maintenance of the risk management policy and risk management
system. These oversight components provide leadership and guidance that
the business needs to focus, balance risk and reward and steer the Group to
the planned direction. This approach ensures clarity of the top extreme/high
risks involved in shaping the Group’s objectives and performance, supports
risk related decisions at the Board/senior management level and ensures
communication amongst the management teams. It is based on risk appetite
and broad understanding of themes.

The risk assessment comprises of five stages:
1.  Risk Identification:

Business departments that directly oversee their respective processes
should identify potential risks of their processes through daily operations,
operating and financial data analysis, changes in operations, etc. All of
the risks identified during the risk identification process should be input
into a risk inventory which summarises the risks that the Group is facing.
The risk identification process should be performed at least once a year
to take into account changes in the business environment and determine
whether adjustment to the risk inventory is required.

2. BRisk Assessment and Prioritization

Risks in the risk inventory shall be evaluated by business departments
using a predetermined assessment criteria. Both qualitative and
quantitative criteria shall be used to measure different aspects of the
risks. Ratings of 1, 2 and 3 will be assigned to the risks in the risk
inventory after completion of the assessment. Prioritization will be
performed according to the total score of the risks which indicate their
level of significance. This facilitates the determination of action plan and
timeline for mitigating the risks.
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Risk Response

The risk inventory is submitted to the Risk Management Taskforce for
review. The Risk Management Taskforce is responsible for assigning
risk owners from business departments to top risk events. The number
of risk events identified as top risks is determined by the Board, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Taskforce depending on the Group’s
overall risk appetite.

Risk owners involved in the operations of their respective processes are
responsible for formulating risk mitigation plans for the top risks assigned
to them. They should consider the risks’ impact and vulnerability when
determining the appropriate risk mitigation plan.

In generally, four types of risk responses can be adopted:

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Acceptance:

Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable based on Group’s
risk appetite and therefore no action is considered necessary.

Reduction:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial. Actions have to be taken
to reduce the impact and vulnerability to an acceptable level.

Sharing:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group cannot
effectively reduce the risks to an acceptable level by itself,
therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or shared
with other parties. Common ways of risks sharing are purchasing
of insurance, and outsourcing.

Avoidance:

Risks are so significant that there is no internal nor external
measures available to reduce the risk to an acceptable level, or the
mitigation actions are associated with unreasonably high costs.
Activities giving rise to the risks should be avoided.

Risk response should at least include the risk owners and risk mitigation
plans, reviewed and approved by the Risk Management Taskforce before
implementation.
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4. Risk Monitoring

Monitoring is a key component of the Group’s risk management system.
It enables the Board, Audit Committee, Risk Management Taskforce and
business departments to determine whether the system is functioning
effectively as they should and to ensure that risks are identified and
communicated in a timely manner to those responsible for taking
corrective action and to the Board as appropriate.

Risk owners assigned to oversee and manage a particular risk are
responsible for implementing or ensuring the implementation of risk
mitigation plan for the assigned risks.

Annual review on the risk management system should be performed. The
Risk Management Taskforce shall examine whether all of the required
information (i.e. risk event, risk mitigation plan, reporting frequency and
period, responsible department) have been filled in by the risk owners,
and have been properly supported by supporting documents or other
data if applicable.

5.  Risk Reporting

The Risk Management Taskforce shall report top risks of the year and
the corresponding risk mitigation plans to the Audit Committee and the
Board for endorsement annually. It should perform the independent
review on the risk management system and report the result to the Audit
Committee.

The above risk management system aims at managing but not eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. Furthermore, the Board will
only give reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will be no material
misrepresentation or loss.
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Review on system effectiveness

The review on effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system for 2023 covers the year ended 31 December 2024, in which
the Board has performed annual review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group through the Audit
Committee, and was of the opinion that the existing risk management
and internal control system was sufficient and effective. During the review,
the Board has reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience of the audit and financial reporting function of the Group through
the Audit Committee, and has not identified any material deficiencies. The
Board was not aware of any material issues that may affect the shareholders
and require their attention, and was of the view that the internal control of the
Group was in full compliance with all of the code provisions relating to internal
control under the Corporate Governance Code.

In conclusion, the Board strives to enhance the risk management and internal
control system of the Group on an on-going basis.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the public any insider
information as soon as possible after such information comes to the attention
of the Group, unless such information is within the scope under any safe
harbours provision in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group will
ensure such information will be kept confidential before it is fully announced
to the public. If the Group considers that the confidentiality required cannot
be kept, or such information may have leaked already, such information will
be disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to ensure that the
information contained in the annual report shall not be deceptive or misleading
in all material aspects, and there are no other material matters the omission
of which would make the information contained therein to be deceptive or
misleading, such that the insider information disclosed can be made available
to the public in an equal, timely and effective manner.

68 RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED H 28 ERER D &

EY 3080 ok 1)

“E_-FHRREERABEERGENK
B REBE T _MF+-A=+—
BILtFE EFEFECEBERERES
AAEENRAREELRAFEZERGRE
BRETERERS  URRBEANARE
BERAMEZERGRAMER - RRT8
Bh EXCCEBFERZBEEHNAR
Fest RV BERBETENER - 8T
e BEFSY TREMEMAIEFEREM
ATHINEZEH  YHREAKENA
MERETENALEBEATRITEEER
MEBEEIERY ST R ©

Rig BREATHEXREAREENAR
EIE R ABRE IR AT o

BEREHARHEBHEFNAL
ESiRiE

AEBENES MR GRGIAM LR A
BRE RAKRBANBETAZZHEER &
EEMYBEATHEEAR  gFRAAR
BEZHES - RIFFHEEERBRES LS
BRI T E AR 2B IEXANEE - NEH
ERAREERBEARBEER - SHRZ
HEBHRE - EAKERSEERE
FOHEN - HZOBERAERINE - 2B
BRARKEZBL - ROITFRDERF
BHRABNENTSERXREHEENEE
FTHBERIARENE  AFEREFH
EENEEMBERIERENE  £2OR
BETE  BRREBULIISARENAE
HE e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition, if there occurs any significant risk events, the related information
will be disclosed to appropriate authorities and personnel in a complete,
accurate and timely manner, so that appropriate decisions and measures
can be made and implemented by the Group to deal with such risk events.
Meanwhile, in order to further develop the risks management culture of the
enterprise, as well as to enhance the risk awareness of our staff, the Group
has already rolled out training programs, so that we can assure to maintain the
balance between business expansion and risk management in our operation.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that year. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made
appropriate judgement and estimates, prepared the financial statements on a
going-concern basis.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Moore CPA Limited, the
external auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
summarised as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers
of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board established a shareholders communication policy in 2014 and
made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject to review on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Group has established and maintains different communication channels
with its shareholders. Annual reports and other corporate communications are
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. General
meetings and investor meetings were held either face-to-face or via telephone
conference. The Group reports to the shareholders twice a year and maintains
a regular dialogue with investors.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company, including
email address and postal address, in order for them to make queries that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries
to the Board by these means. In addition, shareholders can contact Tricor
Investor Services Limited, the share registrar of the Company, if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend. The website
of the Company has also set out details on how shareholders can convene
an extraordinary meeting, and the procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting.

The annual general meeting provides an useful forum for shareholders to
exchange their views with the Board.

70 RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HFZ2EEBR AR D &

EFRERRINFRIERE

ARAERARRREMBARNEER
AR B FAKE RN A sEE H R
ERITE REFMSMBENEEIED
HEE R o

B B SR A0 il

BEEGR T NFBHERTBABE
WHAAR BB - KB AT SR
PR H A RUE

AEBECRYLEFTFRRBERLRRE
B FHREEMATBARTNERARR
KR8k - AREEUEHAERS
BEABTRRAGRREESH - A&
BEFRBRELDR RS - L ERER
BEHE -

ARRABRREHRBEER  BREH
iR B EF A - AR RR IR BRI A R A
RAEH o BRIV BB F T AR
EESRNER - U RRWEERE
KRB EEBEMEN - A ABK AR
MBENBFELEFEEFELARA
A RABMUEIC I A B R GRS
FIARENTTERBRRNBERAGREZES
HAEFFEVRFIB ©

BREFARESBRREHARFEHRES

P IEx =
FRMER °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS

(i

(ii)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing by the shareholder(s) to
the Secretary of the Company of not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed to convene an EGM in accordance
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves do
S0 but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
GM. The number of shareholders shall represent at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the GM.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Room 2308, 23/F, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the
“Company Secretary” no less than six weeks before the GM in case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and no less than one week
before the GM in case of any other requisitions.
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i

(iii)

XERRE

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders
concerned under applicable laws and rules.

If the requisition is verified to be not in order or the requisitionists have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purpose, the requisitionists will be advised of the result and
accordingly, no action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may make enquiries or direct concerns to the Board in
writing by addressing for the attention of the “Company Secretary” by
mail at Room 2308, 23/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The

auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the

auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Chi
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of Renze Harvest International Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Renze Harvest
International Limited (formerly known as Glory Sun Financial Group Limited)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
82 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Assessment of valuation of investment properties
Refer to notes 4.7, 5(b)(v) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the assessment of valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position and the significant estimates involved in the
determination of the fair value of these properties. The Group’s investment
properties amounted to approximately HK$4,919,531,000, representing
49.5% of the Group’s total assets, as at 31 December 2024 and a fair value
loss of approximately HK$280,741,000 was recognised in the fair value loss
on investment properties in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year.

Management has engaged independent professional valuers (the “IP
Management Expert”) to assist the management in performing the valuation
of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the reporting period.
Valuations of the Group’s investment properties are dependent on certain key
inputs and assumptions that require significant management judgement. The
valuation was inherently subjective due to the significant estimates used and
significant changes in these estimates could result in material changes to the
fair value of the investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Assessment of valuation of investment properties (Continued)
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the valuation of
the investment properties included:

— Understanding the managements process for reviewing and evaluating
the work of the IP Management Expert;

—  Evaluating the independence, competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the IP Management Expert;

—  Obtaining an understanding from the IP Management Expert about
the valuation techniques, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted in the valuations; and

—  Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist in evaluating the
valuation performed by the IP Management Expert, including the
reasonableness of significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy of
the source data adopted by the management of the Group and the IP
Management Expert by comparing them, on a sample basis, to existing
tenancy profiles, market data for a selection of investment properties,
publicly available information of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry.

Assessment of net realisable value of inventories of
properties

Refer to notes 4.12, 5(b)(vi), 21, 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the assessment of net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the Group’s
inventories of properties as a key audit matter due to the significant estimates
involved in the determination of the NRV of these properties. As disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had properties under
development of HK$1,597,328,000 and completed properties held for sale of
HK$777,221,000 respectively (collectively the inventories of properties) as at
31 December 2024, which are situated in the Peoples’ Republic of China (the
“PRC").
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Assessment of net realisable value of inventories of
properties (Continued)

The management of the Group determined the NRV of the inventories of
properties by reference to the estimated selling prices of the inventories of
properties, which takes into account a number of factors including prevailing
real estate market conditions in the PRC, estimated costs to completion, and
costs necessary to make the sales. Based on management’s estimation of the
NRV of the inventories of properties, a write-down of inventories of properties
amounting to approximately HK$151,329,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the appropriateness of assessing NRV of the
inventories of properties included:

— Obtaining an understanding on the managements process of
determining of the NRV of the inventories of properties;

— Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future costs to
completion of the properties, on a sample basis, by comparing it to the
actual development cost of similar completed properties of the Group;

—  Comparing the estimated selling expenses to be incurred which is
estimated based on a certain percentage of selling price with the actual
average selling expenses to revenue ratio of the Group in recent years;
and

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated selling prices used by
management with reference to market prices achieved in the same
projects or by comparable properties, including an evaluation of the
appropriateness of the comparable properties used by management of
the Group based on our knowledge of the Group’s business and real
estate industry in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables

Refer to notes 4.10(ii), 5(b)(iii), 23, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified the impairment assessment of loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables of the Group’s as a key audit matter due to
the significant estimates involved in the determination of the loss allowance for
expected credit losses (‘ECL”) of these receivables. As at 31 December 2024,
the Group had loans and advances, trade receivables and other receivables
of approximately HK$147,301,000, HK$268,160,000 and HK$188,867,000,
respectively after loss allowance for ECL of approximately HK$698,983,000,
HK$14,635,000 and HK$63,489,000 respectively.

Management performed the assessment on the recoverability of the loans
and advances, trade receivables, other receivables and the sufficiency of
loss allowance for ECL. Assessment on the recoverability of certain loans
and advances, trade receivables, other receivables and the sufficiency of
the related loss allowance for ECL are performed with the assistance of an
independent professional valuer (the “ECL Management Expert”).

In carrying out impairment assessment on loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables under the ECL model, significant
management judgement was used to determine the underlying estimations.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the managements impairment assessment of
loans and advances, trade receivables and other receivables included:

—  Assessing whether the loans and advances, trade receivables and other
receivables had been appropriately grouped by management based on
their shared credit risk characteristics;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, which includes
the identification of credit-impaired stage, probability of default, loss
given default, exposure at default, used by management and the ECL
Management Expert to develop the historical loss rates and assessing
the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of that data;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables (Continued)

Our response: (Continued)

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of methodology in determining the historical loss rates
on certain loans and advances, trade receivables and other receivables;

—  Assessing the reasonableness and relevancy of the external information
used by the Group as the forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government bodies and
monetary authorities, such as Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) growth
rates and Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) rates;

—  Testing the calculation of ECL provisions by applying the ECL rates
to the respective categories of the loans and advances and trade
receivables outstanding at the reporting date; and

—  Evaluating the independence, competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the ECL Management Expert and auditor’s expert.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

78 RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED H2EERER D &

@ ER )

BREEZ - BT 7ERRH
FEE MSe R TR Bk (B BT 4 (%)

i

HEPIRyCIfE - (&)

—  BREZEMEBRGHRERFIFEITER
EEY  AEEETERRBR &
W B 55 iR R S EL At B A Pl TR B PR S U

BE

— HEESBEEBESAELEERNI
MERMAEERA@LE  BRERE
PR B E B AT E M e B IR )
BB - PlInEAEEREERERE
EEBREHLER

- ZBRERBAHREERRXE=REAN
RAEEERRBFIALK Y E F IR
MER DR FHEEREEERE
(=SS

- HMEERBEERREEBEREEH
MEREEEYL - BIE - REAHEE
N RHEZENE -

Hft{ig2

BERAEFAHAMESRER - AMES
BRFHRANEE ETEREAMBER
KRB PIZBERE -

BPESEEBRERNELL NEEEM
EE AT T HZFEMESEREM
ARERER °

FBARMERAMBERROES - BN
BEERMEEMES  EIEES BE
HipZ R R B BEAMBHRRARMES
FEBIETAT T M BERFEEANEERE
UFFEEANHERBRAAER o R
ERTHTIE RRMBSEMBEST
EEAERRL  RPRERELFE -
REHE - BYRBEEAIRS -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hung Wan Fong Joanne

Practising Certificate Number: P05419

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEHEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE—Z-MF+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue e

Cost of sales SHERA

Gross profit EF

Other gains/(losses) — net Hipz (&18) - F58
Other income EmugA

Fair value loss on investment properties "EMEZ N EBE

Recovery of impairment losses on financial g —ERBAREEN SR
assets arising from acquisition of a subsidiary & E R EEE YD
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition Wi — R B A R EAERRE

of a subsidiary BE WS
Impairment losses on financial assets and EMEERGNEENRE
contract assets — net [E518 - 558
Write-down of inventories of properties WRMEFE
Distribution costs 3 SHPK AR
Administrative expenses 1TIE R
(Loss)/profit from operations RELEEKEHN (BER) RF
Finance costs — net B FSAS - JFRE
Share of results of associates i NG O E
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATERAT (B518) B R
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfife, (FAx)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)wR
(Loss)/profit attributable to: A4S (B518) %57
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZEDN
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A
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2024 2023

—EME —T-=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FEx FHT
6 1,142,968 740,268

(780,130) (601,688)

362,838 138,580

7 28,783 (7,391)

7 4,606 15,218

16 (280,741) (20,704)
23(b) - 259,117
41 = 550,515

8 (20,839) (382,958)

(151,329) (170,009)

(43,563) (20,121)

(217,669) (244,617)

8 (317,914) 117,630

10 (59,741) (31,061)

17 (12,235) (18,472)
(389,890) 68,097

12 70,300 (12,816)
8 (319,590) 55,281
(227,171) 102,497

39(a) (92,419) (47,216)
(319,590) 55,281




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-mE ol =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B E FET TR

(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EBE),wR (319,590) 55,281

Other comprehensive (expense)/income: Ht2E (%) Wk :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: FJE# B E1EasmEE -

Currency translation differences BEME =T (146,228) (147,273)
Share of other comprehensive income/ SEEE AT EMEEkE
(expense) of associates (FX) 17 11,147 (19,984)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or T B EF 7 A Z Bz A

loss: EA -
Net changes in the fair value of equity B AZEATEFAEMEZE

instruments designated at fair value through Ui s5EY#E %S T B A F(E

other comprehensive income FE ) (924) (52,937)
Other comprehensive expense FREMZERMEX

for the year (136,005) (220,194)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREHEMAS A5 (455,595) (164,913)

Total comprehensive expense for the year G FEA R EEH A% :

attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZE DN (430,095) (57,667)
Non-controlling interests AR 39(a) (25,500) (107,246)
(455,595) (164,913)
HK cents HK cents
7l il

(Loss)/earnings per share R (B1R) 2R

— Basic and diluted - EARREE 14 (8.48) 4.74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR R

31 December 2024
—EZNF+=ZA=+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Finance lease receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Loans and advances

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Finance lease receivables

Amount due from related companies

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Current tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Client trust bank balances

Pledged bank deposits and
restricted deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

BERAME
FRBEE

E R I
BREME

BV AE
REFE R RIIRE
BRAFERTAEM

EHUENERHEE

BEME RUYIR
EEHREE

RBEE

&

E3EGkES
BEETREMEME
ERRER
U E Z R
BREE

B E S WA

& W BB 2 R OR
FBIRIR &%&
H it & WK IR
AU Bl BN EATR IR
BAFEF AR
TREE

B {ERERITRAR
BEHEMRITER R
KR HITFR
ReMREEEY

HERE
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2024 2023

—EME —T-=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FEx FHT
15 351,704 479,882
16 4,919,531 5,465,774
18 133,356 151,199
17 = 97,529
19 23,312 38,076
29(b(ii) 245 840
33 19,242 19,662
5,447,390 6,252,962

20 48,189 48,652
21 1,597,328 1,600,065
22 777,221 1,284,471
23 147,301 132,339
24 268,160 80,432
25(a) 17,445 14,344
29(b(ii) 8,348 1,113
= 497,860

26 290,154 340,250
36,304 38,893

27 198,353 141,807
28 169,812 132,285
28 146,073 515,367
28 777,707 562,293
4,482,395 5,390,171

9,929,785 11,643,133




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes
BT
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables ENE SRR LENEE 30
Contract liabilities aHaE 25(b)
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R E M FE R FRIE 31
Borrowings - 32
Lease liabilities HEaE 29(a)
Current tax liabilities BIHATR B B &
Net current assets REBEETFHE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS
Non-current liabilities ERBARG
Other payables H e ERIE 31
Borrowings BE 32
Lease liabilities HEaE 29(a)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 33
Total liabilities BERE
NET ASSETS EEFRE
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 34
Reserves (] 35
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 282 &8 AFE(G RS
Non-controlling interests R
TOTAL EQUITY B

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 258 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2025 and were

signed on its behalf:

Li Minbin
FHOR

Director

EF

e B R R

31 December 2024
—ENFE+=ZA=+—H

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
1,066,430 1,119,629
416,881 530,471
653,232 473,242
1,276,997 1,090,562
2,154 1,278
192,220 189,300
3,607,914 3,404,482
874,481 1,985,689
6,321,871 8,238,651
13,623 13,921
332,896 632,831
2,834 1,442
382,229 491,205
731,582 1,139,399
4,339,496 4,543,881
5,590,289 7,099,252
26,800 26,800
5,066,839 5,050,827
5,093,639 5,077,627
496,650 2,021,625
5,590,289 7,099,252

FREFBEAZHFANBHRRER-Z
“REZA-t/N\BEEFSHENRE
TEL B TINEEHARE

Liu Jiaxin
ZIEmM

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAERARRE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other
comprehensive Non-
Share Share Merger Capital Statutory QOther income  Exchenge Retained controling
capta premium eserve eserve eserve eserve Tesere eanings eamings Sub-fotal inferests Total
RATETA
EerEks
HemEE
BE  RbaE  aMEE  EZRE iR HMRE Bh  ENEN REEA Nt FERER &
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
Tikn Th Th Th T T T T T T Tk Th
At1 January 2023 R-SZ=E-f-A 318751 3206781 (215,150 12411 139,332 (0214 (2558691) (111768 1203430 4804882 36542 5111424
Profi/oss)for the year ERigfl/ (58) - = - - - - - - R 104 (47.216) 5281
Net change infai value of ety ATEAARMZE
instruments at fairvalue thiough AR TER
other comprehensiveincome. - AFEZHFE = - - - - - (52,987) - - (52937) - (52,987)
Share of other comprehensie  AEEEDFEMZE
income of associates sy = - - - - (19,984) - - - (19.984) - (19.984)
Cumency ranaton diferences  £%#EEE - - - - - - - (67.24) - @24 003 (147279
Total other comprehensive ~ Eft2EHZAE
expense - - - - - (19,984) (52.937) (67,242 - (160,163) (60,031) (220,194
Total comprehensive 2 (B3 /h#4E
(expense)/income - - - - - (19,984) (62,937) 87,242 102,497 (67,666) (107,247) (164913)
Reduction of captal upon captl  EAEABA A
reorganisation (note 34(a) (Fida) (3,123,067) - - - - - - - 3128057 - - -
Pacing of newshares, netof ~~ EEEFTR KRS
tansactoncosts (vote 34l) AR (I 34) 11,106 319,305 - - - - - - - 3041 - 304t
Acoisiton of a subsidiry (ote R —FBAR
4) (HEa1) - = = = = - - - - - 18230 18230
Tansferof esene toretained W ERATEFA
eamings pon disposal of Afp2EkGmNES
equity nstuments atfarvalie  TAKEEEET
through other comprehensive  (REEF
income - - - - - - 58,374 - (68,374) - - -
At 31 December 2023 it k3
tZB=t-H 2680 3586086 (215,150) 12411 130,332 (0199 (2653254 (199010) 4370810 507787 2021825 709925
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+_A=+—HIFE

At1 January 2024

Loss for the year

Release of FVOC! reserve to retained

eamings

Net change in far value of equy
nstruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive
ncome of associates

Currency translation difierences

Total other comprehensive
income/(expense)

Total comprehensive income/
(expenses)

Further acouistion of a subsiciary
(note 38(a)
Disposal of subsiciaries

At 31 December 2024

R-%-mE-A-R

EnER

BREDTERAZ0E
ENERRERAEN

BATEIALNEE
hEHEETEY
ATEESTR

AEBEATRNEE
Lt

EHAEEE

Eh2EkE/ (X4
#

2/ (%) 48

E-SHE-HNER
7l Hit3ea)
HERBAA

R-B=mE
+zA=t+-A

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOTRBARE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other
comprehensive Non-
Share Share Merger Capital  Statutory Other income  Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings eamnings  Sub-total interests
BRATETA
Afp2EhE
HEMEE
Ba  RHEE  AKEE fie REEA FERER
HK'000 HK000 HK000 HK'000 HK'000 HK000
TR TR TR ThR TR TR
26,800 3,586,086 (215,150) 1241 139,332 (00,198) (2,553,254 (199,010) 4,370,610 5,011,621 2,021,625 7,099,252
- - - - - - - - @) ) 92419 (319,590
- = = = = - 99,634 - (99,634) - - =
- - - - - - (924) - - (924 - (924)
- - - - - 11,147 - - - 11,147 - 11,147
- = = = = - - (213,141) - (213,141) 66,919 (146,229
- - - - - 11,147 98,710 (213,147) (0634 (0204 6919 (136,009
- = = = = 11,147 9,710 [@13,041) (36805  (430,095) (25500 (455,595
- - - - - 448,560 - - - MB560 (1499475 (1,050915)
- (309) (100) - - (2208) - (é11) 575 (2459) - (2459)
26,800 3,585,777 (215,250) 12411 139,332 367,301 (2,454 544) (412,568) 4,044,380 5,093,639 496,650 5,590,289
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l_\ /EI\ EE ﬁjﬁ % '13«%
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HIFE
2024 2023
—E_OE —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BfaE FExT FHBT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations e (FTA) /FiBRE 40(a) (125,676) 158,835
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded (B B EFEFIESFH (656) 1,507
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EAEH (32,511) (22,662)
Net cash (used in)/generated from LR (T FiEBEEF
operating activities ] (158,843) 137,680
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENRERE
Additions of property, plant and equipment  AEWE - HRE & RE (11,993) (2,024)
Payment for construction costs of investment 3% & 1) % s A 78 < 5008
properties (36,574) (159,765)
Acquisition of investment properties WIS B % (36,728) (130,517)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income WaEHEmMmEE - (2,850)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed HEMB AR - IR HE
Re = (618)
Proceeds received from disposal of property, HEWE - ME kRS
plant and equipment KIE 15 53,176 1,108
Proceeds received from disposal of BEZRATEFAEMEE
financial assets at fair value through other Wa=r e BB E S RIE
comprehensive income 105,933 24,659
Proceeds received from disposal of financial &R ATFET ABFHN LR
assets at fair value through profit and loss BEFTSFIA - 10,653
Proceeds received from disposal of investment & & ¥ 3 FriS 18
properties - 67,570
Proceed from disposal of subsidiary HEKTE AR TS HIE 11,862 =
Interest received BHFIE 71,049 84,549
Dividend received from other investments BUEMIEERE = 65
Net cash inflows arising from the acquisition of 4 & — &R B8 & & A &Y
a subsidiary REMAFE 41 2,742 3,525
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits B X IFERITER R Z R HIER
and restricted deposits (3 ) 369,294 (472,867)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZTE S (FTH)HES
investing activities R 528,761 (576,512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-IMEF —E=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Likzs FET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities BETHELENRERE
Drawdown of bank borrowings and other REVRITEE REMER
loans 40(b) 609,993 1,244,995
Repayments of bank borrowings and other ~ Ei8IR1T{EE R HMEFK
loans 40(b) (649,621) (884,101)
Repayment of principal portion on lease EEHEaELrSEY
liabilities 40(p) (2,261) (1,784)
Repayment of interest portion on lease EEEEAENEHD
liabilities 40(b) (279) (452)
Proceeds from issuance of corporate bonds ~ 31T7A RIEHF 1S RUE 40(b) 290,000 313,000
Interest paid BERFE 40(b) (146,190) (77,933)
Settlement of corporate bonds HEENRESF 40(b) (313,000) (341,000)
Proceeds from placement of shares, net of  BLERRMAFIERIE @ HBX 5
transaction costs A 40(b) - 330,411
Net cash (used in)/generated financing  BE ZE (FiH), ~ Friig
activities B FE (211,358) 583,136
Net increase in cash and ReERRESEEY
cash equivalents EHNFEE 158,560 144,304
Cash and cash equivalents at FPRERBEEEY
beginning of year 562,293 486,342
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERSEHSE 56,854 (68,353)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRBEERELZLEY 28 777,707 562,293

Annual Report =} 2024 89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI‘Ii\

B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B

90

ST -NNF+=-A=

HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Renze Harvest International Limited (formerly known as Glory Sun
Financial Group Limited) (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business is Room 2308, 23/F., China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(@) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments to
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED H 28 ERER A &

—BEH
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EWEARGEIAEEH])ERA=
HERBHESHEENE2FRF]
FE(—NR—FEH = BEFERE
R MK REREERAR - K
#T i 3% = B Hb 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1 — 1111, Cayman Islands
REFELEMEB /BB EFEEE
26 55 B AE 231 2308 E ©
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NE)Z EBEBEHNEGE M TSREM
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AARRDREBHERBHERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. WEEH 2

(b) MERFRHREEE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in
associates.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 5.

RE-—Z-mE+-A=+—
A 1L A B B % 845
AR A RENE AR (5 [
£ ) RAEERBE A A
s -

K’EIX, %E’Jﬁﬁkiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁz

Z&/}@”&%MEMU%E%E%D
FTE e SRAMBHRRTIAE T
(BT 25 BrLAXRRAT
RIDIRE R 25| & -

RIBE B H WS AR R
BwmERE  EEERFLTE
BERERANEZREE - &
&~ WA R i 32 2 BR A H
at R - % Fha KAk
BROERNBELREBER
BREBATEAENZIHEAM
RAEEL - RERBREEK
Hi KRS RSNEENE
BEREEFELHEOER - B
BRAERAIRER BN FhaT o

Eiiﬁn‘f&ﬁﬁaﬁ?&/;ﬁ%*%

o W EHhETHBEIERE
f'%%ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁ Bl & A 5% B
MRS EETHIEE] WA
ISR o 2 I KR R HAR -
Bl mME 5T R AR I oK 2R A 8
R EFTAEET ©

EIRELIE R M B RREX
EARFENBEV B HmEER
PiT 1 & 78 B8 H B I A 5t T BARA
AEMNEEFRRENHMES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

3.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

Except for the below, the application of the above amendments
and HKFRSs has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior periods and/or
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. BIMEBMEHREEN(E

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BMEEEEN]) @)
3.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily 3.1 FFREEFIENZIEERT
effective for the current year (Continued) FEHEMEREEN &)

Impacts on adoption of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
#2022 Amendments”)

The Group has adopted the amendments for the first time in
current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities
as current or non-current, which specify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that
are in existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i) What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

(i)  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period;

@iy  That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
entity will exercise its deferral right; and

(iv)  That only if an option at the discretion of the counterparty
included in the terms of a convertible liability is itself an
equity instrument in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instrument: Presentation would not affect the current or non-
current classification of the liability.

HRAEBETERIFE 15 (15
X)) RBHFEREBEES
BURBEBEZBESH (—F
—FEF) 2T ([ —F
ZEFBETA ) REBE
ERIE 158 (55T F) iR
ANFRBEE(—F==
FIEETE)) &

AEERAFEERERZE

4T -

R _THREIAREHEE
RFFAREMBE MRS
5l RS EMEEL+ @
ARKBABELSBRRBKIER
g ETREEHABESERM
BIERBEERREHRRE
FHENEN - RBME  %F

ERTARS -

) HFELTEHEEENDX
=

(i) FEHSEEENDAERS
HRELFE

(i)

(v) MRIBEFBGFTEREI2HR
TRMIA: 2% RAR
AER A E KD BEN
HBF 7 BIB R IR
FRERAIAR  H
HIrerEREIBAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B = —

ToE+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

94

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

3.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on adoption of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
%2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants
with which an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed only after
the reporting date. Covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date do not affect the classification of a liability
as current or non-current at the reporting date.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if an
entity classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those liabilities
is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its liabilities
as at 1 January 2023 and 1 January 2024 and concluded that the
classification of its liabilities as current or non-current remained
unchanged upon initial adoption of the amendments. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amendments to
HKFRSs, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2024 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These developments include

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
RTIEHRZ
BHRBNEFE
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Amendments to HKAS 21

BEASFTERE 21 5% (BET4)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

BAMBEMEERE IR R
BN MEERZE 75
(fE5TA)

Amendments to IFRS 9 and
IFRS 7

BUFR B T e 5 A R SE 9 5 %
BUFR B RS 3R A2 RIEE 7 5%
(EETA)

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

BB wEER SR
(&3T7AR)

IFRS 18

BUFR B T 3 5 2RI 5 18 5%

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

BRI TS e S AR RIEE 1058 J2
RSt AERIFE 28 5%

SCHEN)

Lack of Exchangeability
A= Al

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments

EMTEASBENTEZER

Contracts Referencing Nature — dependent Electricity

KEEARERNENEL

Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards-

Volume 11

BIFR B 5 3R S R SRR F R G - 5 11 fff

Presentation and Disclosure in financial Statements

iR 25 MK E

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

1 January 2025
—E-hE—H—H
1 January 2026

—ZE-RF—A—H

1 January 2026

—E-RF—A—H

1 January 2026
—ERF-HA—H
1 January 2027

—FT-+%—A—H

To be determined

its Associate or Joint Venture
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

96

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

3.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure of Financial
Statements

This standard introduces the following three sets of new
requirements to improve entities’ reporting of financial performance
and give investors a better basis for analysing and comparing
entities:

o Presentation of new defined subtotals in the statement of
profit or loss;

o Disclosures about management-defined performance
measures; and

° Enhanced requirements for grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) of information.

HKFRS 18 supersedes HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. Requirements in HKAS 1 that are unchanged have
been transferred to HKFRS 18 and other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027 with earlier application permitted. The Group is still currently
assessing the impact that HKFRS 18 will have on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4. FEMBRERZREHEER
EXERFERH

41 RESHRIGESELE

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and assets
meets the definition of a business and control is transferred to
the Group. In determining whether a particular set of activities
and assets is a business, the Group assesses whether the set of
assets and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has the ability
to produce outputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.1

98

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
such non-controlling interests share of subsequent changes in
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary (except for disposal
of subsidiaries by way of distribution in specie by the Company,
where the disposed subsidiaries are ultimately under control of the
same parties before and after the distribution), the gain or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the Company.
Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power over the investee, (i)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (i)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements of control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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4.

100

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors interests in the associate. The investors share in the
associates profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

4. FEMBRERZREHEER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4.5 Goodwill 45 B

Where the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirers previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash- generating
units (“CGU(s)”) that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see note 4.17), and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any good
will allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.6

102

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction- in-
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
and equipment includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Ownership interests in land and
buildings held for own use

20-40 years

Shorter of assets
expected useful lives and

Leasehold improvement

lease term

Furniture and fixtures and office 2-10 years
equipment

Machinery and factory equipment 2-10 years

Computer equipment 2-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Shorter of assets
expected useful lives and
lease term

LLand and properties leased for own use
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the assets estimated recoverable
amount. The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when
there is a change in use. If an investment property becomes
owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.8 Leases

0]

As a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is
of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and
leases for which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4. FEMERRZEREER
BEXEHBREH 2

4.8 Leases (Continued) 4.8 HE #)

(i) As alessee (Continued) (i) ERAEFEAE)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of a leasehold land and buildings
held for own use, they are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in “property, plant and
equipment”.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continuead)
4.8 Leases (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (i)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modification, or to reflect revised in substance fixed
lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. An equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.8 Leases (Continued)

(i

As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of
a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one
or more additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for the additional
rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as
a separate lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an
extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets
being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the
right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With
the exception to which the practical expedient for Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use asset
are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial or
full termination of the lease with any difference recognised
in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted
to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with the
modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

(i)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.8 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease
that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the
lease are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group
accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising
the remaining lease payments as income on a either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
remaining lease term. The Group applies the derecognition
requirements of HKFRS 9 to recognise modification or
derecognition gain or loss on the net investment in the
finance lease.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as follows:

Contractual customer relationships 7 years
License Indefinite
Trademarks and patents 3-10 years
Other intangible assets 5-8 years

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 4.17).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the
extent of its revaluation surplus.

(i)

(ii)
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

110

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the

transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows

are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its

debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL EXEBERHE =)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
4.10Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.10&MT R &)
(i) Financial assets (Continued) () =Z@EEE)
Debt instruments (Continued) EELA (&)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent

WEHKAGTE - B
BHReRMEABLER

solely payments of principal and interest are measured MERZNARSFFE
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are BB E R HRC R GT B o
subsequently measured using the effective interest method. REHEKAGTENERE

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investments fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised in

profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4.10Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.10&MT R &)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(i) ZMEERERFR(E)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12 months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such
as realising security (if any is held); or the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on
terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4.10Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.10&MT R &)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

(i) ZMEERERFR(E)

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization; or

° the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

116

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair

value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
bills payables, accruals and other payables, lease liabilities
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest

expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at
FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 4.10(ji); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

(vi)

(vii)

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

4. FEMBRERZREHEER
EXEBRFERH @)

4.10&MT R &)

HBERERN

B IS HE(R G 4 T0 IR TE 31T
ABFFEAINETS
B MEREABRE
EEFARERIBES T
BRI sk FT IR E
HRMRmEZBLNE
4 o AAREEBEITHIIE
e BEAFE AR
RIS IER A TR
FERBETHBERELD
MWEEBERSEAT I
R o MFHERE - A&
EiR TS EER &
EMBHEREL : ()EE
BEcE NBRBEWE
410() FTE TR T 2
WIEHEEEERE &
(ii) ¥ 2 7 3R & B (1R 3@
B)REESMHHREE
BIIZE 1557 AY IR BIFERR Y R
AT EESH -

AU TER

EEREREEZRKR
EREZANRENER
AETHEELDERE
HENAEAYBREE
A1 55 9 57 15 7€ B9 BIUH FE AR
R - RIS B EUH HERR
SEREE °

EHREOTRE BT
FERR ~ BUHSKEME - B
HERERARE -

Annual Report F3 2024 117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

s — 5 —
BE_=_

mE+—-_A=1+—HILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.10Financial Instruments (Continued)

(viii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

4.11 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

4.12Properties under development and properties

118

held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the anticipated sales
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land,
development costs, borrowing costs and other direct costs
attributable to the development of such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4.13Revenue recognition 4134 TR

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

120

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period between
the payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when the automated
production related products are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the
customers accepted goods. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the
sale of automated production related products provides
customers a right of return (a right to exchange another
product). These rights of return do not allow the returned
goods to be refund in cash. The right of return gives rise
to variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The
application of the constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that will be deferred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells residential and commercial
properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the
property has been transferred to the customer.

The properties have generally no alternative use for the Group
due to contractual restrictions. However, an enforceable right
to payment does not arise until the control has passed to the
customer. Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when customer obtains control of completed properties. The
control is transferred when the buyer obtains the physical
possession of the completed property.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.

Commission and brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income on dealings in securities
and futures contracts are recognised as revenue when the
relevant transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

(i)

(iii)
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4.

122

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective

interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

(v) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

(vi) Others
- Management fee income and performance fee income

are recognised when services are rendered.

- Installation income and maintenance income are
recognised when services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued) 4131 22 (&)
(vi) Others (Continued) (vi) Bt (&)

- Revenue arising from property management services — UEBTBEBRBES
is recognised in the accounting period in which the B U AT R 4 AR 7S
services are rendered. The Group bills the customers M2 HEER -
for each month of service provided and recognises as REE SRR
revenue in the amount to which the Group satisfies e ARNEFHA
performance obligations by transferring the services to BREE . WEAEH
its customers. BARNEREFEE

fR7mEITEH &
BIESERRE
I zs o
For property management services income from HReBHEEN
properties managed under lump sum basis, where MEMBYHEER
the Group acts as principal and is primary responsible fREWAME + &
for providing the property management services to SEEREXEA
the property owners, the Group recognises the fee FE2EEFEMEER
received or receivable from property owners as its HYEETERY -
revenue and all related property management costs as REE KB Wk E
its cost of service. For property management services WHEFHEBERAER
income from properties managed under commission Bl WA
basis, the Group only recognises the commission, HEMESIEKAK
which is calculated by fixed percentage of the costs BREBRBEKA o
involved in the management of the property units, as HREHEED
its revenue. MEB Y EEIER
BWA - RNEEE
R E BN E B
BRAAKEE B S
TEHNAEBERA
WA o

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to — REWAERLR

receive the dividend is established. BIERER IR
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

124

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vi) Others (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group ’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group has the right
to consideration under the contracts with customer from
the sale of automated production related products but not
billed because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s
future performance in achieving specified milestones at the
reporting date on the product certification. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
4.14Income taxes 414 RGN

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of the
business combination which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits and at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arises from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business combination
that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period, and reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.14Income taxes (Continued)

126

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement in determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 Investment Property. Unless the presumption is rebutted,
the deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., GEMBHRRCEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEXEHEEH &
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.15Foreign currency 4.15 M8

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than
the currency of the primary economic environment in which it/they
operate(s) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income,
in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities separate financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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4.

128

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.15Foreign currency (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss

as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange

reserve.
4.16 Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services

are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving

the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.17 Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the following assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets; and

° investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit (see note 4.5),
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.18 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.19 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

4.20Client trust bank balances

130

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising
from normal business transactions. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as client trust bank balances under the current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as the
Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest income on the
clients’ monies and recognised corresponding accounts payable
to the respective customers in the current liabilities clients on
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’
monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571), the Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to
settle its own obligation.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

4.21 Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and
the Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets
and any gains or losses arising thereon are not included in these
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no contractual
rights to these assets and its gains or losses under fiduciary
activities.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(@) Critical judgements

(i)

Assessment of fund investments as structured
entities

Management has assessed whether the funds in which
it invests should be classified as structured entities.
Management has considered the voting rights and other
similar rights afforded to investors in these funds, including
the rights to remove the fund manager or redeem holdings.
Judgement is made on an individual investment in each fund
where the Group has ownership interest or acts as fund
manager or both. Management has evaluated whether these
rights of investors are the dominant factor in controlling the
funds, or whether the contractual agreement with the fund
manager is the dominant factor in controlling these funds.
Management concluded that the Group had control over the
funds.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M EE
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

132

(Continued)
(@) Criti

(ii)

cal judgements (Continued)
Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time rather than through sale whereas those situated
in the Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC”) are held under
such a business model. Therefore, the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted for properties situated in the
PRC but is not rebutted for properties situated in Hong Kong.
As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of these investment properties
located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any
income tax on disposal of these investment properties.
The presumption that the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC is to recover through sale
rather than through use has been rebutted and deferred tax
on the changes in fair value is recognised according to the
relevant tax rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(@) Critical judgements (Continued)
(iij) Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgements include determining whether the
Group is acting as the principal in a transaction. The Group
is a principal in a transaction if the Group obtains control
of the products sold or services provided before they are
transferred to customers. If control is unclear, when the
Group is primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and selecting
suppliers, or has several but not all of these indicators, the
Group records revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the
Group records the net amount earned as commissions from
products sold or services provided.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, other key sources estimation uncertainty that have a
significant risk of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial period are as
follows:
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5.

134

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

5. EEEHIERRAAEE
HHEERIER2)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) EERIFREMZERRKE

/43 )
(n5/

0]

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of the reporting period. The property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated to its
respective CGUs. Management judgement is required in
the area of asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i)
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal or value in use; and (i) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$351,704,000
(2023: HK$479,882,000), after taking into account
the accumulated depreciation and impairment loss of
approximately HK$113,589,000 (2023: HK$176,095,000)
that have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to its respective CGUs.
Management judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the carrying
amount of an CGU can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of goodwill
is approximately HK$133,060,000 (2023: HK$147,958,000)
(net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$14,898,000
(20283:nil)). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18(a).

Impairment allowances of financial assets and
contract assets

The measurement of impairment losses of financial assets
and contract assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

136

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Impairment allowances of financial assets and

(iv)

contract assets (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. The information about the ECL
and the Group’s financial assets and contract assets are
disclosed in note 44.1(b).

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in PRC. There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. EESHAERAARETE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY MREERIE =
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) fEEIAREMZERRE

(%)

(iv) Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

(iv) EBIRjH1E R AL HE 5

(Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (‘LAT”) in the
PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of these
taxes varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the land appreciation and its related taxes.
The Group recognises these LAT based on managements
best estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules, by using a single best estimate of the most likely
outcome approach. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have been
finalised with local tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

L7 — 5 —
=

ME+—_RA=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

138

(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
a method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation
are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair values
of the Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of investment
properties is approximately HK$4,919,531,000 (2023:
HK$5,465,774,000).

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. EESHAERAARETE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY MHEERE2)
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) fEEIAREMZERRE

(#)
=4

(vi) Net realisable value of inventories of properties

(i) YEFELTEEFEE

Included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2024 is inventories of properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,374,549,000 (2023: HK$2,884,536,000), which is
stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the subject properties, the directors of
the Company determine the net realisable value of the
underlying properties by reference to the estimated market
prices of the properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, which takes into account a number
of factors including the recent selling price of the properties
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC.
If the actual net realisable values of the underlying inventories
of properties are more or less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development costs, material reversal of or write-
down may result. The directors of the Company estimate the
costs to completion and costs necessary to make the sale
by reference to the actual development cost of other similar
completed projects of the Group.

BE_Z_MNFE+ = A
=+ —ANKRET BN
RETHE - METFENRE
M 8 49 A 2,374,549,000
BT = = F:
2,884,536,000/8 7T ) * £
LAPK 2 B2 AT 8435 SR E R &
FREEETS]R - BB
NAIEEMEHRRARE
ENHEE  AAREES
ERRPYENBEIHE
EHEWENHTTE -
WEERAEMEBEYER
S EBUKFBEIRITE
HETISARN - R EHE R
V¥R A IR EEFE -
MM e) & R IBE %
BERALBEEAZESHMS
EHEMEGTECER I #
BERESRRERTER -
B, B N E A B O i
e RABEEIZRER
EEEMBEURTIEE 2
BB R AR IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Do = —

BHEx_—_=_

6.

140

mE+—-_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that make
strategic decisions.

The reportable segments were classified as follows:

Automation segment represents the trading of automated
production related equipment trading business in Hong Kong and
the PRC;

Financial Services segment represents regulated business activities
in respective to financial services under the Hong Kong Securities
and Future Ordinance (SFO) in Hong Kong;

Property Investment and Development segment represents the
properties investment activities, property development project,
hotel and restaurant operations and provision of construction
works in Hong Kong and the PRC; and

Securities Investment segment represents the investment activities
through direct investments in listed and unlisted securities.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The revenue from external parties is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Revenue from Automation segment are derived from the sales of
automated production related products net of returns and installation
and maintenance income. Revenue from Securities Investment segment
is derived from realised and unrealised gains/(losses) of financial
assets at FVTPL. Revenue from Financial Services segment includes
commission and brokerage income on dealings in securities, interest
income from money lending, management fee and performance fee
income from financial services. Revenue from Property Investment and
Development segment is derived from the sale of properties, rental
income and property management income.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of operations, which is in a manner consistent with that
of the consolidated financial statements. The measurement of segment
results excludes the effect of unallocated corporate income and
expenses, as these type of activities are managed by central finance and
accounting function, which manages the working capital of the Group.
In addition, share of results of associates, impairment losses on financial
assets and contract assets, gain on bargain purchase from acquisition
of a subsidiary, recovery of impairment losses on financial assets arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary are not allocated to segments.

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=1+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

142

Segment revenue and results

Year ended 31 December 2024

Revenue

Inter-segment revenue

Revenue from external customers

Segment results

Share of results of associates
Unallocated reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets and
contract assets — net
Unallocated other gains — net
Unallocated other income
Unallocated administrative expenses
Unallocated finance costs — net

Loss before income tax

HE-Z-mE+-A=1-H
JI:3:5

i

ARERE
RENIEF NS
PRER

HMEBELNRIRE
AORNEREERQNAENAE
BIEAR -8

APEMEME H8
AORHEMBBA
AORNHTHER
APENGHRA FE

A ERABR

Automation

B
HK$'000
TER

511,142

(2,317)

6. PEEHE =)
SR EER

Property

R E

Financial and
services  development
IES
RERER
HK$'000
THER

Securities
investment Total
SRS
HK$'000

T

HK$'000
TR

At
HK$'000
TiEn

57,309 548,444 33,892 1,150,787

(3,205) (2,297) - (7,819)

508,825

54,104 546,147 33,892 1,142,968

42,436

21,327 (425,582) (22,195) (378,014)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. #EBEH )

Segment revenue and results (Continued) 7 EBM &= B SR AR ()
Property
Investment
Financial and Securities
Automation services  development investment Total
mE
B#(t SRRE  REREE FARE st
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAL TATL TATL TAL TATL
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-T-=F
TZAZT-BILERE
Revenue W 440,433 40,526 360,068 (84,445) 756,582
Inter-segment revenue pEEE e (8,586) (2.347) (6,381) - (16,314)
Revenue from external customers ~— RESNPRPfUEE 431,847 38,179 354,687 (84,445) 740,268
Segment resuls L 12,508 10531) 49479 6120) (393592
Share of results of associates FEBENRINEE (18,472)
Unallocated impairment losses on KA RREBEERANEE
financial assets and contract HEEE - 58
assets - net (252,640)
Unallocated other gains - net KRS - FE 1,802
Unallocated other income FARMEMEA 1,158
Unallocated administrative expenses KA BRI THER (33,128)
Unallocated finance costs - net RAOWMEBHRA - 358 48,779
Gain on bargain purchase from KE-ENBARELNER
acquisition of a subsidiary e 550,515
Recovery of impairment losses YE-ANBAREENSREE
on financial assets arising from REEEKE
acquisition of a subsidiary 163,615
Profit before income tax BRATERATRR] 68,097

REE KRB R ES KA B8 HNED
= F U 5 B4 5 289,459,000
To(ZF = =4 : 287,734,0007% 7T )
. #9937,934,00058 o ( = T = =
F 1 551,569,000 7T ) o 7~ & B Uk
TREACHRE DB REFEE
DEHHNEBERRS  BHERENEIE
#) 421,508,000/ L (—Z T = =4 :
99,035,000 7T) °

The Group’s revenue derived from external customers located in
Hong Kong and the PRC, is approximately HK$289,459,000 (2023:
HK$287,734,000) and approximately HK$937,934,000 (2023:
HK$551,569,000) respectively. The remaining balances of the Group’s
revenue represented securities trading in Financial Services segment and
Securities Investment segment, represents securities investment gain of
approximately HK$21,508,000 (2023: HK$99,035,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-_Z-_NWE+-A=1+—HUIEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEEHE®
Other segment information HthpEEHE

Property
Investment
Financial and  Securities

Automation services development investment Unallocated Total
B8t SREE NERERBR RHRE RAE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThRL ThL

Year ended 31 December 2024 ~ HE-Z-MF

TZR=t+-HLEE

Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 951 2,964 12,578 96 259 16,848
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment £ ®EERANEENHER

losses on financial assets and BRE/ (&)

contracts assets 237 12,242 (43,062) 13 9,731 (20,839)
Write-down of inventories of MEFERR

properties - - (151,329) - - (151,329)
Finance income BIBWA 1,079 7,251 123 13 57,852 66,318
Finance costs BB (6,814) (4,491) (88,104) - (26,650  (126,059)
Finance income/(costs) - net BB/ (BA) - 358 (5,735) 2,760 (87,981) 13 31,202 (59,741)
Additions to non-current assets (other FERBEERE (£REER

than financial assets and defered ~ EREHEAERSD)

tax assets) 20,828 12,614 19,834 - 10 53,286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. #EPEHE )

Rt S WRA (&)

Other segment information (Continued)

Property
Investment
Financial and Securities
Automation services  development investment  Unallocated Total
BEt eRRE DERERER  E5RE AR @t

HK$000 ~ HKS000  HK$000  HK000  HK$000  HK§000
AL AL TRT THT THT THT

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT_-F
TZA=T—RItEE

Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 2,605 4,539 48,267 112 705 56,228
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment B EERANBEMNRERS

losses on financial assets and BRE/ (BB

contracts assets 362 (124,573) (6,107) (1) (252,639) (382,958)
Write-down of inventories of MET SR

properties - - (170,009) - - (170,009)
Finance income BRBIMA 2,673 - 269 170 79,442 82,454
Finance costs IR AN (1671) (4548 = (76,633) (30,663 (113515)
Finance incomey(costs) - net BB/ () - 8 902 (4,548) 269 (76,463) 48,779 (31,061)
Additions to/(disposal of) non-current  JEREIEERE / (HE)

assets (other than financial assets (£ BEERETHELEE

and deferred tax assets) BRoM) 821 1,190 171,478 10 - 173499
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR

RETEHRITEEREERAER
BERNEHREGR A BB RRATN T
AFtE - DHEEREMEEE &

The information provided to the CEO with respect to total assets
and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. Segment assets comprise all

assets exclude assets held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries
and other unallocated assets that are not directly attributable to the
reportable segments. Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities exclude
liabilities held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries and other
unallocated liabilities that are not directly attributable to the reportable
segments.

The total amount of non-current assets (other than financial assets and
deferred tax assets) located in the PRC and Hong Kong is approximately
HK$5,030,379,000 (2023: HK$5,604,113,000) and approximately
HK$374,212,000 (2023: HK$590,273,000) respectively.

TEEERNRTNERNBARFAR
BEAREMAREREBRAIRE D
MOARDEEE - DESRBEBEME
BfE - ETERAKKIEEENBA
ARANBEAREMRERRBER
AHREDHNARDERE -

RAEBERES ERBDEE(SR
BENELEHBEEERIN) BE5
5 Bl 4 %5,030,379,000 T( —
T — = % :5604,113,00058 T )
}374,212,000 T( =& = = F :
590,273,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEEHE =)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEERAR &)
Reportable segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets ASRESHBEE,BFEREERER
and total liabilities as follows: BEABENEROT ¢
Property
Investment
Financial and Securities
Automation services  development investment Total
S
B8t SREF RERBR EFRE )
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THEL TR TR T T
As at 31 December 2024 R=Z-ME+=A=t+-A
Segment assets APBEE 575,936 774,123 7,837,217 42,602 9,230,478
Unallocated assets: FOREE:
Property, plant and equipment 0% BE Rkl 4,544
Investments in associates REERRAMNRE -
Financial assets at FVOC! BATEHAEMEZENE
PRAE 4,317
Prepayments, deposits and BN - e REMEYGUE
other receivables 12,322
Loans and advances BRRBH 45,148
Cash and cash equivalents He A SEY 632,976
Total assets BEHE 9,929,785
Segment liabilities AHEE 197,642 178,123 2,895,290 24,910 3,295,965
Unallocated liabilties: iokag:
Accruals and other payables [ERTE R R EMERFUR 32,036
Borrowings B 889,442
Deferred tax liabilties EERERE 122,053
Total liabilities SE4E 4,339,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEEHE 2
Segment assets and liabilities (Continueq) PHEERAR &)
Property
Investment
Financial and Securities
Automation services  development investment Total
nE
BEM SRR RERER HALE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TR TiEn T
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=FE+-A=1—AH
Segment assets NEEE 480,448 729,356 9,487,929 22,305 10,720,038
Unallocated assets: FAMEE
Property, plant and equipment %% W& Rk 2,076
Investments in associates REEDRIREE 97,529
Financial assets at FVOC BOTEFAEEANEZ
SREE 10,019
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE - ke REMEKTIE
other receivables 16,711
Loans and advances S ED 35,238
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEED 761,522
Total assets EEiaE 11,643,133
Segment liabilities NEEE 148,933 134,831 3,279,947 22,483 3,586,194
Unallocated liabilties: KRR
Accruals and other payables JEFT B R A MR TR 26,128
Borrowings e 927,748
Deferred tax liabilties EEHBAR 3,811
Total liabilties BiE0E 4,643,881
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE—Z-MF+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from major products or service

PEEFE 2

AREBEKREEBEMBRB R Wat

lines: FR4H
2024 2023
—EmF —ZTo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue: I Es -
Revenue from contracts with customers BB IR CERE 16 SEEEA
within the scope of HKFRS 15 XK EBEFRE I
— Sale of goods - EmHE 479,580 413,499
— Sale of properties - MEHE 377,890 196,149
— Installation and maintenance income - TR EERA 5,904 4,653
— Commission and brokerage income - & RELWmA 13,492 12,992
- Management fee and performance fee - BBREBREMEBRA
income 1,061 533
— Others - Efb 4,067 1,579
881,994 629,405
Revenue from other sources E )R 2 Wan
— Securities investment gain/(loss) - BERE W () 21,508 (99,035)
— Interest income - M BUA 56,219 42,925
— Rental income - A 183,247 166,973
260,974 110,863
Total revenue U EE 1,142,968 740,268
Timing of revenue recognition W 22 e SR R P
At a point in time NE 2, 875,029 624,219
Transferred over time BERS B TS 6,965 5,186
881,994 629,405

The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to all its
contracts such that no information regarding revenue expected to
be recognised in the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date is disclosed because either the remaining
performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected
duration of one year or less or the Group recognises revenue at the
amount to which it has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly
to the value to the customer of the Group’s performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there is one major customer
contributing for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2023: nil).

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET AND OTHER 7.

INCOME

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

PEEE 2
FEEREH

 E-E-NF+-_A=+—HIF
BB REERFEBMEAEERK
HR10% HA L (ZE—=F : ) -

Htty iz (6B1R) - B8R
H A

2024 2023
—EMEF —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Other gains/(losses) — net

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain/(loss) on disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 41(a))

Loss on derecognition of subsidiaries

Loss allowance on financial guarantee
contract

Others

Other income
Dividend income
Government subsidies (Note (a))
Other sundry income

Note:

Htgas  (B1R) - B8
HEWE - BB RREHNRE

HE—RNBRF

Wt (&5H) (M 41()
KB A RIEE
MBERE O 2 EERE

Hitp

Hitr A
LSS N
BUR B (K=t (a))
HAdFEREA

(a) For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the government subsidies
represented the support of the Group’s automation business from the relevant
government authorities. The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the

subsidy notice or relevant law and regulations.

45,129 28
476 618)
(20,438) -
- 9,517)

3,616 2,716
28,783 (7,391)
762 65

23 3,031
3,821 12,122
4,606 15,218

FE -

(@) HE-_ZT-_HWFR-_FT=_=+=A
=+—BIEFE - BUTHB) AE BRI
WEALBAEIGECEHOME -
AEEBBRBBESREMEERER
HIFTA E3k -
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R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

+= —<—

150

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 8. FM(ER) &H
(Loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging: FR(EB),mf ISR ESIR
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit services - TZHRTS 3,073 3,328
Cost of inventories and inventories of REAIHEERIEGTE
properties recognised as expenses DN 801,424 563,394
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) mR B EEN (MR 18) 48 48
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥13% - E &R 3T E (131 15)
(Note 15) 16,800 56,180
Directors and chief executives EERITERAE 2 (FFE11)
emoluments (Note 11) 4,040 6,399
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BEERFIFS (F1EE9) 79,989 94,164
Foreign exchange loss HNE B 18 28,531 22,462
Short-term lease expenses HHEEER 3,012 2,535
Write-down of inventories of properties YT EHOR
— properties under development - BEERAYE - 54,229
— completed properties held for sale - BRIFELEME 151,329 115,780
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment TREEMENEERNRE
losses) on financial assets and contract B8, CR{ERIERE R ) - F5E
assets — net 20,839 382,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)

Wages and salaries T & 5

Other employee benefits ﬁf*@ =

Pension costs-defined contribution plans and ERKE A — FEEEHFET 2R
social security costs HERER A

(i) The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), which
is a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong (the employer) and its Hong Kong
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of
the employer and the employee are subject to a cap of HK$1,500
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

(i) As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC contribute to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post- retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

BIRHAXZ (FBEES
mt B )

2024 2023

—F-mEF —F=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHEx THET

71,623 84,772

1,468 2,029

6,898 7,363

79,989 94,164

(i)

AEBELBEBTBREES M
sl AR & ([ REEF
g ERRBUXEAERE
MEREREE - REBEBES
AE REALENSHEA
A(RT) BESREEREBA
EBE ARG EELREENE
BAR (ERRBHEATEEA
P1)6% M HER - BEEEEE
B H& A HFIGIA1,500 TR
ER - ML EREH KRB
BREEE -

FEMRRERBIETE - KA
BEENHBARAEERR
B 5K & 2 AR KT 81 F it
R REWNBARMARMNE
THAME TEREFH - B
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FoBEREMZBRAKFEAE
NN TFERKEE ZZ2H
BARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-Z-_ME+_-_A=+—HItFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9.
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)
(Continued)

(i)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include two directors (2023: one director), whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 11. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three individuals (2023: four
individuals) during the year are as follows:

BETRFIAXZ (FREES
W R )2

(i) AHBEEFHAL

AEEREESFTALTEEM
HEF(ZTEZ=F: —F=E
F) HBSERKIEE11 27189
DITREE - RERNEMNTFHT
ZHEAT(ZEZ=F : @BHA
) MBS HZIT -

2024 2023
—E-E —EC-=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBT

Basic salaries, bonuses, other allowances HAF S « /AT - HAbjEAh
and benefits in kind REYFE=

Bonuses 14T

Retirement benefit-defined IRIRER] - EREHRGETE

contribution scheme

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2,690 5,158
1,139 2,653
147 155
3,976 7,966
B RO LA T 60 -

Number of individuals
A
2024 2023
—E-F =%

Emolument bands B < g
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% JT

% 1,500,000 7T
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T

2% 2,000,00078 7T
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &7

£ 2,500,000/87T

No inducement for joining the Group or compensation for loss
of office was paid or payable to any five highest paid individuals
during the year (2023: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. FINANCE COSTS - NET

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NWF+-_A=1+—HILFE

10. MR ®E - B

2024 2023
—E-_MEF T =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Finance income: ARSI -
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITIFRF BMA 42,763 35,608
— Interest income on financial assets at — R AT ENSREE
amortised cost 2R BUA 23,556 26,185
66,319 61,793
Finance costs: BTSN
- Bank loans - RITER (10,388) (9,273)
— Corporate bonds - REEH (21,079) (16,477)
— Other loans - Hib B (94,313) (66,484)
— Lease liabilities -HE8E (280) (620)
(126,060) (92,854)
Finance costs — net BATERAS - 5 (59,741) (31,061)
Note: PEE -
(@  The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on borrowings is at a rate of nil @ FRABRENETHERMEEREEFE

(20283: 7.1%) per annum.

(ZZ==F :71%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

11. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 1. EFRFIRER
Directors and chief executive’s emoluments ERRTTHERZHE
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of the HE-_ZE_NMFE+_A=+—HItF
Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31 December B AEBER EAOARARFESE
2024 is set out below: BERITEAKNFMOT

Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit contribution
in kind to pension

Fees (Note a) scheme
i - FRR
BYEFN EXENKS
e (FizEa) =T B #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Executive directors HITES
Huang Wansheng (Note ¢) =2 (Miskc) 465 546 = 1,011
Li Minbin ZHOR 540 1,403 148 2,001
Non-executive director FHITES
Zhang Chi st 312 197 69 578
Independent BIKEHITES
non-executive directors
Zhao Yizi HFRF 120 - - 120
Zhang Juan k18 120 - - 120
Chan Manwell PR (2 120 - - 120

1,677 2,146 217 4,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 11.

(Continued)
Directors and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of the

Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below:

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

EFRIRER 2

EFRITHRERZHME =)

BE_Z-_=F+-_HA=+—HI%E
B AEEEN BN EAQEEHE
EERTBEHEOFMET

Salaries
allowances and
benefit Discretionary Employer's
in kind bonuses  contribution to
Fees (Note a) (Note b) pension scheme Total
B 2R
ENiEHl BB EEXRfe
e (Mizta) (Mizb) STl Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL TEL THL THT
Executive directors HTES
Huang Wansheng (Note c) B85 (e 418 442 = = 860
Yao Jianhui (Note d) kR (Fizkd) 182 1,716 - 39 1,937
Li Minbin 34 540 1,395 93 144 2,172
Huang Wei (Note ¢) & (Hite) 210 - = - 210
Non-executive director FHTES
Zhang Chi e 312 195 - 68 575
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors
Wong Chun Bong (Note ) THRHB (Wite) 245 = - - 45
Lee Kwok On, Matthew (Note €} ZE% (Hite) 210 = - - 210
Zhao Yizi BHRT 120 - - - 120
Zhang Juan (Note f) 518 (FrsEe) 50 - - - 50
Chan Manwell (Note g) BR3(E (M g) 20 - - - 20
2,307 3,748 93 251 6,399
Notes: PaE -

(a) Being salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid or payable in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries

(b) Discretionary bonuses are determined on the performance of the employees

() Appointed on 20 April 2023 and resigned on 10 October 2024

(d) Resigned on 20 April 2023
(e) Resigned on 31 July 2023
() Appointed on 1 August 2023

(9) Appointed on 1 November 2023

@ HEARRAREMBARMNELEEEH
MENRENE S 2R EDEHN

b)  BIBEAREESHRRIORE

©) R-E-_ZFNA-_+HEZAIRN=
TF+A+HEHME

(@) RZE-=FNA=-+AEE
() RZZT_=FtA=+—BFF
( R_ZE_=FN\A—BEZRE
() R-E-=F+—F—AEZ#F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

11.

156

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group does not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors services
(2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, there is no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors (2023: Nil).

Save as disclosed in note 46, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2023: Nil).

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

11. EFERIRER &

EFERITHERZME =)

BE_Z_NWEF+_A=+—HILHF
B AEBYERREESERBER
FRBEZAIARE(ZE==F:
;) o

RZZEZMFE+—A=+—H  #&
NEE  EFEIIEHEEREHE
RAZHAZER EEFSHHEMR
SE(ZEZ=F : &) -

BRI 46 TR EEE SN - AKEBERT
VERAREEGHR > MARRES
BEEYEEREGEARERANFRE
FAEMEEFECHBEARS
ZHRAKN(ZT=F: &) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following:

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

12. FRIEM(ER) BIX

PRSTRENIBET RN T

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Current tax BOHABIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BEMEH
- PRC enterprise income tax - RIS
- PRC LAT — AR B IR E R

BIEFEEERE

Over provision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 33) IEFERIIE (MisE33)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year (2023:16.5%), except for one
subsidiary of the Company which is a qualifying corporation under the
two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For this subsidiary, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining

assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries operating in

the PRC is 25% (2023: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including leasehold land payments and all
property development expenditures. The Group has estimated the tax
provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant

PRC tax laws and regulations.

656 7,931
5,314 1,581

18,879 13,388
24,849 22,900

277) (18)
24,572 22,882
(94,872) (10,066)
(70,300) 12,816

REERBNEHRBEIREERE
A 16.5% ( Z T - =4F : 16.5%)
8 EARRNER B AR
ARAMNESHEMAHEHETNEE
TESEE o ZHI BN B FEER i F /9
BT A &EB TR 8.25% M RIEF -
HAARERROHFNIL16.5% KT RBF

RPEEENMBRATIEEERE S
25% (—FE =4 : 25%) °

T3 IR E T TR L B AR L (ERE 30%
E60%NRERRFTHE - BREFE/H
EWEFTEFIRRREE LA
KAIBEMFRERASXEAHRMAX -
AEE D RIET BEBTRESAR KR
PR B ROAR E (A 5t T IIB EH AR IR
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 5 R R B &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

12.

13.

14.

158

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continuec)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to (loss)/profit
before income tax in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income at applicable tax rates as follows:

12.

FRiSIR (%) BAX (2)

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable in the respective jurisdictions

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax
purposes

FTE A
BANTIIES 2 Fiis e &

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A REMBIR S 2 B
tax purposes
Tax effect of share of results of associates DIMERE R R FEE 2 TS

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Provision for LAT

LAT deductible for calculation of income tax

Over provision in prior years

THIR(E R B R

BIEFEHRERE

PriSHE (%) /FIX

Income tax (credit)/expense

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the reporting period, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$227,171,000 (2023: HK$102,497,000) by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 2,680,000,000 (2023:
2,160,411,000) during the year. There were no potential dilutive ordinary
share outstanding for both years and therefore the dilutive (loss)/earnings
per share is the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

BRPRSHLAT (B51R) m Al

=
2

=24
T

RERMIEE R HBTE
) A STl I;REEHUZ@%IEE’J_TE

sHEPTSHE R R 2 LB B

13.

14.

BEAR AR R AR B R

REEMREHAX A EHEES 2E R
FANIRE R E B AR TSR
(E518) RFIEERIT -
2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
(389,890) 68,097
(66,623) 14,529
(44,286) (178,073)
20,308 84,458
2,848 3,049
20,694 91,010
(17,123) (12,180)
18,879 13,388
(4,720) (3,347)
(277) (18)
(70,300) 12,816
BB

BERA  ARFLERAARRRER

ARSI E R EVRAR S, - B RE HIR
AR AR (Z B =4 -
) -

=B (518) B

FRERER(ER) BNTHIR
BARARHEAEBG(ER) &
F1227,171,0008 T( Z T = = F -
102,497,000 7T) B AF A B B1TE
38 A% #9004 - 15 £12,680,000,000 A%
—TE =% :2160,411,000% ) 5t
o AR MEFE T E M RBITEE
%%%@% Rtk SR EE (518),
BFEFRERN (HB) BFFER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - BERXH

Ownership Leasehold
interestsin  improvement,
lndand  fumitureand ~ Machinery Land and
buldings ~ fixtures and and properties
held for office factory  Computer leased for
OWN Use equipment  equipment  equipment  Motor vehicles oW Use Total
HEmx
HEER B FER EfE
THREFH  KEUR BER ERRLH
fAEER HAZRE  BRRE kSR e L @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Th Thr Thr Thn Thr Thr
For the year ended 31 December 2023 EHZ-E-=F+-A=1-A
LEE
Opening net book Amount ENEEFE 381,561 9,577 12,080 1217 2,189 4190 410,824
Additions hE - 1,966 - 58 - - 2,024
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 41) R AR (HiE41) - 7943 = 8 94 = 8,123
Transfer from investment properties gRaRanz (o)

(Note 16) 119,571 - - - - - 119,571
Disposals & - “ (1,006) @) - = (1,108)
Depreciation fE (44,102 (7499) (1,702 (533) (733 (1,615) (56,180)
Wrte of s - - 712 0 - = 714
Bxchange realignment R 2.21) (244 99 (98) U - 2,658)
Closing net book amount EREEE 454,819 11,745 8422 8 1543 2575 479,882
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=E+ZA=1-H
Cost A 564,582 53,457 1,520 13,719 6,062 6,647 665,977
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERAE

impaiment (109,763) (41,112) (3,098) (12,941) (4,509) 4072 (176,09)

454,819 11,745 8,422 778 1,543 2,575 479,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-_Z-_NWE+-A=1+—HUIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% - BER®E @)

Ownership  Leasehold

interestsin  improvement,
landand furnitureand  Machinery Land and
buildings  fixtures and and properties
held for office factory ~ Computer Motor leased for
ownuse  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles own use

YIS
BEER B ZER BEf
HHEBTH  RE R BER ARNLY
BEEEE MOTRR  BRRE  EIERA hE FES it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn T TEn TEn T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ-E-ME+=A=1-A

LEE
Opening net book Amount ENRRFE 454,819 11,745 8422 718 1,543 2575 479,882
Addtions B 8,810 5,083 - 18 - 2,647 16,558
Disposals i3 (123,501) (255) (297) 210) (414) - (124730)
Depreciation ik (12441) (1,970) (1,505) 211) 46 (719) (16,800)
Exchange realignment 34 (2,699) (505) - 1) 6 - (3,199)
Closing net book amount EREMTE 324,988 14,098 6,620 314 1,181 4,503 351,704
At 31 December 2024 RZB-MET=A=1-H
Cost A 368,752 57,091 11,223 13,342 5,591 9,204 465,203
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMEREE
impairment (43,764) (42,993) (4,603) (13,028) (4,410) (4,791) (113,589)
324,988 14,098 6,620 314 1,181 4,503 351,704
Notes: MEE
(a) Ownership interests in land and buildings held for own use with carrying value (a) BRMEI{EA)149,879,0008 (=T = =4 :
amounted to approximately HK$149,879,000 (2023: HK$149,072,000) have been 149,072,000 7T ) B E B A L3 18
pledged to bank to secure the Group’s bank loans (Note 32). FRESEESCEANEENRITE
AR (fEE32) o
During the year, the Group disposed a property at a consideration net of tax of RERN REBUREB(HOBRBE)
HK$114,808,000, a gain on disposal of HK$49,064,000 was recognised in the 114,808,000/ T E—EHY%E L&
consolidated profit or loss. Details of the disposal is set out in the announcement of U 25 49,064,000 JT B R 4R & B &=
the Company dated 29 February 2024. R HEFBHARARARBHA=-ZT

ZWFEZAZthABZRE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes: (Continued)

®)

Right-of-use assets (o)

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset
is as follows:

Ownership interests in land and buildings held for own use, £ 8 A i RAEFHHEAHEREZ -
carried at depreciated cost, with remaining lease term of:  ZITEXAFIER - &2 NHEAZAT -
— 50 years or more - 504F sk A E
— between 10 and 50 years -10&E504F

HEEEANLRYE - ATE
BAFIR (R XX R )

Land and properties leased for own use, carried at
depreciated cost (see note (i) below)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss is as
follows:

EREEE

HE_Z-WF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. Y% - BERRE &)

fiaE : (&)

RAMAERNS D HEREEERE

BEAHAT :
2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
186,720 310,221
138,268 144,599
324,988 454,820
4,503 2,575

BEMAERNBNEMEEEN

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset: TEEM :
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings EETHRIEFNEAEER
Land and properties leased for own use HEFEBRAN TR

HEREMNE
HHEEER

Interest on lease liabilities
Expense relating to short-term leases

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
HK$5,552,000 (2023: HK$2,661,000). Details of the maturity analysis of lease
liabilities are set out in note 29(a).

Properties leased for own use

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has obtained the right to use properties as its
various offices through tenancy agreements with independent third parties. The leases
with independent third parties typically run for an initial period of 2 to 6 years (2023:
same). The lease with the related party runs for an initial period of 25 years (2023: 20
years).

BERRTRANEEEENMAXIER

AHTEAR

2024 2023
—E-MEF T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET Tt

12,441 44102

719 1,615

13,160 45,717

279 620

3,012 2,535

BE-_Z-_NMF+-_A=+—HIF
E - HEMRSTL 48584 5,552,000 %8
T(=ZZ = =4 :2,661,000/8T)
EE8EMNTHBE ST FEERF KT
29(a) °

HEFERYE

R-ZE-_WMF+=-—A=+—8 ' A5H
ERREBYE= WA E RS ES
EMEREEZENAEMEMAE - &
BUYE=HWAERE AH2E6F (=
T_=F:2F%6F) HEMANEE
IEER B25F (T T =4 : 204F) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January n—H—H8

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 41) I BE—RME A E (H:E41)

Transfer to property, plant and equipment RS - RE MRS
(Note 15) (Mf7E15)

Additions NE

Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 41) HE—fRNB AR (ME41)

Disposal k=

Capitalised subsequent expenditure HigRT#xTER

Fair value loss NEEE

Exchange realignment b 3, 8 B

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates and the tax
bases that are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of these
investment properties.

Investment properties with carrying value amounted to approximately
HK$1,740,398,000 (2023: HK$1,847,803,000) have been pledged as
securities to secure the Group’s bank and other loans (Note 32).

(@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

16. EME
2024 2023
—E-NE —Eo=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
5,465,774 3,471,220
- 2,078,434
- (119,571)
36,728 130,517
(11,862) -
(105,933) -
21,621 32,835
(280,741) (20,704)
(206,056) (106,957)
4,919,531 5,465,774

&R B0 A B IR O 3% AR B W) TR
AR ERRBE - FHEZFR
EMEERMEERNELEREA

BRTE{E A #91,740,398,0008 T (=
— =4 :1,847,803,0008 7T ) Z 1% &
MECERABRAEBRRITREM
BRI (F1sE32) ©

(a) HRBEMERNIRDERZ

Rental income HEBWA
Direct operating expenses from properties EAXEeWAZmEZ
that generated rental income HREKERY

Direct operating expenses from properties REEHSWAZMEZ

that did not generate rental income BECERY
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2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
183,247 166,973
13,538 8,731
2,922 2,707




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

16. REYE »)
(b) BEMEMLFERE

(i)

RFEFH

TRIRARE R
B BN A EER
EMENTE  LHES
BB WS ERIE 135
ATEHERENZHA
FEES - AFENERE
AR5 TYR S (AR
B R A A B 0 TR
REREBHET
T

e E—EffMAE:R
ERE-—EREA
BEFEERQTF
B BIRGERK
HRAEErRAERE
AR 5 2 R
BEHRME -

s E_EffE:R®
RE_E&RE AR
B EEAFE"
BIREE A% —E
FzABREAHK
BRAEREXRT
AEREARE-
THEBREABE
Ty 5 BB R BE IR
W2 B ABE -

s F-ERMHAE:#®E
REATHERR
ABETEBRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

16.

164

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BREME &

(b) BREMERBHLAFEHE
(%)

() RFEERE

2024 2023
—E-mE —ET =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
Description Eip FET FHT
Recurring fair value measurements &EM4H AP EE
Investment properties: BEME -
— Office, workshop, dormitory, shop, B /NI [
car parks, hotel and shopping i EEE O BERE
arcade YIr%
- the PRC - 4,837,156 5,398,774
- Office -Wo=E
- Hong Kong - B8 82,375 67,000
4,919,531 5,465,774
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring WEMENAFERFE=

fair value measurement. There were no transfers among level
1, level 2 and level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IREME =)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties (b) BBEMRBDATFEEE
(Continued) (%)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (i) 1EEENR A EIE

Valuation processes of the Group

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC were performed by the external valuer,
Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited (“Valtech”) to determine
the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December
2024 (2023: same).

For the investment properties located in Hong Kong, the
valuations were performed by the external valuer, APAC
Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC”) as at 31
December 2024 (2023: same).

Valtech and APAC are independent and professionally
qualified valuers that hold recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and category of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuers
for financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to
the chief financial officer (“CFO”). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO, the
valuation team and external valuers at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting
dates.

A& B ERE 7

SN ERT S R E AR
rE(lFRDERASE
BN AR BRI A ¥R
TBILIEE - AEFEIRE
MER_Z_MF+ A
Z—t+—HHNAFE(ZE
Z=F AR ©

HARBBNILEYEM
= INRGEMEAEE
FEREMAR AR ([
KEEFEDER =
“MFE+—A=+—H#&
TEE(ZEZ=F:
) o

TR BAREEN G R
BERAHBEXRERLRN
FTEEREMENLE K
72387 A T H A B ) 9B
T HEEMGER - AR
BmEmS - REFEME
FNERRLRERM -

RIEMBHRER R A&
B F R PIRR A — B BE
B8 L (L ERDFTETTH
8- ZEEEERE R
BE(EBEEMEE ) ®
T BRUBE  HEE
B RINBEERME D &R
EAERAEERF RS
HEIT—REE - BEEAR
SENTHRFEREREH
H—% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE—Z-MF+-A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

16. REYXE 2
(b) BREVEMLFEHEE

=)

V=
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HEZMR AR
(%)
Valuation processes of the Group (Continued) AEEFB G EFEF (&)
At each interim and annual reporting periods, the finance MR & Rl K 2 R 5 HR
department: M BRI e
e \Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation s RZREBUMERS
reports; WFTEEEMm AL
b
e Assesses property valuation movements when o HWMEFMHEREL
compared to the prior year valuation reports; and B AEmEME
. Holds discussions with the independent valuers. D RS (H{ERT R AT ©
Valuation techniques & 1EF M
Completed properties in Shenzhen, the PRC R BRI E e T %
As at 31 December 2024, the valuations were determined R_ZE-_WMF+ = A
using market approach based on the following significant =+—H HECHAMS
unobservable inputs (2023: same): ERB AT EA AT EER
BABBET(ZE=_=
F AR
Current market rent unit rates Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties

and supported by the terms of any existing lease, other
contracts and external evidence such as current market rents for

similar properties.

BiomsHeEMER REVEERE B HREBEE UEEAREENK
M B A K RINBEE (Bl HERITAR) (EEEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

16. REYE »)
(b) BEMEMLFERE

PPN
(42 )
(A5

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HELWRBA T
(%)
Valuation techniques (Continued) 1EE T ()

Properties under construction in Shenzhen, the PRC
As at 31 December 2024, the valuations were determined

using market approach based on the following significant
unobservable inputs (2023: same):

Current market rent unit rates

BiTmsHeEUER

Incurred construction costs

EEEMIAA

Cost to completion

SEIRRA

Completed properties in Shantou, the PRC

As at 31 December 2024, the valuations were determined
using direct comparison approach based on the following
significant unobservable input (2023: same):

Current market value unit rate

BITMERLER

R BURYI 2

R-ZZE_WFE+_A
=+—RH  EEEERA
TERNABER AR
B R ™I5 AT @
ZER=F AR -

Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties
and supported by the terms of any existing lease, other
contracts and external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties.

REMEERME B2 BXRET  WEETARAHEOK
o Hiha g RoNBIERRE (Bl saIRTm e ) /EZ A o

Incurred construction cost represented the accumulated
construction cost incurred as of date of valuation.

EELBIRAEEEENRFHEIRA - (ERMHERRRA o

Cost to completion represented the remaining cost required to
complete as of date of valuation.

STELIRAEHEGHERATIATORTRAE -

RAEBDLSETE T LY
%

R-ZZBE_WFE+_A
=+—RB  EEEREIN
TERTAERRE AR
EREELBEMERE
ZER=F AR -

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,
size, age and other individual factors between the comparables
and the properties.
ZETAELBRAREZMENREE LB AR HE - F
PR EAMER A=A EAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Er 7T — o —

BE_=_

mE+—-_A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

168

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

Valuation techniques (Continued)
Properties under construction in Shantou, the PRC
As at 31 December 2024, the valuations were determined

using direct comparison approach based on the following
significant unobservable input (2023: same):

Current market value unit rate

16. REYXE 2
(b) BREVEMLFEHEE

4=

[ 455
(=

(ii)

/

1A E B MR BIA BIF

(%)

1 1EFil (&)

PR BUILSE T B FE 2 ) 3
R-_FE_WMFE+-A

=t+—H8 RESRENI
TERTAEBREARE

0 B I P BOA T T
—Bo=F:fAR):

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,

size, age and other individual factors between the comparables

and the properties.

RITHEEMCEX EZRTABLBRAGEZMERRRH - LE AR RE - F
PR Ko Eopth & Rl A =G E R Z R -

Cost to completion Cost to completion represented the contractual construction
cost less accumulated construction cost incurred as of date of
valuation.

FELRAR TIRAEGNBIKARBEMERADEENRETHEIX
i

Completed properties in Ganzhou, the PRC
As at 31 December 2024, the valuations were determined

using direct comparison approach based on the following
significant unobservable input (2023: same):

Current market value unit rate

RAPRBIEEMNEE T Y%

RZZE-_WMF+ = A
=+—H8  HEEREU
TEXRTAIE R ABE

ERERLBOEMERE
(ZZF=_=%F: HR) :

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,

size, age and other individual factors between the comparables

and the properties.

BITMEELER ZRTAELBRAREZYERER - L& AR - R - F
RMEMERRESHEAEEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. EWER »)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties (b) ¥EVENLOFEEE
(Continued) (%)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HELWRBA T

(#&)

Valuation techniques (Continued) 1E1EH (&)

Completed properties in Hong Kong REBHET IS

As at 31 December 2024, the valuation of properties located RZZE-_MmMFEF+ A

in Hong Kong were determined using income approach, =+—8 UREENY

which had taken into consideration of existing tenancies. The ¥EHERBRAEET

fair value measurement of these properties were classified WEERBEHELD - ZF

as Level 3 with the following significant unobservable input MENDTEFESER

(2023: same): FE-ELK WHANUTE
ARNAI B R ASE (=
T=%F: A) :

Term and reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and

taking into account market data at the valuation date.
TE B R B Bl e X RIEMEER S  HEREZ - UEENGEBRRANTISH
BEE °
Current market value unit rate Based on actual location, type and quality of the properties and

supported by external evidence such as current market value for
similar properties.

BITHEBLEER REVENERLUE  BURERIABROUMENRITHES
HNERRERVE RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BEWME »)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties (b) BREVEMLFEHEE
(Continued) (%)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEE R A B
(&)
Valuation inputs 1B EA IR
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the TR ARNFESERE
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties included = BRI EMFEIGERR
in Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy: REERIT R EZE A
BHE
Relationship of unobservable
Description Fair value at 31 December ~ Valuation technique(s)  Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value
it RTZA=T-RHATE HhERK GEETCIN TIEREABEEE TEERAIREATENER
2024 2023 204 2023
ZECME et - 3 :3 S
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin Tin
Completed properties 1,400,890 1441622 Market approach Current market value nt RMB6,270 RMBG6,390  The higher the curment marke valug unit
in Shenzhen, rate per square mefer — persquaremeter  rate, the higher the fairvalue
the PRC [iL7 RiBELER §YhR §Thk RAmRELERES  AATEER
RERINERINE ARBG0T  AR¥630T
Properties under 831,523 993150 Market approach Current market value nt RMB6,000- RMBG,390- The higher the curment marke valug unit
construction rate RMBS6,270 RMBI1,700  rate, the higher the fair vlue
in Shenzhen, per square mefer  per Square meter
the PRC [0 RiRENLEX §¥AK 5% BmEELEEER - HATEER
RAERIEEDE AREGO0TE  ARE60TE
AEEG0T  ARENT0T
Incurred construction RMB2,364 RMB2:292  The higher the incurred construction
costs per square mefer — persquaremeter  cost, the higher the fair value
BERRIAA §YhR §ThR EEERINAES MATEER
ARE23647 AEE20907
Cost to complgtion RMB1,100- RMB1,300- - The higher the cost to completion, the
RMB1,200 RMB1.400  lower the fair value
per square mefer — per square meter
R §YhR BTk TINAHR BATEEE

AB®11072  ABK1300%
ARE100T  EARE1407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z-_NMFE+-_RA=+—RALtFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. B EYME »)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties (b) BEMEMLFERE
(Continued) (#%&)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HELWRBA T
(%)
Valuation inputs (Continued) 1E1EA B ()
Relationship of unobservable
Description Fairvaue at 31 December  yaluation techiquels) ~ Unobservable nputs Range of unobservable nputs st fir value
8 RIZAT-RODTE gy FIBEEANE TIRREAIARE  rogme)\meROTENRS
2024 023 2024 023
CECRE b Z3IRE TRZE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR Thn
Completed properties in 579,876 958942 Direct Comparison Current market valug unit RMB10,000- RMB11,000-  The higher the current market value unt
ShanTou, the PRC approach rate RMB21,000 RMB20,900  rate, the higher the fair value
per square mefer  per square meter
RAEEmNER L BRI R EE CRUIE BYAR RAmRELERER ATEER
S ARE0007E  ARE11007E

AREA00  ARE007

Curent market value unit RMB154,000 The higher the current market value unit
rate per carpark rate, the higher the fair value
RS EE §fEsh RTEENERER HATREER
ARE1540007
Properties under 1,871,444 1,049,429 Direct comparison Current market value unf RMB10,000- RMB11,000-  The higher the current market value unt
construction approach rate RMB21,000 RMB20,900  rate, the higher the fair value
in ShanTou, the PRC per square mefer e Square meter
RAEEmOEENE BRI RmEEEE §AK 8RR RAmRELEEHR MATEER

AEE10007Z  ARE110001E
AREA00E  ARE2007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. IREMXE =)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties (b) BREVEMLFEHEE
(Continued) (&)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEE R A B
(&)
Valuation inputs (Continued) 1 EAER ()
Relationship of unobservable
Description Fairvalue at 31 December  valyation techiquels) ~ Unobservable nputs Range of unobservable mputs oyt tofair vale
Bt RIZAZT-BOOPE gy B LN TURREAISRE  Fogme \meATENES
2024 2023 2024 2023
CEIQE [ k1 Ecf
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tén Thn
Completed properties in 653,423 995,631 Direct comparison Current market value unit RMBS,100- RMBS,000-  The higher the current marke valug unit
Ganzhou, the PRC approach rate RMB14,000 RMB15,000  rate, the higher the fair value
per square meter  per square meter
Al AR ERItRE RAmeEiER g7k §Thh RTEENEEES  ILTEMR

ARE5A0RE  AREBSN0LE
ARE14000%  ARE150007

Completed properties in 82,375 67,000 Income approach Term and 18% 1.7%-1.9%  The higher the reversionary yield, the

Hong Kong reversionary yield lower the fair value

REBNERIE BAE EHRESNRE 18% 1T%19% BRUREES HATELR
Current merket value unit HK$35,178- HK$35,925-  The higher the current marke value unit
fafe HK$36,814 HK$36,549  rate, the higher the far value

per square foot per square foot
RihBELEX STARG T8 BTARDIOET RTRENEERES  ULTELR
B3814%T 5%

The valuation for investment properties under construction FREEEMEZHENZR
was arrived at by making reference to comparable sales E@ETS 20 & L
as available in the relevant market. The construction cost EBEH N MERET
incurred as at the date of valuation are also taken into fEfhE R BEAEMEIR
account. PiNES
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

17. RBELTNHKRE

At 1 January n—H—H
Share of loss of associates PaN (=1 /NT )t =]

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) D E b2z (EE)

Reversal of the recognition of share of further B EFER D ER L AT 2 —

loss of associate — Yunnan & TE e
Capital reduction of an associate — BB R A 2 AR AN EIR
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8

The associates as listed below have share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. All associates are
accounted for using equity method.

2024 2023
—ECME —Eo=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
97,529 135,985
(17,261) (18,472)
11,147 (19,984)
5,026 -
(96,441) -

= 97,529

X E IR B = QR R A E R T
AR - AAREERRES - ﬁﬁﬁ b
BRRMERES AN ©

Ownership interest
Country of FrRRn

Name incorporation Place of business 2024
8 FMAIER EEHY k- S :3

2023 Principal activities

“Eo-F FEER

Advanced Radio Device Korea Korea 43%
Technologies, Inc. (‘ARDT’)

Advanced Radio Device 135 -l
Technologies, Inc. ([ARDT )

Yunnan international Holding Group Cayman Islands Hong Kong 32%
Limited (“Yunnan”)
ERERROARAR(2&]) ReRS B

ARDT and Yunnan are private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’s interest in the associates.

The Group has fully impaired the interest in ARDT in prior years and did
not have any unrecognised share of losses of associates.

43% Research and development, manufacturing
sales and marketing of semiconductors for
communication and related equipment

e 2 HERTSREEAREBR
CLESCE

32% Investment holdings
RESR
ARDT R ERERMART - HRH I
TISWE - MEBHREENEHE
NEIZESZEAREE -
BEFEARSEBNARDT 2z

BELRE - WEEMRER 2 D16
B2 NERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

17.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group’s share of loss on Yunnan up to the contribution made.
According to HKAS28 paragraph 29, after the entity’s interest is reduced
to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognised,
only to the extent that the entity has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

At 31 December 2023, current assets of Yunnan includes certain loans
to Glory Sun Land Group Limited (“GSLG”). To recover the amount due
from GSLG, Yunnan and it’s shareholders has entered into a settlement
agreement with GSLG during the year. Pursuant to the agreement,
certain properties and equity interests in two companies in the PRC
were enforced by Yunnan (collectively “Enforced Assets”) as partial
settlement of the amount due by GSLG. The Enforced Assets were then
being utilized as full settlement certain amount due by Yunnan to one of
it’s shareholders.

The remaining balance due by GSLG after the enforcement is amounting
to approximately RMB279,807,000. The shareholders of Yunnan further
agreed to distribute this remaining balance due by GSLG so that the
amount due from GSLG is derecognised and regarded as a capital
reduction of Yunnan. Details are set out in note 38(a).

Each of the shareholders of Yunnan is then entitled to a receivable from
GSLG as follows:

17. REEATMNRSE &)

AEEDIEEREZEBREEMELDN
HE - REBEBBGAERE28RE
208 - EREDRETIR - BINGE
EREBEAZEIMEEREXRE
BERRKNEELENRETEIEL
B WHERRAE -

R-BE-_=F+=-A=+—0 " ZH
MRS EERERNENEHEES
BAr((EHEM | RENETE
o AREIERENBEHLIIE - FA
ERRERFEHEENERI(EER
ek o BIEZHE - B RHINTT
FEIREA RIS TWE R AEZR
(578 BHBTEE]) - UIHEE
ENEHREMNKIE - REMTEER
BEREEHEEZE/RENTE—F
MR ZETFRIA -

REBHIFHITIE - BB B EREEL
A AR 279,807,000 ° EREAX R
HE—FREDKRENEWENSZ %
B AR IR ERE S E
WR ABERE 2 BRAHRE - FHIFHAM
F£38() °

EREM B RERIBRESERN
A EUGRIE - FHFWT

Forever

Right
Dimension
Limited
(“Right
Dimension”)
EA#BRAH
(TE#£])
RMB’000
TR

Assiduous
Group
Limited
(“Forever
Assiduous”) Shareholder A
XBREFRA A
(Tx#))
RMB’000
THET

The Group

AEE
RMB’000
TERT

BRA
RMB’000
TER

Due from GSLG JE UK B 37 B Hh RIE 89,538 44,769 33,577 111,723

174

On 31 July 2024, the Company (as transferee) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Right Dimension and Forever Assiduous
(collectively, as the “Transferors”), in relation to the acquisition by the
Company of certain debt receivables due from GSLG to the Transferors
in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB78,346,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$85,844,000) (the “Debt Receivables”) for the
total cash consideration of approximately RMB62,677,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$68,675,000).

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

R-ZFE-_WFELA=+—H &R
RI(fERXE ) BIE 4 Kok g (518
AETEEFDILEERE AR
ERARRURESBREHARE
62,677,000 7T (#H & M #68,675,000
BL)WBEFEHRNEZ TN
ETRERER BemHOBARE
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates

material to the Group

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of
material associates, Yunnan and its subsidiaries (“Yunnan Group”),
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

17. RBELXFNKRE @)

HESKEBEXZHE
MEBHEAE

DR

TRITEZBENREE REKE

AR ([EEEEE ) 2HMBERBE -
ER SR BERAEM ZRIELFRIA
K BRI TS R AR R MR B

As at 31 December
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Group’s share of net assets of Yunnan
Group for the year

Year ended 31 December
Revenue for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

R+=—RA=+—AH
mBEE
nBaE
FRBEE
FRBARE

BEFE

FRAFEESEEEREEN
BEFRE

BZEt+t=-A=+—HILEE
REZWEE
FEEE
FANHMEEEGE

FAZEEEER

Group’s share of total comprehensive loss FRAAEE S 1EEREEE

of Yunnan Group for the year

E2HBRAE

2024 2023
—F-EF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
843,157 509,137
(754,523) (329,473)
5 251,190
(104,344) (126,075)
(15,705) 304,779
(5,026) 97,529
(53,938) (57,726)
34,834 (62,450)
(19,104) (120,176)
(6,114) (38,456)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Contractual Other
Trademark  customers intangible
Goodwill and patents relationships License assets Total
HE BERSNE SHEFHE W HtEREE st

HK$'000 ~ HK000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O00  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

(Note (a))
(P (@)

At 1 January 2023 R-ZB-=%-HF-H
Cost A 147,958 4014 56,710 2,897 4,440 215,019
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEHERAE

impairment = (4,014) (55,710) = (4,048) 63,772)
Net book amount FEFE 147,958 - - 2,897 392 151,247
For the year ended BE-B-cF

31 December 2023 TZR=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount EMEETE 147,958 - - 2,897 392 151,247
Amortisation Bn - - - - (48) 48)
Closing net book amount FREKEHE 147,958 - - 2,897 344 151,199
At 31 December 2023 R=Z==f+-A=t+-H
Cost KA 147,958 4,014 55,710 2,807 4,440 215,019
Accumulated amortisation and S ERAE

impairment - (4,014 (65,710) - (4,006) (63,820)
Net book amount R HE 147,958 - - 2,897 344 151,199
For the year ended BE-Z-mE

31 December 2024 TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURRSE 147,958 - - 2,897 344 151,199
Impairment of goodwil BERE (14,898) - - (2,897) - (17,795)
Amortisation s - - - = (48) (48)
Closing net book amount EREAFE 133,060 - - - 296 133,356
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mE+=f=1-A
Cost KA 147,958 4,014 55,710 2,807 4,440 215,019
Accumulated amortisation and 2T EERAE

impairment (14,898) (4,014) (55,710) (2,897) (4,144) (81,663)
Net book amount REFE 133,060 - - - 206 133,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Impairment testing
is performed annually on goodwill allocated to the CGUs included
in the Automation and Financial Services segments.

As of 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of goodwill
allocated to the Automation and Financial Services segment
amounted to approximately HK$43,722,000 (2023:
HK$43,722,000) and approximately HK$89,338,000 (2023:
HK$104,236,000) respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on
value in use calculations or fair value less cost of disposal with
reference to market price, whichever is higher.

For value in use calculations, management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

18. L EE »)
(a) TIEREBR

BEEIEEAKEBERZE
K& GRS KRR S 2 R &
EEEMN - AEEESFHOE
EaPEhERRE D RS
ELEVAOEEETRENR

RZE-—WmWF+ = =+—
B 2ETBE&tEERR
BoMOEEREED L
A43,722,0008 (==& = =
143,722,000 T ) & &
89,338,000/ L (=T = = :
104,236,000787T) °

ReELBEMNAT RO SRETD
BEEREEFEIQFER
HERRN(ARSERE) 2R
MSERMET °

EREEFEMS  EEE
ERARMEEESHEENE
AT 5 et (h 3R & B B AL
TE BRR B BR A BT LE R A FTRE IR
Ko BERDVENTEERRE
AL o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—Z-MF+-A=+—HILFE
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. | EE »#)
(a) Impairment test for goodwill (a) AWEBRENK 2

For each of Automation segment and Financial Services segment, REBESBRESERBE D E
the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most TH RETHRSELEME
recent financial budgets approved by management for the next five AlkE e AEERRIBE
years with a terminal value related to the future earnings potential mETEA - TREEEEE &
of CGUs beyond the next five years to determine the recoverable MARAFRHRIOHAY A
amount of CGUs. The financial budgets and growth rates are 5 MR EERBARRATF
estimated based on past performance and its expectations of BIRESEEBEMNRRKATE
market development. The key assumptions used for the value in N MEBEERERERABE
use calculations are as follows: BT R[N E TS RIEA M

fhat - EREEFHEMBNE

BERIT

Financial
Automation Services
BEL SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-NE+=A
=+—HLFE
Growth rate ERE 3% 5%
Discount rate BhIR = 11% 11%
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-=F+=A4
=+—HLFE
Growth rate HRE 5% 5%
Discount rate AL IR & 11% 11%
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any EEEMRRE TMZEFRRE
of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of EEMAEAEESHHTEE
each of the CGUs to exceed its respective recoverable amount. BEAEELEMNREER

BEEAMATHESE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

. BAFEEARMZEKR

ZEMEE

2024 2023
—F-mEF —F=F

Equity investments EEABRATETA HK$’000 HK$’000

designated at FVOCI Htt2EKREZNWERRE FET FAT
Listed shares: W -

— Equity securities Norway - BRARES - B - 5,776

— Equity securities the USA - BAREH - EH 110 37

— Equity securities Hong Kong - BARFES - BE 18,996 28,057

19,106 33,870

Unlisted shares FE TR 4,206 4,206

23,312 38,076

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at FVOCI as
the Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

As at 31 December 2024, unlisted securities which quoted market
price is not available of aggregated carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,206,000 (2023: HK$4,206,000) are measured at fair value and
determined by market approach using backsolve method which are not
based on observable inputs.

The fair values of listed securities are determined on the basis of their
quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.

Changes in fair value of the above equity securities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated within the financial
assets at FVOCI reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts
from FVOCI reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity
securities are derecognised.

PSR E T RIRE IR TE AR A
FEFAEMEZERR @ REZARE
EHILEEQ%TXQE RESI4EE o

RZBZWF+=/A=+—08 ' @5k

AI1E 494,206,000/ T (ZE = =F :

4,206,000/ 7)) A AARFMER
I EMEHTIARFEFFELHRAGF

m}im%;ﬁ&mm%&(l#%#‘f
B AR ETE °

ENESH R ERE RS BRAT
LREWETE °

HRBEABSH R FEESHRE MR
T e e P R AR I A R 2l IR B AT
AHp2EEENEREERKETR
Af o RIEERBEBRAESRE - A%
lhﬁ@¥@ﬁkﬁ@iﬁ% 5 HO fet
REREREAN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-_Z-_NWE+-A=1+—HUIEE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued) 19. BAFEI AR @R
ZEMEE 2
Financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following currencies: BEAFEFAEMEANENSEEE

EATIIEREEHE

2024 2023
—EEFE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FH&T
NOK dollar e B - 5,776
US dollar eI 4,316 4,243
Hong Kong dollar BT 18,996 28,057
23,312 38,076
20. INVENTORIES 20. 8

2024 2023
—EMMEFE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T

Finished goods TERK 48,189 48,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

The balance comprises: ERBEE
— Land cost — THIAK AR
— Construction cost - HE LR
— Capitalised interests - BEXMEFIE
— Write-down of properties under — B AP Y EUR

development

Expected to be completed and available for
sale more than one year but not more than
two years

T RA[fHHE

The properties under development are all located in the PRC. The
relevant land use rights in the PRC are on leases of 40 to 70 years.

As at 31 December 2024, properties under development of
approximately HK$240,318,000 (2023: HK$438,992,000) were pledged
as collateral for the borrowings of the non-controlling interests of the
Group (Notes 32 and 41).

The management of the Group determined the NRV of the properties
under development by reference to the estimated selling prices of the
inventories of properties, which takes into account a number of factors
including prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC, estimated
costs to completion, and costs necessary to make the sales.

TR BE - FERBERNFAT

21. BRI YE
2024 2023
—E-ME —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
429,603 438,992
1,142,450 1,134,061
79,504 81,241
(54,229) (54,229)
1,597,328 1,600,065

BRPYEDIMVATE - HBEF
T Hb{EFRERR N T 40E 704F ©

RZZE-WMF+—A=1+—H0 " &E
R 2 49240,318,0008 T (ZE ==
£ 438,992,000 7T) & T E M -
EBREBIERIREL G B MIET M
(MF3E32 K% 41) o

AEBERE2EMEFENMAE
BABERRTYENAIZRFE
EREZRZERNE  BRTERTE
HEMHZMR « At TR RIHE
FRERARAN ©
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R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

22.

23.

182

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The completed properties held for sale are all located in the PRC. The
relevant land use rights in the PRC are on leases of 40 to 70 years.

The management of the Group determined the NRV of the completed
properties held for sale by reference to the estimated selling prices of the
completed properties held for sale, which takes into account a number
of factors including prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC,
and costs necessary to make the sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, write-down of completed
properties held for sale to net realisable value of approximately
HK$151,329,000 (2023: HK$115,780,000) was recognised in the profit
or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into an
arrangement to exchange certain properties in lieu of payment of certain
payables. Details are set out in note 30 and 47.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

22. ERIFSHHEYME

EXTHEHEYWER IR FE -
TR B i AR N T 40E
704 ©

AEEERE2EC R IRKIELEY
ENEFEENEED T IRHELE
WMENRERFE  ERERZERA
= BEPERITEHED SRR R
HEMFBAA -

HE—ZT-_MF+-_A=+—HILF

IRFEEH151,329,0008 L (— =
£ 1 115,780,000787T) BBz 1E

7
o

BE_Z-_NEF+_A=+—HILHF
[ REBI—BLH  URBRE
FTYWERBZNETRNARIE - #B

Loans and advances B RB®R
Margin loans receivables ERFFEER
Less: Provision for impairment o BERE

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

BAMRES0 K2 47 ©
23. EMBRB2RH

2024 2023

—EME T =4
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FBT

768,050 802,190

78,234 51,761

846,284 853,951
(698,983) (721,612)

147,301 132,339




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

23. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued) 23. ERRE2HR 2
An analysis of the loans and advances and margin loans receivables (net RIFEEHRERNBA N EWTRE
of impairment), determined based on the time to maturity of the loans AHOMBREE) (RER KRB H
and advances, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREEE ) 2 D& FInT ¢
2024 2023
—EME B
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE T FAT
To be due within: AT EABR 21 AR -
Within 90 days or on demand 90 KAk ILE K 147,301 111,291
91 days to 180 days 91 RE180K = 1,804
181 days to 1 year 181 RE14F - 4,016
1 year to 2 years 16524 - 15,228
147,301 132,339
An aging analysis of the gross amounts of loans and advances and BEAER KRR R ERITFRERE
margin loans receivables which had been past due based on the number BRBEE AR ZERAOTAT

of past due days is as follows:

2024 2023

—E2_E o=

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F&xT T

Not past due K60 B 86,058 22,297

Within 30 days 30 KA 10,799 -

31 days to 90 days RIPNESC PN = =

91 days to 180 days 91 RXE 180K 344 230,874

181 days to 1 year 181 RE1HF - 276,099

1 year to 2 years 1FEE2F 385,088 =

2 year to 5 years 2FEEHF 363,995 324,681

846,284 853,951
The gross amounts of loans and advances of approximately B 3% N #5148 K8 49 366,838,000 78 7T
HK$366,838,000 (2023: HK$442,055,000) are secured by charges over — T~ =4 : 442,055,000/ 7T ) #
the properties and listed securities of the borrowers, and/or backed by BRANDER EESEER - &
guarantee. Credit limits are set for borrowers based on the quality of S RERERAER - REFAHER
collateral held and the financial background of the borrowers. There is MEEMNERANTHEE S - HER
no significant changes in the quality of those collaterals as a result of AREEEREE o PR IE RS B -
deterioration or changes in the collateral policies of the entity during both ZEERMHE R EEE AR

reporting periods. mBUR B b B IR E RN -
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R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE—Z-MF+-A=+—HILFE

23.

184

LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continuec)

The loans and advances are interest bearing at fixed rates, ranging from
5% to 18% (2023: 5% to 18%) per annum.

The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are determined by the
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the
Group.

The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged
securities and are interest bearing at fixed rates, ranging from 5.6% to
18% (20283: 5.6% to 18%) per annum. The Group maintains a list of
approved stocks for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio.
Any excess in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call and the clients
have to make good the shortfall.

As at 31 December 2024, margin loan receivables were secured
by securities pledged by the clients to the Group as collateral with
undiscounted market value of approximately HK$231,008,800 (2023:
HK$284,470,000). There is no significant change in the quality of those
collaterals as a result of deterioration or changes in the collateral policies
of the entity during both reporting periods.

Loans and advances and margin loans receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

23. ERMBR2HK &)

BERRBRENTE%E18%(=F
— =4 1 5% £ 18%) M EE & Al K5t

B o
oy

BTHREFNEERE LRBBEXR
SERXNBERESNURTEE

on

BTHFREFPMNENHMBBIKEE
EERTIZN T5.6%E218%(=F
T =4 5.6% E 18%) KEE F AR
ATE o AEBERAE —HERTRMDE
B RBEERERRLERGE T
BAE TR o BN E R R 555
HREEM  BEENERMELR -

RZZBE-WMF+=—A=+—08 " EK
HFREREBRRFEBETFALEE
BEMRZEFER  ABEMES
#7231,008,000 T( —F = =
284,470,0007 7T ) o K PR & 3R &5 HA
M ZEERRNERTERATED
IR RBERBb s B Em IR EARE
@Jo

B RSB RR AN R E RSN T
B EHE -

US dollar o
Hong Kong dollar BIT
RMB AR

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

2024 2023
—EEFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
28,913 12
152,194 207,018
665,177 646,921
846,284 853,951
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued) 23. ERRE2HR 2
Movements on the provision for impairment of loans and advances and BN B EWRIT R E OB E R
margin loans receivables are as follows: FEnT -
HK$’'000
FiIT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H 629,343
Provision for impairment BB 351,386
Recovery of impairment losses on financial I iE — A B A R EERN S R E ERE R B (K
assets arising from acquisition of a 41(b))
subsidiary (Note 41(b)) (259,117)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RW-Z_=F+-_A=+—HBK
—E_pFE—HF—H 721,612
Recovery of impairment losses REE B (22,629)
At 31 December 2024 R-Z_MFE+_A=+—H 698,983
TRADE RECEIVABLES 24, EYE BHER
2024 2023
11 -3 ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiT
Trade receivables FEUE H R 282,795 93,591
Less: Provision for impairment B RS (14,635) (13,159
Trade receivables net BB SR EE 268,160 80,432
For customers of Automation segment, a credit period ranging from HREBEOEITNEF,  BEEE
30 days to 180 days (2023: 30 days to 60 days) after acceptance is SZENERHANXEISOKR(ZE
generally granted with exception of some trade customers where the Z=%:30KE60KXK) BEETE
credit period of 6 to 12 months (2023: 6 to 12 months) are granted. SRFPHERHAGE12EA(ZE
For customers of Property Investment and Development segment, the Z=F:6E12R) - HRWHEK
balances are due upon issuance of invoices or within 2 days (2023: BEREFERDITNER  BREIREIT
upon issuance of invoices or within 2 days). The Group does not hold BERFN2RAN(ZTE=F : A%
any collateral over these balances. ER2RA) BIE o ANEEEEZ
LREBFETWERR -
As at 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with customers R-E-_=F—H—H kKBEFA&
amounted to HK$154,221,000. A H) FE Y E 5 BR 05 154,221,000 7

on
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e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice date are

24, BIGB HIRH =)

FEWE SRR EBENEER HNER

as follows: BROMMT
2024 2023
—EME =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z=30H 79,560 30,147
31 to 60 days 312 60H 25,087 6,223
61 to 90 days 612 90H 12,792 2,031
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120 H 125,348 12,228
Over 120 days 120 BA 40,008 42,962
282,795 93,591

Trade receivables are denominated in the following foreign currencies:

FEWE SRR TVIRIATIMNESHE -

US dollar =TT

Hong Kong dollar BIT

RMB AR

Euro (“EUR”) BT ([&c))

Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HE([HE)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

2024 2023
—E_mF —T-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
36,191 31,308
3,286 17,867
242,741 40,017
- 325

577 4,074
282,795 93,591

FEWE 5 iR BUR BB B EFNT

follows:
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 13,159 3,137
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment BE (e R 1,476 10,022
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 14,635 13,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(@) Contract assets

25. aNRERSHAR

(a)

Contract assets arising from: EHNEERE :
Sale of goods HEEm

Less:

o ORE R

Provision for impairment

As at 1 January 2023, contract assets amounted to
HK$20,515,000.

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets are as
follows:

Contract assets arising from sales of goods are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the sale of automated production related equipment as the
receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of product
certification by the technicians. Upon completion of the product certification
and when the rights to consideration become unconditional, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

The Group’s credit terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed in
notes 24 and 44.1(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets are as
follows:

2023

—Eo=4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000
T&T BT
17,601 14,416
(156) (72)
17,445 14,344

Within one year

—FR

Movements on the provision for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

n=

T_=F—H—H" &4

& /20,515,000 77T °

(i)

FEANEESEN RN
AT

EmHEELENANEERIIA
HE BB EERBREMES
MU R RERR - B AR (E AR
RIA BT A B AR 5E R E & R
& EmRETkE  ERERE
RAEGEE  ERBANEE
MERBENDBREENE S

ET
/N

AEEBAERZEFITUMEER
HEEBBRD BIRERE M % ®
FDRIMIEE24 K 44.1(0) R FE ©

AR EWE Ak 3 0 T RS
T -

At 1 January n—HA—H
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) WME, CRERE)
At 31 December ®+=—A=+—A~

2024 2023
—EomE —EBC-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
17,445 14,344

(i) AHNBEEREZBEENZIHN

T

2024 2023
—EomE —To=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
72 103

84 (81)
156 72
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. AR EREVWAR 9
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHRARK
2024 2023
“ENEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities from customers REEFHNENERBEER
arising from: ATF&IE :
Sale of goods HEE M 28,726 10,500
Sales of properties MZHE 388,155 519,971
416,881 530,471
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing AEBRBEAOTRENER
schedule as established in contracts. FrARBERE P K o
As at 1 January 20283, contract liabilities amounted to RZTEZ=F—HA—H0" &%
HK$23,280,000. B 154 23,280,000 T °
The following table shows the revenue recognised for the year TRETBINAFEAND#ER
related to carried-forward contract liabilities: s EAES B EEH -

2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT

Revenue recognised during the year that was ~ FNfERRI K zSET A ENE
included in the contract liabilities at the NEE
beginning of the year (87,787) (21,820)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. MIRIA - RERREEY

RECEIVABLES ]

2024 2023

—E2_E —Eo=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FAT

Prepayments and other deposits FENRREMES (@) 53,757 262,514

Interest receivable FE YT B, 2,286 2,078

Value-added and other tax recoverable EER R E ARG

iE 47,530 62,485

Other receivables from non-controlling interest £ {1 & Ys FE 2 A #E 2

IE (b) - 497,860

Other receivables H A FEUGRIR (©) 250,070 34,754

Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE (@ (63,489) (21,581)

Current portion TENE D 290,154 838,110

The directors of the Company consider the balances of prepayments, KERTBNFIA - Re REALFEUEK

deposits and other receivables are recoverable by reference to the nature HEBHMEREFANEELZE

of these balances and credit history of counterparties where applicable. (@A) 1% - ARRESRANKE
ZEERR ©

Notes: Bfi5E

(@  As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the balances of prepayments and other (@) R-ZBE-_NEFR-_T_=F+=A
deposits substantially represented prepayments made to the contractors of property =+—RB - EAREREMEZEHHRE
development and investment projects of the Group. FERAASEMERERREEEN

A EEXNREMNTRE -

()  Asat 31 December 2023, balance represented amount due from GSLG arising from ) RZZTZ=F+ZA=+—8  BEHIE
acquisition of Shantou Taisheng Technology Limited (“Shantou Taisheng”). The UL ET RERE AR AR ([ILE
amount is utilised to settle the further acquisition of Shantou Taisheng during the WRE ) IEEEKRENEMAE - %
current year (Note 38(a)). Consequently, the impairment provision for the amount due HEREERAFEE—PREIET
from the non-controlling interest was reversed in the consolidated profit or loss for the B2 B (M7E38() - Fitt - EUSE
year. ERERRIEZREREERAFELR

ARmPEE -
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e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. MIRIA - &R HME

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() As at 31 December 2024, the balances of other receivables represented other
receivables from the contractors of property development and investment projects
of the Group. During the year, the Group engaged a contractor for a property
development project of Shantou Taisheng. The Group and the processors contractor
has a dispute on the variable development cost that the Group was unable to
commence the development with the new contractor as the project is located at the
same construction site that the parties have dispute at the moment. As a result, an
agreement to terminate the construction contract was signed on 4 January 2024 and
the contractor agreed to refund the relevant prepayment.

(d) The movement on the provision for impairment of other receivables are as follows:

PIE(#)

BieE - (%)

() R-E-_ME+-A=+—0 HME
WRIE M) 4 R IE Eofth R R SR B ) 3 3%
BREEEBRABEAORE - RAF
B AKEFLETRENEERSE
HEER—ZABHE - ARAEEER
FOER A S RERAFES® - M
BHEURRRE S FEFENR—ET
AR - BMUANER BK A BT R B R R R B
ZIEE - At EHR =T _WFE—A
MEFBRRIEREALD  MARE
] =R B 1ERE T 70E -

@  HREURRERENZEEHMT

2023
T =4
HK$’000
FHBT
At 1 January w—HA—H 21,581 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment AR, (BE)
— receivables from non-controlling interest — FEPRA A s FE U SRR (16,168) 16,168
— other receivables — Hth FEUGRIE 58,076 5,413
At 31 December WT=A=+—H 63,489 21,581
27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 27. BAFEFABZNESHME
E
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Listed securities: rhES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong - BARFES - BB 20,585 12,957
Debt investments at FVTPL BRATFEF ABRNERRE 177,768 128,850
198,353 141,807

The fair value of the listed securities are based on their current bid prices
in an active market.

As at 31 December 2024, no financial assets at FVTPL have been
pledged as securities for the Group’s other borrowings (Note 32) (2023:
no financial assets at FVTPL have been pledged as securities for the
Group’s other borrowings).
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MREEABRE -

RZZEZMFE+=—A=+—H  #%E
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continuec)

Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in the following currencies:

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+_A=+—HIFE

27. BAFEAAB2NEMS
&)

A TEE AR S BARE TN
THEMHE -

US dollar ETT
Hong Kong dollar BIT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND
CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES

2024 2023
—E-MEFE = =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx T
177,768 128,850
20,585 12,957
198,353 141,807

28. BaRBe&FEY SiEH
BITER ZRHEFERRE
F{SsERITHR

2024 2023

“ECNE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FETT

Cash in hand FERE 163 89

Cash at banks RITIRE 278,926 373,278

Short-term bank deposits with original REIEAR DR =MEAK

maturity less than three months RHIRTTIR® 498,618 188,926

Cash and cash equivalents He kR EEY 777,707 562,293
Pledged bank deposits and restricted BHEBIRITIF R Z R HIT7 5K

deposits 146,073 515,367

Client trust bank balances REETRITES 169,812 132,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 28. RarRE&FRY - SiEH
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND RITER ZRFNERRE
CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES (continuead) FiEstETHEeSR 2
Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, restricted deposits RekReEEY SEARTHE
and client trust bank balances are denominated in the following T ZRETGEFREEREEHRITES
currencies: THZA N EEEETHE -

2024 2023
—E-MEF ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
RMB AR 129,256 134,594
US dollar ET 366,433 574,557
Hong Kong dollar BIT 534,400 439,142
Others HAftb 63,502 61,652
1,093,591 1,209,945
The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB B SRTT R A RIEETF SRR R AN
out of bank balances in the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations BEFIA RIS IE = 2 A BT AR A Y
of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the government of the HNEE HERFTRR ©
PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND
CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES (Continued)

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts of approximately
HK$169,812,000 (2023: HK$132,285,000) with authorised financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business
transactions. The Group has classified in the consolidated statement of
financial position the clients’ deposits as client trust bank balances in the
current assets section and recognised the corresponding trade payables
to the respective clients in the current liabilities section, on the grounds
that the Group is liable for any misappropriation of the respective clients
deposits as stipulated under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”). The Group is not allowed to use the clients’” monies
to settle its own obligations under the SFO. As such, these monies are
not included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group for cash flow
purposes in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits of
approximately HK$14,351,000 which have been pledged as
securities for bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 32) (2023:
HK$237,791,000).

Part of the Group’s restricted deposits represented the guarantee
deposits of approximately HK$21,622,000 (2023: HK$16,273,000) for
construction of properties. In accordance with certain PRC regulations,
property development companies of the Group are required to place the
proceeds received from pre-sale of properties as guarantee deposits
for constructions of properties. The deposits can only be used to
pay for relevant property development projects when approval from
the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. The
restriction will be released according to the completion stage of the
related pre- sold properties. And another part of the Group’s restricted
deposits represented the short-term deposits with an original maturity
more than three months of approximately HK$110,100,000 (2023:
HK$261,303,000). As at 31 December 2024, this short-term deposit
with maturity date on 22 January 2025 and fixed interest at 4.70%.

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

28. HE&RB&FRY  CiEH

BTN BRHERRE
FEsER TR ()

AN B B ISR M R R R R
B BiEBR P 49169,812,0008 7t ( = &
— =4 :132,285,000/8 T ) © A4
BEFREFEBRIFAELEZTT
Mo REBBHESZAVERRERF
BRI ARBEEDLDTHES
SR TES  YERDBELSHE
RIEERNESERTEEF BAA
BEREFZFMBEGED ([#F5 R
E®Bl ) RE  AEEAHEASE
FEZHNBERAE - AXETEEAR
EFMFIARBITENE S MEE K
BITHEME - Bitt - EBLEFIETBIE
TRERERERTARESRER
WA EERS KRS EEY -

AEBERBIRITERAE FIEIME
ARTAEENRITEENERNT
K#914,351,0008 70 (MI7E32) (=&
T =4 :237,791,000/&7T) °

NEENZRHFRBERDENE
R&4921,622,0008 TT(ZE == :
16,273,000/8 7T ) ° IRIEE T BE
] ASERNYEBRRARAGFRE
EMEMSHIE  ERERYWERNE
RIER - ZEREARNESTRES
T EREERMERARINE R
VHEZERIAR  ZRBRHISIRIZEBEE
EVHEAVE TR T AR - A&E
S—HoXBRHGFRAERIEB BB
B =1 A #9582 #3715 5 %Y 110,100,000
B (ZZ = = 4 : 261,303,000
L) BE-_ZT-—NE+-_F=+—
B ZESGFEx0IHAA=—Z-H
F—AZ+=H  BEHMEEL70% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 EENF+_A=+—HILFE

29. LEASES 29. iR
(a) Lease liabilities (a) HEAR
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRETAEERE ARS8
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting REEaENFESE QTR
period:
Present value
Total minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RERERNEE RERERRZEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-ME Tk —EoME “To=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THT THERx TR
Within one year —FR 2,326 1,404 2,154 1,278
Later than one year and not  ER—FHTE
later than five years JiNGik:3 2,846 1,504 2,834 1,442
5,172 2,908 4,988 2,720
Less: total future interest 38, : AARFI B
expenses FEES] (184) (188)
Present value of lease MERERE
liabilities 4,988 2,720
The present value of future R EFRAEE
lease payments are AT
analysed as follows:
Current liabilities TEBEE 2,154 1,278
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 2,834 1,442
4,988 2,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

29. LEASES (continued) 20. i8] »#)
(b) The Group as lessor (b) FREESHAA
(i) Operating lease () HEHE
The Group’s investment properties are leased to a number REBRIREDE TR
of tenants for varying terms. The future minimum lease BGRREERTZHEP -
payments receivable under non- cancellable operating leases AR E A HEE A A T
of the Group were as follows: E RN R R RARTEE (S
AT :
2024 2023
—E-mE —EB-=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FiET
Within one year —FA 422,437 91,317
Later than one year and not later than 3B —F B NERRF
two years 85,801 74,564
Later than two years and not later than  ERAME H NER =4F
three years 68,195 58,838
Later than three years and not later than 3E =4F B T ERIOF
four years 51,070 52,277
Later than four years and not later than BRI E B NER FL4E
five years 40,213 48,509
More than five years FFEE 238,446 131,207
906,162 456,712
(i) Finance lease (i) HEHE
The Group leases machineries to its customers. These AEEMAREPHHEHE
leases are classified as finance leases and have remaining BoREHEWSEAR
lease terms of 1 year to 3 years (2023: 1 year to 3 years). EHE  FHpHEHERE
The customers shall purchase or have an option to purchase FEIF(ZTEZ=F : 1
the leased machineries at the end of lease terms of the FEIF) - BFETREAE
finance lease. HEMNHER RGBS
BIZEEREMNKES -
2024 2023
—E-IMEF —TC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Finance lease receivables B & & FEWGRIE
— Non-current portion - 3ERENE D 245 840
— Current portion - RENE D 8,348 1,113

8,593 1,953
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

29. LEASES (continued)
(b) The Group as lessor (Continued)

(ii) Finance lease (Continued)

The total future minimum lease receivables under finance

leases and their present values were as follows:

Minimum
lease receivables

REBEEMR

2024
—2-mE
TR
HK$'000
TR

20, 8 #)
(b) *EKEEBHBA &)
(i) WMEHE®)

BERE T AR R KIEHR
B esE R IR ED
T

Present value
of minimum
lease receivables

REAREMKZRE
2023 2024 2023

—E-—& —ECMmE S

TET FER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET

Within one year —FR 8,849 1,246 8,348 1,111
Later than one year ER—FHATE

and not later than R

two years 292 873 245 842
Later than two years ERMEATE

and not later than ~ R=4

three years = - = -

9,141 2,119 8,593 1,953

Unearned finance  REVSHHKA

Income (548) (166)
Total net finance FREHEEK

lease receivables it 8,593 1,953
Portion classified as P EAREEE

current assets iopipa) (8,348) (1,113)
Non-current portion  JERENE S 245 840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z-_NMFE+-_RA=+—RALtFE

30. B RZRREEMRE

Trade payables FE B SRR
Bills payables ANE

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on invoice date is

2024 2023
—RomE —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
1,053,031 1,076,783
13,399 42,846
1,066,430 1,119,629

REZZAHRNEZRALENRE

as follows: BERRRE ST ¢
2024 2023
—E-lmEF —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
0 to 30 days 0£30H 212,588 207,664
31 to 60 days 312 60H 10,266 2,991
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90H 3,731 4,996
91 to 120 days 912120 H 5,440 2,961
Over 120 days 120 B 834,405 901,017
1,066,430 1,119,629

The average credit period of trade payables ranged from 30 days to 60
days (20283: 30 days to 60 days) for suppliers of Automation segment;
ranged from 1 day to 2 days (2023: 1 day to 2 days) after the trade date
where the transactions are executed in relation to provision of securities
brokerage services; and ranged from 180 days to 365 days (2023: 180
days to 365 days) in relation to Property Investment and Development
segment.

BEbDBHRERMNENE SRR
THEEHNFIOHEOH(ZZ
—=% :30BE60R) : BEATTIRE
BHEERFOHRZME @ AINTR
SHB1BE2H(ZE-_=F:1H
£2H) : ERWERERERD M
= BNF180BHEISH(ZE-=
£ :180HE365H) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HULFE

30.

198

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are denominated in
the following foreign currencies:

(#&)
(A8 /

30. FEf+5 3 AR K OB £+ R4

ENEZERRMENZERNERERETS

RVB AR
USD dollar =TT
Hong Kong dollar BIT
EUR BT
JPY H
Others Efth

As at 31 December 2024, trade payables aged over 120 days include a
balance of approximately HK$582,725,000 which is related to a property
development project of Shantou Taisheng. During the year, the Group
entered into a settlement arrangement with the relevant contractor.
Pursuant to which, both parties agreed the transfer of completed
properties held for sale of Shantou Taisheng with carrying amount of
HK$370,904,000 at an estimated fair value of HK$359,298,000 to settle
partial amount of the trade payables owed to the contractor. However,
the registration of the relevant properties had not been completed during
the year, so related trade payables and completed properties held for
sale were not derecognised.

Furthermore, based on the original contract with the contractor and
other documents confirmed by counter parties during the construction
of the relevant project, the Group had recorded the amount payables
as trade payables. Legal claims have been brought against Shantou
Taisheng by the contractor on it’s estimated variable orders on the
construction contract. All expected legal, settlement, and other fees have
been accrued as at 31 December 2024. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, after taking appropriate legal advice, the outcome of
these legal claims is not expected to give rise to any significant loss
beyond the amounts accrued as at 31 December 2024. For more details
on this litigation, please refer to note 47.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

BT INESHE -
2024 2023
—EME —To=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T THTT
824,684 894,960
= 117,961
241,729 23,905
- 423
- 82,380
17 =
1,066,430 1,119,629

R-ZZE_WE+_A=+—8" Kk
BAE1208 A EMERNEZE SERBIE
BB R EMEREIBE B
) &% 4 £ 582,725,000 7 7T ° A4
B AEBREBEABRIILEE
ZH B EFREEZEERERE
/£ 370,904,0008 ST AN BE T ZREX 2
TIRHELEME  F2FEAS
359,298,000 8 T * LA HE R E
BRSO BN E SRR - A - AR
MEEMERFEANRTREL - 48
MENEZERARETIHIELEY
FEMAREIETER ©

AN RIERABERTNRABELD
K AARETE B b T BRI F A R m E
b3 - AEBE RN RIES AR
NESER - ABECMILIEmRE
RIZEA KR M AR A Z 5T B MR
MEEREEEZRE -HEZZTZ
F+-_A=+—8 FEEHNE
Z FmEENBRHE R - AQ
RIZEEEHAEEMNEZEZERRER
B REEERENERESRET
EERBEHEE_S-_MOE+ =4
=t+—RAEESENEMENESSE -
EAZFANEZHE - B2HME
47 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

Accrued operating expenses

Other tax payables

Deposits received

Payables for construction costs

Interest payables

Financial guarantee contract

Other payables

Dividend payable

Amount due to non-controlling interest
(Note (b))

Provisions and other payables

Less: Non-current portion

Notes: B -
(a) As at 31 December 2024, approximately 86% (2023: 79%) of the carrying amounts (@)

of accruals and other payables are denominated in RMB, the remaining are mainly

denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
(b) Other payables to a non-controlling interest and related parties are unsecured, non- (b)

31. ErtBAREMEARR

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FET

FERT R ER X 34,189 13,888

HAbEFIR 2,002 5,886

BUIEE 20,445 104,082

FETIERR AR AR 75,309 111,884

FEF B 55,334 70,805

ISR AL = 17,306

E M pERIFRIE 647 =

FERIAR B 185 -
JE {5 S AR e 25 3008 (B 5E (o))

398,810 =

Bt R B AhfE S RIR 79,934 163,312

666,855 487,163

B IEmENER Y (13,623) (13,921)

653,232 473,242

interest bearing and repayable on demand. Balance at 31 December 2024 is arising
from the further acquisition of Shantou Taisheng as disclosed in note 38(b)(ii).

R-Z-_mME+-—A=+—0 " 486%
(ZT==%F :79%) Est B R E A&
NRENRAEAARETE - mMEH
AEELAEITAHE -

H b A SRR IR s R BB 5 2 RKIE R
AR - 2B RIREREE - Bk
38O FTHEE W—ZT-_ME+_—A4
=T —BRABRKREE—ZREILED
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HIFE

32. BORROWINGS

Secured
Bank loans
Other loans

Total secured borrowings

Unsecured
Corporate bonds
Other loans

Total unsecured
borrowings

Total borrowings

RER
RITER
EEN
REREEAE
BER
REES
e

REREERE

fHERE

(=)

32. B
2024 2023

—E-E —EC-=F
Current Non-current Current Non-current
e e ik it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHT THL
152,970 42,896 422,800 -
588,544 - - 632,831
741,514 42,896 422,800 632,831
- 290,000 313,000 -
535,483 - 354,762 -
535,483 290,000 667,762 -
1,276,997 332,896 1,090,562 632,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s fixed-rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-WF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. B8 »#)

AEBRABERRNEEFEEE

were repayable as follows: FEIRIA T T EE -
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
RITEE Hitfe &

2024
—ECME
HK$'000
TR

2023
—T-=F

HK$'000
TET

2024 2023

k- o1} —T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FET

Within one year or on —FRFEFX

demand 152,970 422,800 1,124,027 667,762
More than one year, but not BiB—4F * [ERBEME

exceeding two years 4,884 - 290,000 -
More than two years, but ~ BBMFBRBBREF

not exceeding five years 22,451 - - 632,831
More than five years HBRF 15,561 = - =

195,866 422,800 1,414,027 1,300,593

As at 31 December 2024, the effective interest rates of bank and other
borrowings ranged from 3.8% to 12% (2023: ranged from 5.0% to
12.0%) per annum.

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2024, bank loans of approximately HK$49,321,000 (2023:
HK$297,020,000) included in current liabilities are not scheduled to repay within one
year. They are classified as current liabilities as the related loan agreements contain a
clause that provides the lenders with an unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time at its own discretion.

RZZT_WFE+_A=+—H " &7
REMEENERENEXEFNF3.8%

E

2% (ZZT-_=F: N F50%=F

12.0%) °

B -

(@)

R-ZZ-_WME+-_A=+—8" #&
49,321,000 TR RITER (=T =
£ 1 297,020,000 L) st AR B A &
WETBIRN—FAEE - BEDNHEA
nRBAEE REEERGZEREE TR
B ANEE TR ISR E BRER
HIER

&r
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

32. BORROWINGS (continued)

202

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

The Group’s bank and other loans were secured by:

(i) guarantee provided by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries and related
parties and shareholder of the Company (2023: same);

(ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment (2023: same) (Note 15);

(iii) the Group’s investment properties (2023: same) (Note 16).

(iv) the Group’s pledged bank deposits (2023: same) (Note 28).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had corporate bonds denominated in Hong
Kong dollar with an aggregated amount of approximately HK$290,000,000(2023:
HK$313,000,000) to several parties with coupon rates 8%(2023: 7.0% to 8.0%)
per annum and repayable within 2 years (2023: 1 year) from the respective issue
dates according to the repayment schedule agreed between the Group and the
bondholders.

Bank and other loans are denominated in the following currencies:

32. fgE 2

B

(b)

BT
AR

Hong Kong dollar
RMB

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

i (E)
AEEMRITREMERE A TSEE
A
0] RAR - HETHE AR &R

7 ARARD R RE R E AR
(ZZZ=%F: R) :
(ii) TEBMYE  BELREHECT
Z=F : R (MIFE15) + &
(ii) REBENERENME(CT=F:
AR (MizE18) °
(iv) AEENEEFRTER(ZZ
Z=4 : j8R) (KizE28)
RZZE-ZWE+=ZA=+—H K&
ERBEUBTHENRRABESREH
#7290,000,000% t( = T = = & :
318,000,000 7T) Bt FETH  EF
EEFEMEREEU(ZE_=F :7.0% %
8.0%) ' WiIRBAKEEEEHFIFEAET
MERRERAEBAEITASR2E(Z
T=F 1 F)REE -
SBITREMERTIEU T EEHE -
2024 2023
—E-IEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAT
653,600 682,772
956,293 1,040,622
1,609,893 1,723,394




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

33. DEFERRED TAX 33. iREERIA
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally B H A ] sRE 1T R RER) LA BN ER RS
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities EHEEREBHIERE - B%ER
and when they relate to the same fiscal authority. The following balances, EFR IR R — B Bk A - B UR
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated ERTEEEEELERIEaE - AT
statement of financial position: ERICEZIRHEETE - WNRa W
Bk TR -
2024 2023
—F-mEF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FET
Deferred tax assets FEETIBE 19,242 19,662
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE (382,229) (491,205)
The net movements on the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are as follows: BLERBEEE(BE)WEBFEN
™
Unrealised Unrealised profits
Accelerated tax (profits)/losses in in financial assets Intangible assets
depreciation inventories of Fair value gains/ at fair value through identified in
allowance properties Tax loss (losses) profit or loss acquisition Total
EATETARRN
FERNERE SREEZ
(iH) /B8 BIEEE AVERE/ (B8) hERERINENEE

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024

2024

2024

2024

2023 2023

CECME s 2o SIME e —SoE e —SoNE CECME el 2N
HKS'000 JETSINON  HK$'000 HK$'000 EEELCIOON  HKS'000 MGISINON  HKS'000 HKS'000 JETSINON  HK$'000
Tén PR TEn Eiod  TAT MRS T RS a7
At1 January R-A-R 40320 D15 (49065 (39354 (4159 (5384 462123 191583 20358 19980 1966 1966 471543 200,906
Charged!(credited] to e/ GA) g
the profit or loss (Note 12) (W3t 12) - 9650 (7,832  (O711)  (11,040) 1225 (d417) (11608 - s (1821) - (04873  (10,066)
Acquistion of asubsiiry  KE-THBAT
(Note 41) (s 41) - - - - - - - 30083 - - - - - 3008%
Currency translation difference  %AEEE - (45 (3369 - (1,21 - (0044 (18689 - - - - (13683  (20,1%9)
At 31 December R+=A=t-R 40320 4030 (902600 (4905  (16484)  (4159) 408908 462123 2038 20358 145 1966 362987 471543
Annual Report 3} 2024 203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_ZT_NF+_-_A=

33.

204

HIEFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets
in respect of losses amounting to approximately HK$822,892,000
(2023: HK$781,714,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income due to uncertainty of availability of future taxable
income. Except for tax losses of approximately HK$322,430,000 (2023:
HK$269,284,000) that will be expired in 5 years, the remaining tax
losses do not have expiry date.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has deductible temporary difference
of approximately HK$442,331,000 (2023: HK$608,873,000) relating
to ECLs provision of loans and advances, trade receivables, contract
assets, other receivables and the fair value loss on FVOCI. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed at 10% on dividends declared to foreign investors in respect
of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onward. At
the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries
for which deferred tax have not been recognised is approximately
HK$706,582,000 (2023: HK$1,358,195,000). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SHARE CAPITAL

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIFE

34. B&*&
Number of Share
shares capital
8k | &N
(thousand) HK$’000
(Fh%) FHT

Authorised:
As at 1 January 2023

2023 Capital Reduction and Share Subdivision

(Note (a)(ii)) and {iii))

As at 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024

and 31 December 2024

Issued and fully paid:
As at 1 January 2023

2023 Capital Reduction and Share Subdivision

(Note (a)(ii)) and {iii))
New shares issued (Note (b))

As at 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024

and 31 December 2024

EE

N-ZZE-_=F—HA—H

ZE = = FRAHRE R ED IR
GEIRORAM))

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
—EoF-A—HK
—E-OF+—_A=+—H

ERITRAR -

RN-—ZE-_=F—HF—H

B = = F AR D TR
(P& ()(il) R (iii))

BB THAR (FI5E (b))

R=-B-_=F+=-A=+-—-H"
—E-NME-BF—AK
—E_NFE+=ZA=+—H

25,000,000 50,000,000

4,975,000,000 -
5,000,000,000 50,000,000
1,569,376 3,138,751

- (3,123,057)

1,110,624 11,106
2,680,000 26,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BE=
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

206

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Company passed on 24 November 2022, a
capital reorganisation was approved. It comprised the following changes to the capital
structure:

0} every twenty issued existing shares of HK$0.1 each in share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$2.0 (the 2022
Share Consolidation”) with effective on 28 November 2022;

(ii) the par value of each issued consolidated share was reduced from HK$2.0
to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$1.99 on each issued consolidated share (the “2023 Capital Reduction”)
with effective on 17 February 2023. Immediately following the 2023 Capital
Reduction, all the credits arising from the capital reduction was transferred to
retained earnings of the Company; and

(iii) immediately following the 2023 Capital Reduction, each of the authorised but
unissued consolidated shares of par value of HK$2.0 each will be sub-divided
(the “Share Subdivision”) into 200 new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each

with effective on 17 February 2023.

On 27 February 2023, arrangement was made for a placement to a placing agent of
313,875,122 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price of HK$0.34
per ordinary share representing a premium of approximately 91.01% to the closing
market price of the Company’s ordinary shares on 21 March 2023. The placing
was completed on 22 March 2023. The proceeds were used to repay the maturing
indebtedness and to provide additional working capital for the Company. As disclosed
in the announcement on 22 March 2023, a total of 310,624,390 placing shares have
been successfully placed by the placing agent.

On 20 April 2023, arrangement was made for a placement to a placing agent
of 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a price of
HK$0.28 per ordinary share representing a premium of approximately 100% to the
closing market price of the Company’s ordinary shares on 25 July 2023. The placing
was completed on 26 July 2023. The proceeds were used to repay the maturing
indebtedness and to provide additional working capital for the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. RESERVES

Details of the movements of the Group’s reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(@

Merger reserve represents (i) the difference between the share
capital of the Company and the combined share capital of
the subsidiaries (after eliminating intra-group investments and
share capital) acquired by the Company pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 2009 and (ii) impact on business combination
under common control.

Capital reserve of the Group represents the net assets attributable
to non-controlling shareholders which were acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 2009, and is treated as a deemed
contribution from equity holders and the release of share-based
compensation reserve upon the incentive shares under share
incentive scheme approved and adopted by the Group in 2008.

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to
be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. The PRC
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits
to statutory reserve, upon distribution of its post- tax profits of the
current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when
the aggregate sum of the statutory reserve is more than 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used
to make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
production operations, or to increase the capital of the companies.
In addition, a company may make further contribution to the
discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance
with resolutions of the board of directors.

Other reserves represented (i) share of other comprehensive
income of associates; (ii) gains/losses arising from changes
in Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control; and (iii) revaluation surplus upon transfer of owner-
occupied properties to investment properties and the tax arising
from revaluation thereof.

BE T _UF

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
—“RA=1+—HIEFE
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36.

208

=t+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2 June 2020 (the
“2020 Share Option Scheme”).

The 2020 Share Option Scheme remain in force for ten years
commencing on the adoption date. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the 2020 Share Option Scheme
and any other share options schemes of the Company to any person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company at the
time of the grant of the options and will not be less than the higher of
(i) the official closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share. The options are exercisable in ten years starting from
the date of grant. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle options in cash.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no share option
was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2020 Share
Option Scheme and no outstanding option as at 31 December 2024
and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. ELRFMHBRRE
COMPANY

2024 2023
—EE —TE-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T FETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B NEE 638 1,277
Investment in an associate R—EEE A RINIEE 90,279 97,529
90,917 98,806
Current assets RBEE
Loans and advances BRI - =
Other receivables H b pE U FR I8 1,243 554
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRNS
profit or loss REE 5 7
Amounts due from subsidiaries R VNGIE ¢ 5,728,321 6,833,958
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEED 639,828 717,639
6,369,397 7,552,058
Total assets BEEMAK 6,460,314 7,650,864
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrual and other payables FEET SR B FE T FRIE 14,161 9,851
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHB R R 5IE 1,029,123 998,123
Borrowings E3=i 599,442 682,772
1,642,726 1,690,746
Net current assets REBEEFHE 4,726,671 5,861,312
NET ASSETS EEFRE 4,817,588 5,960,118
EQUITY e
Share capital & 34 26,800 26,800
Reserves s 4,790,788 5,033,318
TOTAL EQUITY A 4,817,588 5,960,118
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28 KUY BEHRERAESEN _T_HF=
March 2025 and were signed on its behalf: A=+ \B#tE WAL TESERAE
BE
Li Minbin Liu Jiaxin
ZHOR EEESN
Director Director
EZE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HULFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

38.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are as
follows, which in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affect the results, assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Date of incorporation/

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation and

FERELF

R -_NE+-/F=+—HXEMH
BARNEBO T KAARESRER
B RSHBIEREAEENE
B BERBE ARRESRE
REEMHBARZFEETERR
IRBNRILE °

Issued/fully paid up/registered Effective interest held

Name of subsidiary establishment kind of legal entity share capital by the Company  Principal activities
HRAY/RY/ BRf1/BMR/
WEARAN AEL/RIAE  SEREREIARE BERRAK ARARENERER TEXE
2024 2023
“ECmE —Z-f
Directly held:
EfRE:
Great Sphere Developments Limited 3 July 2012 The British Virgin Islands (The “BVI'), 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company
“E-CFtATR EBRLES 1RBRERE1£78 RERR
([ARELEE ) ARAT LRI
Success Charm Holdings Limited 11 May 2009 The BVI, limited liability company 21,774,264 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
ERBRARAA ERNERAT-R RERXERERLT 27,174,264 BB Bank
1% ERRER
Indirectly held:
BiE
ACE Grand Limited 3 Qctober 2012 Hong Kong, limited liabiity company 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
“E-ZE+RZR BEERAH 1RERR - 1787 VESE
Atlantic Asset Management Limited 30 March 2012 Hong Kong, limited liabilty company 14,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% Providing asset
shares,HK$14,000,000 management services
AEFEEERARAR ZT-ZEZA=TR  BEERAA 14,000000 &R - RUEEERRE
1400000037
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continuead) 38. XEMBLT (&)
Place of incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation and Issued/fully paid up/registered  Effective interest held
Name of subsidiary establishment kind of legal entity share capital by the Company  Principal activities
AL/ H/ BR{7/E8R/
KRADER HMAL/AYAY  SEMEREARR BELRE AAIRRNERER TERE
2024 2023
ZETRE CTo=F
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiRE: ()
Glory Sun Credt Limited 24 Qctober 2014 Hong Kong, limited liabilty company 553,333,330 ordlinary shares, 100% 100%  Providing money lending
HK$553,333,330 services
BHEEARAR TE-METAZTER BAARAA 563,333,330 R &M REEERE
553,333,330 A7
Glory Sun Financial Investment 13 March 2014 Hong Kong, limited liabilty company 4,000,000 ordinary shares, 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$4,000,000
ENERRERRAA “E-MEZAT=R  ABERAH 4,000,000 % 5% + 4,000,000 REBR
AT
Glory Sun Securities Limited 30 October 1998 Hong Kong, limited liability company ~1,075,026,347 ordinary shares, 100% 100%  Providing securities
HKS1,075,416,347 brokerage services
BESARAT “WANETRZTR  ERERAR 1,075,006,347 fi & Bl - REEHOLRE
1,075,416, 347 A7
Glory Sun Services Limited 28 Qctober 2016 Hong Kong, imited fiability company 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100% 100%  Providing back office
support to the Group
EiREARAR ZERETAZTNR BRRRAT 1RERR 14T RASERERAZRIR
%
Gallant Tech Limfted 10 May 2007 Hong Kong, limited liability company 5,000,000 ordlinary shares, 100% 100% Trading of machines
HK$5,000,000 and spare parts and
investment holding
ENRRERAR ZZELERATE BAERAR 5,000,000k LMK - BEREHEE AN RRE
5,000,000 %7 i
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38.

212

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation and

38. FEMBLAT &)

Issued/fully paid up/registered ~Effective interest held

Name of subsidiary establishment kind of legal entity share capital by the Company  Principal activities
AL/ B/ BR{T/BM8R/
it P AMEL/RIRE  SEREREARE BETREK AAIRENERER TEXE
2024 2023
cEomE CBCcF
Indirectly held: (Continued)
HERE: ()
Handmoon Investments Limited 31 Qctober 2016 The BVI, limited liability company 1 ordinary share of US$ 100% 100%  Property investment
ERRERRAR ZERETAZT-B EBRAHSERAF 1REREE 1 ZTOEARRR VESE
Harvest Joy Investments Limited 26 QOctober 2016 The BVI, limited liability company 1 ordlinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EMEERRAR IR RETACTAE RERAESERAT 1RERER 1 ZTHEBRRH MERE
Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset 23 April 2012 Hong Kong, imited fiabity company 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Management Limited securities investment
EARNARERARAR ZE-CEMAZTZA BRARAT 1RERR - 1787 RERREESRE
Lahua TaiSheng Limited® 8 June 2011 The PRC, limited liabiity company ~ Registered RMB1,650,000,000 100% 100% Property development
RERERRAT 555808 PERREMAH BB AR 1,650,000,0007C VEES
Laihua TaiFeng Limited* 10 January 2012 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB600,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
RERGARLA ZZCE-ATR PEEREELR BEEARE 6000000007 VIEEES
Shanghai Chuangguang Electronics 7 April 2017 The PRC, limited liabifty company ~ Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Trading of machines and
Co., Limited" Spare parts
LREREFERAR ZZ-tEmAtA  PEERERAF BERARE5,000,0007T HBREPHES
Shanghai Hunlicar Investment 4 May 2014 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Investment management
Management Co., Ltd"
HEERREERARAR ZZ-MERAMA REERELLR BEEARES50,000,0007T REER
Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holoing - 11 April 2016 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB1,800,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
CGompany limited
MIERREARARAR ZERENAT-R HEARREAR BEAR1,800,000,0007 RERR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. XEMBLT (2

Date of incorporation/

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation and

Issued/fully paid up/registered

Effective interest held

Name of subsidiary establishment kind of legal entity share capital by the Company  Principal activities
AL/ H/ BR{7/E8R/
HEAR AR AMAL/HIAS  SERERIAER BELRE AAIRRNERER TERE
2024 2023
ZETRE CTo=F
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiRE: ()
Shantou Taisheng 1 November 2016 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB2,310,000,000  93.33% 51% Property investment and
(Note g) development
Hiita)
TR ZTRET-A-R HEAREMAR BEZARH 2,310,000,0007C NERERER
Shenzhen B8K New Energy Co., 4 November 1999 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB720,000,000 75.5% 75.5%  Property investment
Limited” (‘Shenzhen B&K')
A Rk ERAA “WANET-ANE  RERREFAR BEZARE720000,0007T ES e
s EE)
Shenzhen Bangkal Commercial 26 February 2014 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB30,000,000 - 100% Inactive
Property Co., Ltd*
MITRAEERRAR Z2-MEZAZTRE HEAREEAR BEZARE30,000,0007 EXH
Shenzhen Bao Da Financial Services 12 October 2015 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co,, Lid*
MImEELRREERAA ZE-RETATIR REAREMAR BRZARHS,000,0007T RERRK
Shenzhen Gallant Financial Leasing 8 November 2016 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered HK$500,000,000 100% 100% Finance leasing
Co,, Ltd*
MIENRERERRAR ZE2RET-ANR RERREAAR EE500,000,00077 MEHE
Shenzhen Gallant Tech Co., Ltd* 23 June 2006 The PRC, limited liability company ~ Registered RMB260,000,000 100% 100% Trading of machines and
spare parts
MITENEEEFHRERARY BT E A-T=R TEEFRERLA EECARE260,000,0007T BBREHEES
Shenzhen Qianhai Bao Xin Equity 1 April 2017 The PRC, limited liabilty company ~ Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Investment management
Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd.*
MITHSEEREREESER —B—tENA-B  TEEREALA BEZARES50,000,0007 REER

ARAA
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HE_Z-WF+-—A=+—HILFE
38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. EEMBLTF (&)
Place of incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation and Issued/fully paid up/registered ~Effective interest held
Name of subsidiary establishment kind of legal entity share capital by the Company  Principal activities
AL/ B/ BR{T/BM8R/
WEAREH HRAY/HIAE  SESERIAEE BETRE AAIRENERER TEXE
2024 2023
ZEoRE CE-CF
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BiieE (8
Smart Riches Limited 13 January 2011 The BV, limited liabiity company 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Inactive
fEHERAF “T—4-At=A EERREEERAA 1REREE 1 ZTOEARRR EEXHK
Ultra Glory Investments Limited 17 May 2016 The BVI, limited liability company 1 ordlinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRREBRAA ZENERATHE  ABRAESERAT 1RERER 1 ZTHEBRRH MERE
World Fair International Limited 27 December 1996 Hong Kong, limited liabilty company 10,000 ordinary share, 100% 100% Inactive
HK$10,000
HRARERAR “NMAETZAZT B ERERAT 10000/ &K * 100007 Eaxk
For identification purpose only
None of the subsidiaries had issued debt securities at the end of the REXR BEMBARRITELE
year. Z5 o
(@) Further acquisition of Shantou Taisheng (a) E—FTUWFEIMEETHRE
The Group acquired 51% equity interest in Shantou Taisheng in REEBR-_ZE-_=F=A U
March 2023. Based on the arrangement as disclosed in note 41 I BE T 22 BX B 519% A% 4 - iR 1%
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group would acquire REMEHmERM T4 TEREN
further 49% equity interest in Shangtou Taisheng within 12-months ZH o REBRE —FEERINE
from the completion of the first tranche acquisition (“Original 2nd SEAK 12 12 (8 A R — FUEE I
Tranche Acquisition”). THTI IR AL 49% Mk ([JRE =
PEERWER ) -
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. XEMBLT (2

(@) Further acquisition of Shantou Taisheng (Continued) (@) E—FURBIEETH R

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
March 2024, in late 2023, Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holding
Company Limited*, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Purchaser”) was informed by the principal
contractor of the development and construction project undertaken
by Shantou Taisheng located at Longhu District, Shantou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Project”) that there would
be certain delay to the progress of examination and settlement
of the properties under the Project, leading to a certain part of
the Project not being completed as scheduled. As a result of the
delay in completion of the Project, additional time was required for
the satisfaction of the conditions precedent for the Original 2nd
Tranche Acquisition. On 22 March 2024, the Purchaser and GSLG
procured Shenzhen Hong Jia Xin Technology Limited*, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Sun Land Group (the “Vendor”)
entered into the first supplemental agreement, pursuant to which
the Purchaser and the Vendor mutually agreed to extend the
completion of the Original 2nd Tranche Acquisition from 22 March
2024 to 30 June 2024.

In May 2024, the Purchaser proposed to the Vendor to downsize
the Original 2nd Tranche Acquisition from 49% to 42.33% of the
total equity interest and actual paid-up registered capital of the
Target Company at a consideration of RMB975,690,000. On
31 July 2024 (after trading hours), the Purchaser and the Vendor
entered into the second supplemental agreement (“Second
Supplemental”) to amend certain terms and conditions under the
original sale and purchase agreement.

During this year, the second tranche was completed, with the
details of considerations as follows:

(i) by off-setting the amount due from GSLG to Shantou
Taisheng (Note 26) of approximately RMB436.50 million;

/43
(A=)
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AT -_HHNAEREE -
REZEZ=FK  A27HE
2EMBRARRYIERIRE R
ERAR(TER ) EILSET
BN B EREIITE™N EEH
EAFEERER ([ZEA D
M@FEMEEN ZEETY
ENBENEEEREBLR—
FERERR - BEUIHE K& T 5
DIRAREEMERT - ANIE
BREE®RT  FEmINGHE®
G el = g R S R S
e R—ZE-_NF=F=+=
H EFRBHEHEEESN
B2 BEEZENBRRR
NEEFEREBERAG(E
FDRINE AT &
I EARBEAERBEER
FoBBWEERA =T =Y
FZA-_+-_HERE_-Z
ZPESRA=+H-

RZE_WNFRA  BEFEs
ERSRE_BERKEBZEZ
NABRERERHEEME
RER49% HERE 42.33% * R(B
AAR975,690,0007C ° K=
ToMFEFA=+—RB (X 5K
Bi&) BARBARIMNE=M
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LMEETREEWZEEBE & TIF
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

216

(@) Further acquisition of Shantou Taisheng (Continued)

(i

(i)

by off-setting a sum of approximately RMB371.30 million
equivalent to the final outstanding principal amount
and interest accrued on the secured loan owed by an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of GSLG, to Xiamen
International Bank Fuzhou Branch up to its due date (i.e. 19
October 2025) that Shantou Taisheng has provided a land as
pledge (Note 41). Upon the second tranche completion: (a)
the Company entered into a deed of undertaking whereby it
shall undertake to repay Xiamen International Bank Fuzhou
Branch, for and on behalf of an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of GSLG, the outstanding principal amount
and interest accrued under the secured loan as and when
they fall due; and (b) the Purchaser entered into the share
charge agreement with the Vendor whereby the Purchaser
(as chargor) shall execute a charge over 16% of the total
equity interest and actual paid-up registered capital it holds
in the Shantou Taisheng subsequent to the second tranche
completion in favour of the Vendor (as chargee) until the full
and final settlement of the secured loan; and

by off-setting a sum equivalent to the amount of
approximately RMB167,884,000 due from GSLG Group
to the Company. This amount is created under certain
debt exchange and capital reduction and distribution of an
associate of the Company, Yunnan as disclosed in note 17.

The acquisition of the second tranche acquisition was completed
after the approval at a shareholder meeting on 22 November 2024.
The Group recognised the difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted of approximately
HK$1,499,475,000 and the fair value of the consideration of
approximately HK$1,050,915,000 paid to “Reserve”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(@) Material non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information for subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests
that are material to the Group. The information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2024
it Sk 2

Shenzhen
B&K
el EAL]

Percentage of equity FERESEENES
interests held by non- BAk
controlling interests 24.5%

Summarised consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December

2024

ZE-mF

Shenzhen

B&K

3 EXE

HK$°000

TRT

Current assets RBEE 23,375

Current liabilities ik (358,150)

Non-current assets FREBEE 2,098,298

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (683,576)

Net assets EERE 1,079,947
Net assets allocatedto 2B FHERERNE

non-controlling interests EF & 264,587

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

39. FFIERRED
(a) EXFERER

2024
—EomE
Shantou
Taisheng

WM RE

6.67%

2024
“BClE
Shantou
Taisheng
WE TR EE
HK$'000

TET

2,509,953
(880,040)

1,953,485
(104,187)

3,479,211

232,063

BEEAFZREZHEL
AZRIBEREE

UTHEEAKEMSAEKR
FEERR R R B D B Z AR
EUBEMBE - L THZE7
BERRRERRFMEHEA 2
T -

2023 2023
—TC=F B 2
Shenzhen Shantou
B&K Taisheng
|51 B R
24.50% 49%

Rt=—A=1+—HB&EEH

Bk R E

2023 2023
TE-=E —E-=E
Shenzhen Shantou
B&K Taisheng
wFEL AT REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL
18,663 3,281,119
(302,737) (1,629,209
2,305,627 2,012,761
(775,023) (262,170)
1,246,530 3,502,501
305,400 1,716,225
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 39. FFIERRER 2

(a) EXIFRRRER ()

(@) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

BE+=A=1+—HILFE

Summarised consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 W E 2 E K E
December
2024 2024 2023 2023
—EomE kS 13 —E-=F ZE-CF
Shenzhen Shantou Shenzhen Shantou
B &K Taisheng B&K Taisheng
FRYIFBE T RE RIIFE LSBT ZRAE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR T TR
Revenue & 120,398 76,289 117,843 128,821
Loss for the year FEBR (127,259) (110,404) (10,806) (90,957)
Total comprehensive loss 2 EEBEE (166,584) (23,291) (10,806) (90,957)
Total comprehensive AEFHFERESH
(loss)/income allocated 27 (&5i8) /Wi
to non-controlling &
interests (40,813) 15,313 (2,647) (44,569)

Summarised consolidated statement of cash flows for

the year ended 31 December

Cash flow from operating
activities

Cash flow from investing
activities

Cash flow from financing
activities

Net cash inflows/(outflows)

REEDELN
Heng
RARDELN
Heng
RERDELN
Heng
RERA/ (Rt ) F8

2024
“EoNE
Shenzhen
B&K

RYIFBE

HK$'000

TR

18,334

(4,543)

(14,864)
(1,073)

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

2024
—g-pg

Shantou

Taisheng
PIGEGE =]
HK$'000

THET

(9,915)

10,730
815

BE+-A=1—HIFE
WEEREREREE

2023 2023
—E-=F e et
Shenzhen Shantou
B&K Taisheng
A AT 2R 8
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THL
(4,637) (26,951)
22,577 (1)
21,828 25,291
39,768 (1,661)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The following transactions with non-controlling interests were
accounted for as equity transactions as the changes in the
Group’s ownership interest did not result in a loss of control over
its subsidiaries.

(i) On 28 January 20283, Glory Sun Financial Holdings Limited
(“GSFHL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share transfer agreement with an independent
third party to acquire additional 14.73% equity interest in
GAL, a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
at the consideration of HK$110,000,000. Upon the
completion date, GAL became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of GSFHL and the Company. The Group recognised a
decrease in non- controlling interests of approximately
HK$64,939,000 and an decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$45,061,000.

(i)  On 22 March 2023, Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holding
Company Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 51% equity interest
in Shantou Taisheng. For more information, please refer to
note 41. The Group futher aquired 42.33% equity interest in
Shantou Taisheng during the year and details are set out in
note 38(a).

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

39. FiERHER @)
(b) EFRREEXH

MR ARBE A EERNE
I & BUR K H B A B E
w4 - AT EAIEERER
R Z AR SR

() MZZT—_=F—HA=+AN
A EFamzERER
AR([EFSmER] -
AR EEKBAR) R
— BB FE=ZHEIMK
mEERE WKES
MERRQB(ARAE
FrZIEEENBAR)EE
IN14.73% R #E - KB B
110,000,0007% 7T ° 1 78
R EEE - SHMBRAF
MAEM SRR EAR
AMEEWBAR - A%
R ey A )
64,939,000 T & & A
RIMEA AR DA
45,061,000 7T °

iy M-TE-_=F=F—-+=
B RUNEREEZRSE
RARI(ARRIEEEE
MEBAR)E—ZBIE
= AR EE R
AU SE T Rk Bl
FRAR]Z51% B - Hitb
BRE2HEM T4 - AE
B A F N — U EEILEE
T & 3% 42.33% A% 1 - 7
1B AT EE 38(a) °
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. FEBRERERME
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax for the (a) FEERMEBRIGRR
year to cash generated from operations: BEXRTRENEacH
R :

2024 2023
—ENE —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET

(Loss)/profit before income tax from operations 3R B 45 4 3£ 15 89 BR FT1S 4 Al

(E18) &7 (389,890) 68,097
Adjustments for: YEH AT 3% -
— Interest income - FLEHA (71,257) (61,793
— Finance costs (Note 10) - IR (BFE10) 130,998 92,854
- Dividend income (Note 7) - BB (F3E7) - (65)
— Depreciation of property, plant and - ¥ BERREITE
equipment (Note 15) (FFzE15) 16,800 56,180
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) - Bz & EE ks (ffizr 18) 48 48
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and - HEWE - BERZBER
equipment (Note 7) Weas (MIEET) (45,129) (28)
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries - HEWBARIM (),
(Note 7) E1a (fiEE7) (476) 618
— Loss on early termination of lease - IRATR I E R ESIE - =
— Loss allowance on financial guarantee - BIERE NI RE
contract (Note 7) (PfFEET) - 9,517
— Fair value loss on investment properties - IEYEN AT EEE
(Note 16) (MtzE16) 280,741 20,704
— Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition — — W&& — RSB B A T E £ Y
of a subsidiary HEBE WG = (550,515)
— Recovery of impairment losses on financial - WE—RHBATIEAR
assets arising from acquisition of a SRUEEREREEWE
subsidiary (Note 23) (FfizE23) - (259,117)
— Loss on derecognition of goodwill (Note 18) - 4% |F &R R &1 E1E
(KizE18) 17,795 -
— (Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment - &5k} 23k CRi{E B B 1
losses on loans and advances (Note 23) B),/RiEkE
(s 23) (22,629) 351,386
— Impairment losses on other receivables - H b IR R E RS 18
(Note 26) (Fftsx26) 58,076 5,413
— Impairment losses on trade receivables - BB ZEFRERE
(Note 24) (ff3E24) 1,476 10,022
— Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment  — & 4&ERI{EEE, O
losses) on contract assets (Note 25) EEsE#E) (KizE25) 84 (31)
- Write-down of inventories of properties - WRMERFE 151,329 170,009
— Write off of property, plant and equipment - ¥12 - /= Mk &5 - 714
— Share of results of associates (Note 17) - DREE A REE
(MHsE17) 12,235 18,472
Operating profit before working capital HEEREHRINEEEN
changes 140,201 (67,515)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. IFEBRERERPE 2
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax for the (a) FFEERMRERNGIRE
year to cash generated from operations: (Continued) BRERBRENREcH
e )
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Changes in working capital: EBESED
— Inventories -FE 463 51,267
— Loans and advances - BRI ER 7,667 377,871
— Client trust bank balances - BEEiR1TE (37,527) 17,739
— Completed properties held for sale and - B IRENEMERE
properties under development GRS 358,658 66,259
— Finance lease receivables - FER R B EFRIE (6,641) 17,523
— Financial assets at FVTPL - RATFEFAEZNESR
BE (56,546) (13,054)
— Trade and other receivables and contract ~ — FEUE 5 BR 7% K2 EL4th g U
assets FHERGHEE (257,532) 132,581
— Trade and other payables and contract - BT E SR R E A RS
liabilities FEREHEE (274,419) (484,630)
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIRE (125,676) 98,311
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF
(b)

(c)

222

CASH FLOWS (continued)

40. IFERKRERME @)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEEFMELERRCH
activities: iR :
This section sets out an analysis the movements in liabilities from REHI S 2 HRAFREED
financing activities for each of the periods presented. FTELBEZEEDNT -
Other
payables Other
Bank and toanon- payables Placement
Corporate other Interest Lease controlling to related of
bonds borrowings payables liabilities Interest parties Shares Total
EftfEf 0351
DREE  BOREMEE ERTE HESE FERERZE  BEANRE RERH At
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 31) (Note 29(a)) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 34)
(Hsks2) (Hzk32) (H3k31) (Hf3¥29(a)) (HsE31) (HsEs1) (HsEa4)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TEn T#n TR TER TR TEn
Asat 1 January 2023 ~F =5 F—F (341,000) (1,067 464) (66,504) (4,340) (35,824) (1,389) = (1,506,515)
Fnancingcash  BEERETL/ (FA)
outfow/inlows) 28000 (360,894) 7793 223 = = (330411) (583,136)
Financecosts ~ BHT&ACES = = 92,234) 620) = = = (92,854)
Other it = = = - 35,824 1,383 - 37,207
Exchange A%
redlignment - 17,965 - 4 - - - 17,969
Asat31December W=FZ=%+ZA
2023 and 1 =t-AR-E-mF
January 2024 -A-H (313,000) (1,410,393) (70,805) (2,720) - - (330,411) (2,127,329)
Fancngcash  EEER&RL/ (FA)
outflow/(inflows) 23,000 39,628 146,190 2,540 - - - 211,358
Fnancecosts ~ Bf&AUA - - (130,719) (279) - - = (130,998)
Other - - - - (4,565) - - 330,411 325,846
Exchange ERBE
redlignment - 50,872 - 36 - - - 50,908
As at 31 December H=F-M&+=f
2024 =t-A (290,000) (1,319,893) (55,334) (4,988) - - - (1,670,215)
Non-cash transactions (c) FHE&EXH

During the year, an associate distributed certain receivables from
GSLG with carrying amount of HK$181,314,000 to the Group
which is considered as a non-cash transactions.

In addition, the consideration for acquisition of acquisition of
Shantou Taisheng is settled through certain offset arrangement.
Details of the acquisition is set out in note 38(a).

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

FR-—HBERRRAEE
IRBREE A 181,314,000 4 7T
JEWB B 2 & T3IE - %
REWRBIERER S °

WSR2 B 2 (KB
L

A
BERETHRHELHEE -
FBE ML 38()
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41. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 41. Ifi§ R E—HEELAT

(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial BEFE_E_NM¥FE+—-HA

(a)

Property Co., Ltd during the year ended 31
December 2024

On 23 June 2024, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest
in Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial Property Co., Ltd which was
principally engaged in property management services for a cash
consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,516,000).

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follow:

=+—HIEFEHSRI
THUEERRLF

RZE-ZWMEFEASNAZ+=
B A&EUBREAREBAR
¥5,000,0007C( 8 & R 4
5,516,000/ 7T ) & H R R
MBS EBPRAFIH 100% A%
- ZAREBERENEETE
AR5 °

REERHNEEFEINT ¢

2024
—EME
HK$’000
FEx
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 145
Investment property KB 11,862
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 14
Trade and other receivables FEUSEE 5 BR 5% B H A fE W R IE 7,089
Trade and other payables FER B 5 AR 5 Ho b FE < 5B (13,659)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 5,451
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7): H&—FRKiB A TWES (FEE7) :
Cash consideration HeRE 5,516
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (5,451)
Release of exchange reserve FREREE N 41
476
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEENRERATE :
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 5,516
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It EMRE RN EEY (14)
5,502
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HE_Z-WF+-—A=+—HILFE

41.

224

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Acquisition of Shantou Taisheng during the year
ended 31 December 2023

On 19 October 2022, the Company procured the Purchaser and
GSLG to enter into an agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser
conditionally agrees to acquire, and the Vendor conditionally agrees
to sell, 100% of the total equity interest and actual paid-up registered
capital of Shantou Taisheng in two tranches. The 1st tranche acquisition
(representing 51% of the total equity interest and actual paid-up
registered capital of the Shantou Taisheng) was completed on 22 March
2023.

2nd tranche acquisition is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver, as the
case may be) of the conditions precedent set forth in the aforementioned
agreement, the Vendor shall dispose the 2nd tranche sale equity interest
(representing the remaining 49% of the total equity interest and actual
paid-up registered capital of the Shantou Taisheng held by the Vendor)
to the Purchaser within twelve months from 1st tranche completion.

The 1st and 2nd tranche considerations are amounting to
RMB1,175,550,000 and RMB1,129,450,000 respectively.

The 1st tranche consideration should be paid by cash and set-off loans
principal together with the corresponding interest due from GSLG
(Note 23) of RMB12,100,000 (equivalent to HK$16,285,000) and
RMB1,163,400,000 (equivalent to HK$1,326,544,000) respectively.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

41.

W RS B i &5 — IR S 22 )

\':’/

BE_S"_=%+"RA=1+—
H 1k BEU AR BR T 38 2%

RZZF-__F+A+NA  ARGER
EE T RE#M BB - Bt
BEAGMABKREME S A GRIR

BEOMAHEINETRBERELE
BREUE M E AR 100% © 5 —HE K

BUEILBEmERERARENERHR
EMEARNS1%) ERN T -=F=
B-+—-H%m

Fo_BEBREBARmE (R#HE R
TRULIMRE ) L it 175 3 P 8 S0 R R 1 1
TEEE BARRE —EETEKRE
TEARRETHES —EERHEE
P (BNE 5 #5 AW AT Tk 2 FIgk
49% B E M BERBREMER) -

F—RE_BBREDS A AA
R %1,175,550,00073 AR E
1,129,450,000 7T °

FREBERBREINES RIEHEEK
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(Hf3E23) © E'E/\E%Qwoooo
(8 & 16,285,000/ 7T ) &
A B #1,163,400,0007C( # & »
1,326,544,00087T) S+t -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

Acquisition of Shantou Taisheng during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (Continued)

Shantou Taisheng has certain balances due from subsidiaries of GSLG
(“GSLG Group”). As at the date of agreement, the balance outstanding
was RMB415,000,000. In addition, Shantou Taisheng has granted a
land charge (“Land Charge”) to Xiamen International Trust Co., Ltd. for
securing the loan of RMB360,000,000 (“Secured Loan”) granted to
GSLG Group which shall be mature on 19 October 2026. Pursuant to
the agreement, the 2nd tranche consideration should be offset with the
amount due from GSLG Group and the Group shall direct the payment
of consideration to repay the Secured Loan and the corresponding
interest.

Shantou Taisheng is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability and is solely engaged in a development and construction project
located at Longhu District, Shantou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC,
with total land area of approximately 167,000 sq.m. which involve office
and commercial buildings, residential units and loft apartments.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
3 October 2022 and 22 March 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 28 February 2023. The shareholders of the Company have
approved the acquisition 100% equity interest in Shantou Taisheng in
March 2023.

41.
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e RS Bt HH &5 — I S 2 )

()

BE_S_=F+"A=+-—
H 1L SF BN RRANSR T 3R B ()

IBATH RERE R 5 T FE UK B 3T & bt
BAR(EHBHER]) Witk -
RipHBEH REELEBAARE
415,000,0007T ° SE&h + L SE T Z= A%
BEREFMBEBRELEAERARE T
IR ([ LMK ]) - UIERABHE
& B &% F A R ¥ 360,000,000 7T 2
EX(BEAER]D  ZERBR
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41. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

226

(Continued)

Acquisition of Shantou Taisheng during the year

ended 31 December 2023 (Continued)

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed on

date of acquisition were as follow:

(#&)
(A8 /

gE—E_=

M.&%&&%-ﬁmﬁﬁﬂ

F+-A=+—

H 1k S B U RS SR B & (47)

RUEE B E W R 3R B B M B K

BEREFEIAFENT

HK$’000
Fi&T
Investment properties LB 2,078,434
Properties under development BERPYE 1,669,266
Properties held for sales BIEREWE 943,945
Amount due from GLSG Group FEUS B 37 B Hh S B FIB
— settlement arrangement under the 2nd tranche - B HEEREBZEETH (M)
consideration (Note (a)) 496,447
Prepayment for construction BRI 329,744
Prepayment for land appreciation tax (‘LAT”) T 3B AR ([ 3B EH ) 2 FEFIB 24,992
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 21,861
Others EHAh 18,886
Total assets EEHAE 5,583,575
Trade and other payables, accruals and bill payable JENESRAREMEMNTE - ETER
NENEE (969,278)
Contract liabilities ABHEE (6594,427)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE (300,836)
Financial guarantee issued (Note (b)) BT ER (3 () (6,595)
Total liabilities BEHAE (1,871,136)
Net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities EWEBARINEEREREEEFE
assumed 3,712,439
Less: Non-controlling interest (49%) T FEIE IR RS (49%) (1,819,095)
Attributed to purchaser B EMN 1,893,344
Consideration transfer EHEAE
Cash consideration HERE 16,285
Set off against loan receivable from GSLG and interest 35BN E T B E B E LB F 8
accrued 1,326,544
Total consideration HRE 1,342,829
Gain on bargain purchase (Note (c)) EEBEWE (M () 550,515
Net cash inflow on acquisition WHELENRESRAFE 3,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Acquisition of Shantou Taisheng during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Shantou Taisheng has an amount due from GSLG Group of RMB415,000,000 on
the date of entering into the acquisition. The counterparties have agreed to have this
balance being considered as part of the settlement for the 2nd tranche acquisition.
The management of the Group considered the fair value of the amount due is
approximate to the amount agreed to offset.

(b) Balance represents financial guarantees issued by Shantou Taisheng for the Secured
Loan. Fair value of the financial guarantees on acquisition date was determined by the
AP Appraisal Limited, a firm of professional valuer. The counterparties have agreed
to have the consideration payable by the Group for the 2nd tranche acquisition to be
directed to the relevant lenders.

(c) The Group has engaged a professional valuer to evaluate the fair values of the target
company at the date of acquisition and the difference represents the fair value over
their net book values at the acquisition date.

The asset approach is applied in the valuation of the 100% equity
interests of the target company. The asset approach determines a fair
value indication of a business, business ownership interest, security,
or intangible asset by using one or more methods based on the value
of the assets net of liabilities. Value is established based on the cost of
reproducing or replacing the property, less depreciation from physical
deterioration and functional and economic obsolescence, if present and
measurable.

The gain on bargain purchase of approximately HK$550,515,000 is
attributable to the Group’s bargaining power and ability in negotiating
the agreed terms of the transaction with its counter party, especially,
the Vendor disposing Shangtou Taisheng at a discount due to lack of
funding to repay the loan and corresponding interest payable upon
expiry (Note 23), and is immediately recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The acquisition enables the Group to participate in the project adheres
to the Group’s business strategies in further expanding its property
investment and development portfolio. The project forms part of a large
scale urban development in Shantou City, comprising intelligent complex
integrating high-end residence, cultural centre, five-star hotel, top-
notch business, office buildings, offices and aesthetic mansions. The
urban development is designed to promote regional development and
innovation, encourage industrial upgrading of the city and to stimulate
economic growth.

41.

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE
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{

435 )

=/
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FRE -

{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

42. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 42. BF B H ki
Capital and other expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but AEBRFERBITNERREENE
not yet incurred by the Group were as follows: AREMEZOT :
2024 2023
—ENE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: ERTAEREE
Investment properties and property WEYERYEERS N
development expenditures 3,389,384 3,585,118
Investment in an associate 158 — A8 E A A 215,158 215,158
The 2nd tranche acquisition payment for non-  #t 3R RG2S & 1+ 58 — B BRI RE 70
controlling interest (Note 38) 18 (F13£38) - 1,255,000

3,604,542 5,055,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NFE+-_A=+—BIFE

43. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as recognised at the end of the year are analysed into the following
categories. See note 4.10 for explanations about how the category of
financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

MRRERE

43. BRI ENBEER &

AEERFRERNEBREERAR
MRREEZ NI EIEL AT - B
THMTEMNDBHERKGFENTE
FE2HME 410898 -

Financial assets
Measured at fair value
— Financial assets at FVOCI

— Financial assets at FVTPL

Measured at amortised cost
— Trade receivables
— Finance lease receivables
— Loans and advances
— Deposits and other receivables
— Client trust bank balances
— Pledged bank deposit and restricted
deposits
— Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
— Trade and bills payables
— Accruals and other payables
— Borrowings

TRMEE
B FlERTE
- BAFEFARMMEEREZ
TREE
- BAFEFABSNESREE

B A E

- FRUCE SR

- AR ERYIR

- BERRBK

- e MEMEKRIA

- BEPERRTTAR

- BEFRITEFREZRBIFR

-ReMRSFEY

EEMeE

BB EH AT E
- BB SRR RN TR
- EET &R R EA R IR
- B8

2024 2023
—EMF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&TT
23,312 38,076
198,353 141,807
268,160 80,432
8,593 1,953
147,301 132,339
96,738 54,748
169,812 132,285
146,073 515,367
777,707 562,293
1,836,049 1,659,300
1,066,430 1,119,629
584,919 256,440
1,609,893 1,723,393
3,261,242 3,099,462
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44.

230

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
44.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the senior management of the Group under policies approved by
the directors of the Company.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and in the
PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to Hong Kong dollar and RMB denominated
transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in currency that is not the respective
Company’s functional currency.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s cash and
bank balances, deposits and other receivables and loans
and advances are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
RMB and US dollar other than the functional currency of
the relevant group companies. Since Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to US dollar, the Group believes the exposure of
transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollar which are
entered into the Group to be insignificant.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% with all other variables
held constant, loss after income tax would have been
approximately HK$12,708,000 lower/higher (2023:
profit after income tax would have been approximately
HK$2,708,000 higher/lower).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 44. MHBRABREE 2

The Group manages its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the level of foreign currency
receipts and payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time. The Group also regularly reviews
the portfolio of suppliers and the currencies in which the
transactions are denominated so as to minimise the Group’s

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 441 A EREER &)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TEERRE)

7 5 18 B2 52 4B LSRR e £
FOKF - FEABERIMNERR
SHIER o AR EERA
7S F) SN e B R T B
MERAEZKFE - F
- AEEE ST e
BHAERRZER  FE

exposure to foreign exchange risk. RS BB NE RS o
Price risk 1E15 2 b

The Group is exposed to equity price change arising from
its financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI.
The Group’s financial instruments are equity securities which
are subject to change in market prices of the securities.
To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Group diversity its portfolio.

For those equity investments at FVTPL and FVOCI with
quoted market price. The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure to equity price risk
at the end of the reporting period. If equity prices had been
10% higher/lower (2023: 10% higher/lower):
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

232

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

Loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2024 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$16,562,000 (2023:
profit after tax would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$11,841,000) due to the change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL; and other comprehensive income (2023:
other comprehensive expense) for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,947,000 (2023: profit after tax would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$3,179,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI.

The Group is not exposed to significant commodity price risk
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 44. MHBRABREE 2

441 MMEREER (&)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THERE)
Interest rate risk U= [z
Except for the cash held at banks, loans and advances and BRIRTTHREEFR - BERK
financial lease receivables, the Group has no other significant B K @& M & G
interest bearing assets. The Group’s income and operating BN AEEWEEME
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in KEJrE' BE o AEERA
market interest rates. At 31 December 2024, if interest rates @ﬁ%m%%$tT
on cash held at banks, loans and advances and finance “‘miﬁﬂ;i PR o
lease receivables had been 25 basis points higher/lower ZEWFE+Z A= "1'—
with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the CHERITRESER
year would have been approximately HK$1,653,000 lower/ ,\m)\&ﬁmlx/{&mﬂﬁﬁ

higher (2023: post-tax profit would have been approximately
HK$1,969,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at banks, loans and advances
and finance lease receivables.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank and other
borrowings which are interest bearing at floating rates
and are repayable based on the repayment schedules.
Borrowings issued at floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk.

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates on bank and other
borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,383,000 higher/
lower (2023: post-tax profit would have been approximately
HK$1,348,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Annual Report F3f 2024

W RBENEAS AK
25 BEZh - A Kb
HFTENBERT - R
BREE BB, 18 N
#71,653,0007& T —
T=F  BREBIB T
8 A 491,969,000
L) FZEHRBITES
TR BERRBFAKE
B ERRIEF BRA
A0, A ETE o

REBERHN =@
BRITREMEE - AR
BRPTIAMEE - FTiRF
BREESAEEARR S
//\LE%‘JTJ—HZDD °

2R B %

%

2 _mMF+ A
=t+—HB - WERTRE
i EFER A, FHE25
1I%¥£ TE BT A £ b 2 85
""""" BHERT  FAMK
%Rférﬁﬁa G0, R A #Y
1,383,000 L (ZE ==
FBRBEBRIBRY,
#HN#71,348,00078 7T ) -
FTERRFEEEET B
SN, SR AR o

233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

234

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from financial assets at amortised
cost.

As at 31 December 2024, the top five debtors and the
largest debtor accounted for approximately 79% (2023:
34%) and 45% (2023: 9%) of the Group’s trade receivables
balance, respectively. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. The Group normally conducts
credit checks on new customers and requires them, and
other customers with credit histories that the management is
not satisfied with, to pay a deposit, or to provide the Group
with a letter of credit when placing orders.

The Group provides clients with securities brokerage and
margin financing for securities transactions, which are
secured by clients’ securities or deposits held as collateral.
Each client has a maximum credit limit based on the quality
of collateral held and the financial background of the
client. Management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken overdue debts. The overdue balances for margin
clients are reviewed daily, and force-sell action may be taken
against clients with overdue balances on case by case basis.

For other loans and advances, prior to the lending of
loan, the financial strength, purpose of the borrowing and
repayment ability of the borrower is reviewed to ensure the
default probability is acceptably low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group as
set out in note 45, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 45.

In order to minimise the credit risk of the Group, the
management has implemented internal control procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

Impairment and provision policies

The Group’s impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 are
based on an expected credit loss model. The Group applies
simplified approach to measure ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets; and general approach to measure ECL
on loans and advances to customers and other financial
assets accounted for at amortised cost. Under the simplified
approach, the Group measures the loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial assets
migrate through the following three stages based on the
change in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1:
12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL credit-impaired.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

236

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s historical experience and expert credit
risk assessment, including forward-looking information. The
loan and advances use different indicators, including but not
limited to the number of days past due and loan-to-collateral
value to determine significant increase in credit risk. Credit
risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit
rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under ECL
model when the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@ Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances
are located in Hong Kong and the majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on cash and bank balances
and client trust bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or with
good reputation.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The counterparties of the majority of trade receivables
and contract assets are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the
concentration of credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets is manageable.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(o)  Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, ECL rate of contract
assets with a gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$17,600,000 (2023: HK$14,416,000) is assessed to
be 0.88% (2023: 0.5%). The loss allowance provision
for contract assets was approximately HK$156,000
(2023: HK$223,766).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade
receivables as at the end of reporting period:

Current (not past due)
1-30 days past due
31-60 days past due
61-90 days past due
91-120 days past due
121-365 days past due

5 (R )
BHIENA
98312608
AH61 208

BH91Z 1208
BE121 23658

IIVi\

BB EwRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

44. BERBER 2

UAMBEREER &)

(b)

=EmEE (&)

EfgERRERAE B E
E (&)

b ERESERRAE

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the

expected lives of the receivables.

HEE (&)
TRIBHE B AR
EHRAEENE
BRI R ERE
SERNESREER
EEER
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
ZE-MET=A=t-H ZRCZETCA=T-H
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carnying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance loss rate amount Alowance
RHERE FEsE G ke RELE BRER
% HK$000 HK$000 % HKS000 HK$000
% T THR % T T
0%-0.88% 129,279 124 0%-1.56% 51,081 797
0%-1.45% 127,393 2,096 0%-4.54% 4,796 218
0%-2.54% 2,436 62 0%-6.60% 7481 49
0.01%-2.95% 1,463 43 0.01%-8.53% 1,247 106
0.01%-3.07% 812 21 0.01%9.83% 3207 317
0.01%-62.09% 21,352 12,283 0.01%-44.00% 25,753 11,227
282,795 14,635 93,591 13,159
BEHEEEER
BAESFENERE
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

240

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(©

Loans and advances

The counterparties of the majority of loans and
advances (including margin loans and other loan
financing) are mainly located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The management prepares an analysis of key
margin clients to avoid excessive concentration of
risk. As at 31 December 2024, the credit risk of the
Group on loans and advances are concentrated on
3 (2023: 3) customers with gross aggregate carrying
amount of HK$601,561,000 (2023: HK$764,893,000).
The remaining customers are diversified into a large
number.

The Group measures loss allowances for loans
and advances on either 12-month or lifetime basis
depending on whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether
an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. ECL is
calculated using the key parameters include probability
of default (“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”), exposure
at default, time value of money with reference to the
quantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as
ratings of counterparties and types of collaterals).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=1+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(©

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default from
initial recognition of loans and advances and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the loans and
advances, generally on individual basis, as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The following
indicators are generally incorporated: (i) external
credit rating (if any); (i) actual or expected significant
adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the counterparties ability to meet their
obligations; and (jii) significant actual and expected
changes in the performance and behaviour of the
counterparties, including changes in the payment
status of counterparties in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances (continued)

For margin loan receivables, credit assessments are
part of the normal process before approving loans to
applicants. The Group considers that the credit risk
arisen is significantly mitigated by the collaterals.

There have been no significant changes in estimation
technique or significant assumptions made during the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(©

Loans and advances (continued)

The following table provides information about
movement of allowance for impairment losses on loans
and advances as at the end of reporting period:

Stage 1
FE1RER

HK$’000
FERx

At 1 January 2024 RZEZNFE—A—H -
Provision for impairment J&i {8 &8 =
Written off s _

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NWF+-_A=1+—HILFE

44. BERBER 2

UAMBEREER &)
(b) EEREEE)

Hi s ERER a2 E
E (&)

© EBEXRRBHRGE)

TREHAMER
BTSSR
90 1R 1
BEER

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

E2MER FEIMER st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
F&T FHET FHET

72,785 648,827 721,612
- (22,629) (22,629)

At 31 December 2024 W-Z_ME+_H

72,785 626,198 698,983

7,824 838,460 846,284

=+—8H -

Gross amount as at R-ZE-WF+—A
31 December 2024 —+t—HRNRLHE -
Stage 1
FAMEER
HK$’000
FH&TT

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
EoPER  EIMR #Et

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAET TAT

At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H
Provision for impairment 35 & % & =
Written off 6! _

72,785 556,558 629,343
= 92,269 92,269

At 31 December 2023 W-ZE-=%+—-A4
S—E

72,785 648,827 721,612

Gross amount as at R-E-_=F+—A
31 December 2023 —+t—HNREHE —

22,297 831,654 853,951
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)
44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)
(c) Loans and advances (continued)
The significant changes in the loss allowance in loans
and advances are as follows:
31 December 2024
(i) There is none of loans and advances transfer
from stage 1 to stage 2 and stage 3.

31 December 2023

(i) There is none of loans and advances transfer
from stage 1 to stage 2 and stage 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

@

Other receivables and deposits

In respect of other receivables and deposits, the
Group monitors the exposures and manages the other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records and past experience. At the reporting date,
the credit risk on other receivables and deposits have
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures loss allowances for other receivables
and deposits at an amount equal to 12 months
ECL. As at 31 December 2024, the gross amount
of deposits and other receivables are approximately
HK$252,356,000 (2023: HK$36,832,000).
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

246

44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to settle the payables of the Group.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
senior management of the Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
In addition, due to the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government
management aims to monitor and manage its operating
cashflows and transactions denominated in RMB regularly to
minimise the respective liquidity risk.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve which comprise undrawn borrowing facilities
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
while minimising its overall costs by keeping a mix of
committed and uncommitted credit lines available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NWF+-_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 44. BERBER 2
44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 441 MERBER &)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEELEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial TRAXREBNIFTES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the BmAaEs  BEBRRS
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the HIRZ=AXE BB 8 8
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the FHIABE BRI EEE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. HiZER) - RINFTIE GRS R

REHNAMRBASRE -

Within
one year Between Between
or on one and two and Over
demand twoyears fiveyears five years

—FRH

RER —EMF MERLF BEREF @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

At 31 December 2024 RZEB-ME+ZA

=+-H
Trade and bill payables ENESEZRENEE 1,066,430 - - - 1,066,430
Accruals and other payables Bt ER R EMEMNFIE 653,232 = 3,490 10,133 666,855
Borrowings ES 1,750,393 4,884 22,451 15,561 1,793,289
Lease liabilities HEaRE 2,326 2,846 - - 5,172
3,472,381 7,730 25,941 25,694 3,531,746
Financial guarantee issued E&{THBER
Maximum amount guarantee &% ZB1E(R 409,674 = = = 409,674
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=AH
=+-H
Trade and bill payables EREZRFRENEE 1,119,629 = = - 1,119,629
Accruals and other payables  JEFTERRAMENTIE 473,242 3,788 2,537 7,596 487,163
Borrowings BE 1,052,283 143,290 674,461 - 1,870,034
Lease liabllities HEEE 1,404 1,152 352 = 2,008
2,646,558 148,230 677,350 7596 3,479,734
Financial guarantee issued E&{THBER
Maximum amount guarantee &% S 1E(R 440,379 - - - 440,379
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
44.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time, the amounts repayable are classified in
the earliest time bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment. Based on the internal information provided by
management, it is expected that the lender will not exercise
its rights to demand repayment. The expected cash flows
with reference to the schedule of repayments set out in the
loan agreements are as follows:

44. MERBER 2

44.1 3%
(c)

BFEER 2
TEELEE (E)

HEREASHE A EE
AR B R RORE
FIBERS ZSREEERAE
RERIGH - RIEREZK
HEERAFERERD
HPRRARSE - B
EREMRHEALER -
BHERALTEITEE
REFAZRIEEFIA - &
DE G i P EUE
&k BHHEEeREN
T

Between Between
Within one and two and Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years Total
—£R —-Z@ME  WEEF  BBLE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET THET T
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_ME+=F
=
Borrowings £ 1,828,083 4,884 22,451 15,561 1,870,979
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F+_A
=+-H
Borrowings E 1,064,802 143,290 674,461 31534 1,914,087
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or dispose of assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings and
shareholders equity. Capital is managed so as to maximise the
return to shareholders while maintaining a capital base to allow
the Group to operate effectively in the marketplace and sustain
future development of the business. Consistent with others in the
industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of gross gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity.

The Group’s total borrowings and total equity and gross gearing
ratio at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

44. BERBER 2
442 KB ER

AREHEREHEERARERAE
BRI ELE - RIRERIRM
B LEEDRTAE RS
& FARRBRENESGERE
BEEARRA - REBH)E

RRTAFABELER XK
7] g BT T RBCRAI AR
TH - BIOTHRIHLEEEN
RAREIR -

AEENELAEBRERFER
R - EAXE RN
R\ KL 4 175 & ANER
NEAREBRENET S AR
RENTBEETRRERH
R AEEABEBELRET
BEAR BEAEMBRIT 2
R T IR R E AR RERR A s
MEETE -

AEBR-_ZE_NFR_ZF
=+ -_A=+—HWEE
BMENERBREANMBREEL

Total borrowings BB
Total equity AR
Gross gearing ratio (%) BEELE (%)

T

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
1,609,893 1,723,393
5,590,289 7,099,252
28.8 24.3
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Fair value estimation

250

The fair value measurements of financial instruments of the Group
that are measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position are disclosed by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. For the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, instruments included in level 1 comprise listed investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at
FVOCI.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HZ2EEBRER D &

44. HERBREE 2
44.3 N F{EMAET

BEFEMBARRRAMIRF
BEEASENER TR &
RTRFEFERRT AR

B2

- REEEMSTHEREE
HEENREAERE
(F—EHR) -

- FB—EfMEANSREN
SN AR - BRAEA
B AT EZ (AIER)
s 5 (RN B ATE) Bt
EESABERBH(E
&) -

- EEERTERAUEBERED
B2BMEERABRA
2R (NI BR B ASIE)
(F=EHR) -

RREFEBMHEESH TR
MAFE S SREERAFHRT
Bt E - A2 0 EER RE BN
R X588 &4~ %7
- TERBUEEHERE
BWE BEMBARGEAE
B MABEERRKIEAT
AEETERRERETHT
BRG e AEBEBRENESRME
EFfMATSHREAZREA
BeZETAWAE—ER-
HEZZT_NERER-_ZFT=_=F
+—A=+—RHLFE F—
ERNTEBRGEARIEAY
Bt ABENEeREERER
FEFAEMZERZME R
BERLETWIRE o

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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44. BERBER 2
443 0 FEMAE (&)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44 3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Instruments included in level 2 comprise certain debt investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Instruments
included in level 3 comprise unlisted investments classified as
financial assets at FVOCI that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market as of 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include: Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HItFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. MERBER 2)
44.3Fair value estimation (Continued) 443 0FEMAE (&)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

TREZZE_NFEFER-_FT_=
F+-_A=+—HEAFEE

252

ENAEBECREE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—EBHR F-EHR F=ER #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHT FHT FHT FHT
As at 31 December 2024 R-E_UE
+=-A=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTABRASE
BE 20,585 177,768 - 198,353
Financial assets at FVOCI AP ER A M2 E e
L EREE 19,106 - 4,206 23,312
39,691 177,768 4,206 221,665
As at 31 December 2023 R-EBE-=F
+=—A=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTABRASE
BE 141,807 - - 141,807
Financial assets at FVOCI AP ERAEM 2 E s
ZEREE 33,870 - 4,206 38,076
175,677 - 4,206 179,883
There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during MEFEATEE— —R=
the years. B o Mz o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead) 44. BERBER 2
44.3Fair value estimation (Continued) 44.3 D FEMEEH &)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial assets: TXREINFE=BRLBEEL
gE) -
Financial
assets at
FVOCI
BAFEFA
Hit2EWK &=
ZEMEE
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—H—H 4,206
Fair value loss of financial assets at BEAHEG AR EARENREENEATE
FVOCI recognised in FVOCI reserve AR EEKENSEEN AT ERIE
= =
At 31 December 2023 and at RZZE=Z=F+=H
1 January 2024 =t+—BK
R-ZZE_NE—H—H 4,206
Fair value loss of financial assets at BEAEF AR ARG REENZATE
FVOCI recognised in FVOCI reserve FAEMEEKENSREEN AT EERE
D+E -
At 31 December 2024 NS
+—HA=+—H 4,206
Note: As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group valued its investments in Mzt RZT-_WOFRZZF_=F+=
unlisted shares classified as financial assets at FVOCI using back-solve A=+—B A&EEHHHEAREK
method which is not based on observable inputs. AFEFAEMEEKZRA S F

AEZFEMBRMHBEEBIIE
AN A B A BRI B R
GRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

254

44.4 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

44. BERREER 2)
HUPABFBHEXFTTHRERBAR

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. The following
table summarises the quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value

BHAFEHE (BB
%)

AEENBEREEEHEEN
EMHBERELER 2 AER
EAMBHEAFEER - TX
B EEE=ERAFE
EMERANERTAEBEREA

measurements. FEHELER -
Relationship of
unobservable
Range (weighted
Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs (weighted average) ~ average)
TURRBAY
i BRATENE
it WHZAZ+-AWATE HERE TUBEBABE (T35 B (MEFHE)
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
“EopmE ZECZE ZEomE  “TC=f CBC@E CBC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Th TEn Thr
Unlisted shares 4,206 4,206 Market approach using Volatility \olatility 50% 50% The higher the
back-solve method volatility, the
higher the
fair value
3 Fnfkdn RARMES L 5% pid ] it RiEME - AR
FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_ME+_A=+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 44. BERBEE 2

MS5ERBZHERERF

44.5Group’s valuation processes

The Group’s finance department performs the valuations of financial
assets required for financial reporting purposes. The level 1 and
level 2 fair values of financial assets are measured by reference to
quoted market prices. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group has engaged independent professionally qualified valuer,
Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (2023: Valtech Valuation
Advisory Limited) to assist the Group in determining the fair value
of financial instruments in level 3 for financial reporting purposes.
The responsibility for determining the fair value rests with the
Group.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in level 3. Changes
in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date. As
part of that discussion, the finance department presents a report
that explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

44.6 Fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

A& B 2 B 7 B P HE 1T B 7S R
EENFReREEMAE  F
—ERLRE_EFeBREER
FEDISEMSHRETE - &
E-FT-_NF+=A=+—H
IEFE AEEEZEBYE
¥ BB ER B AR
HERAT(ZE-=F : 2
FE R BB A KE AR
LENETFE-EBERAcmMIA
MNAFE -BTAFEMNET
ERAER -

REMBFER  MBHAE
EHNAHRAFTEE=EQRE
BMTARAFENMBEEAR A
BENBEMMEERE - F=
BRAREZERATFTEEPIR
BERSHBETON - ER
AL —#n > MBEHrIE=2
R—BEERFEZHRAX

HE -

446 B MM B EN LT

EREMARHLTE
HEERAGENEREER

CREENATERAREE
HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-WF+-—A=+—HLFE

45.

46.

256

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the PRC of approximately
HK$409,673,900 (2023: HK$440,379,000). Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the Group will be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks whilst the Group will then be entitled
to take over the legal title and possession of the related properties.
Such guarantees will terminate upon issuance of the relevant property
ownership certificates. The directors of the Company consider that the
likelihood of default in payments by purchasers is minimal.

In addition, as at 31 December 2024, Shantou Taisheng has granted a
land charge to Xiamen International Trust Co., Ltd. for securing the loan
of RMB398,810,000 granted to GSLG Group which shall be mature on
19 October 2025. The financial guarantee is released during the year
following the completion of further acquisitions of Shantou Taisheng as
disclosed in note 38(a)(ii).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group had the following significant related party transactions during the
period.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED H 2SR ER D &

45.

46.

MR E

REEBAE TRITHAEBE N FE
2 ¥ E X 5409,673,9008 L ( —F
— =% 1 440,379,000 L) Z & T
EXMNRBERR T2 EBIZERME
IRMPER - RIBERGER - WZEE
RARERAOZTIRIBHRIA - XEEK
FEERBRTEEEVERHNRESR
ZIEBAE  EREFFERTIE
[ERAEEEAEREERAYECE
BERFTER - FFRRAYE C ERER
g ZEERIERIE - KAF]

EERA  BFERN RO T4 E
(ig
foh RZBEZWME+ZA=+—

B SEMHRERE M EMIRERETE
RAGER T HIEE - WERAEH
E 1 & E 1R T AR 398,810,000 7T
ZER ZEFER_ZT_RFTA
+ B EIER - S unbE 38(a)i) AT &
SERGE— S URBEIITE T TRk 1& 0 TS
ERERAFERER -

RBS X5

NERNERLRBREHN S —TRE
M RBERREH S —HREBEEX
TENE CEHHNBARE REX
AREZEHSEEREAZEENEEH

4t
gp ©

BB SR E M FTREE I -
ANEBANHARE B A A T BRI
5 o



46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B IRAR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

Key management compensation

Key management includes the board of directors and the chief
executive, and their compensation disclosed as follows:

(a)

Directors’ fees vk

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EXFe  BEEE -
allowances and benefits in kind Hb2a REMH =

Contributions to pension plans RIREFT B

Related parties balances

46. BBk A XS =)

FEEEEFH

TEERAEBBREFTENT
BABE, - HFMmELT -

(b)

Other receivables from related parties  E.{th iE U BE R 77 &) 708 (i), (i)
Loan and advances to related parties 4 TRAEE 5 O E R EER (i), (i)
Other payables due to a related party — ECfth i (< — 4 BA B 5 &Y

IR (i), (v)

Notes:
(i) A former director, Mr. Yao, who has resigned from the Group on 20 April 2023,

has significant influence over the related parties in 2023.

(if) The transaction were entered into at terms mutually agreed with the related
party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

(i) The transaction were derived from the loans and advances to Yunnan Group
in note 17.

(iv) The transaction were derived from part of the consideration for the second
tranche acquisition with GSLG in note 38(a).

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
1,677 2,307
2,146 3,841
217 251
4,040 6,399
o) ]
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
- 497,860
344 5,095
398,810 -
BiE
[0) AEESREER T _=FN

(i)

(i)

)

AZtTHBEARKRERE  #R=
TO—FHBMTAREAYE -

ZER 5 TR AR T KA B E
MGERRARBEREXBBRES

HVA

5 SR A R 17 AT B T B
BN S RBH -

225 R B Mt 38(a) P B AT

BETE —EREEN TS K
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

47.

258

LITIGATION
Litigation with a major contractor

On 23 May 2024, Shantou Taisheng sued the major contractor of
a project of Shantou for frequent suspension of construction. The
Group requested to terminate the original construction contract and its
supplementary contracts (collectively the “Contracts”) and to handover
the construction site to the Group.

In the second half of 2024, the above indictment was provided to
the Intermediate Court. The major contractor asserted jurisdictional
objections for twice but was dismissed by both Intermediate Court and
High Court. By 31 December 2024, both parties are waiting for the new
date of trial.

The Group further claim the release of overcharged construction cost.
Based on the estimation of Shantou Taisheng, the construction cost of
the completed properties payable by the Group should be approximately
RMB1,248,406,000. However, the major contractor estimated a total
cost of RMB 1,501,510,000 which have been settled by the Group in the
following manners) (i) cash settlement of RMB708,795,000 is invoiced
and paid, while RMB539,611,000 (Approximately HK$582,725,000) is
recognised in trade payables (Note30), (i) a guarantee of approximately
RMB460,000,000 was provided, and (i) completed properties exchange
in lieu of settlement of RMB332,000,000.

RENZE HARVEST INTERNATIONAL LIMITED H 2SR ER D &

47. RFiR

B¥RXBEHARD

N-ZZE_MFERAZ-+=H " JE™m
FREEINGEEENETEABEHLEE
BL o REBERKIERBZBEEHR
HEaed (5l [Z2E5e8)) 1
ME TR R AN SR -

M-ZT_METEFE - FiliiRFER
EHRFER - FERDEMEIRL A
EEEERE MR RER RS
LFEERE - HE_T-_NF+= A
=+—R8 5 NESEFHNEMB
Hy o

AEFHE-—FTREZKRNIEE
e BBIBEMETEMGET A%
BETIWENEMNEZENEL
B AN R #1,248,406,0007T ° A
M TEERDHGHTEREABAR
#1,501,510,0007C © M A~ & B B
BATHRAEE  ((REZHTAR
#708, 795000t E A B ER X
F- M A R #539,611,0007T( %)
582,725,000/ 7T ) B R & &
B 5 B (M 5E30) - ()Rt 49 A
R #460,000,0007T A #& 1R + K (i)
RBMETIVERBINFARK
332,000,000 7T °



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(A) Property Held for Development and/or Sale:

MR

FREFRBSEEME
A) HERER SHHEZME :

Approximate Estimated Equity
gross Progress in date of attributable
Location Classification floor area development completion to the Group
e s L]
e 8 BEER TIEE fhst e B iR
(sq.m.) (Note)
(FRK) (M)
Baoneng Commercial 42,466 Completed and up for -~ Completed 100%
Taigu Plaza Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, sale
Zhangjiang New District, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
GG EE3 TIRFE B7R
IREBEMMETNRIEHEAEBREK Kk
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 29,761 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H25, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
Ba EE3 TIRFE Bk
TEEENTEINREBDRAES H5 Fib
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 8,400 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
Ba EE3 TIRFE Bk
IR ENTEINEEDRAES H6 R
Gangzhou Baoneng Centre Office 39,641 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
EMNEReP L BYE TIRE Bk
IREENTEINERDRAES H6 SR
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park (Phase 1,3)  Complex? 398,965 Phase 1: Completed; ~ December 2026 100%
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Phase 3: Superstructure
Jinwan Second West Street and under way
Shangang Road, East New Harbour City,
Longhu District, Shantou
SERAERIEIE (- =5) maEE" —8:BR: “EoRETCA

BT EARRA IR RE 4R
s s s

=8 FETRERD
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MR

(B) Property Held for Investment:

(B) FHERBEME :

Equity
Approximate Estimated attributable
gross  Progress in date of Lease to the
Location Classification floorarea  development completion expiry Group
Haa £ T5E
e 28 BEER RIEE fhat TR A KnED EfbER
(sq.m.)  (Note)
(FhK) (M)
Baoxin Technology Park (Phase 1-3) No. 9 Bangkai Road,  Office, Industrial, 426,878  Phase 1, 2: Insenvice;  Aug 2022 2055 75.5%
Guangming Gaoxin District, Shenzhen, the PRC Dormitory Phase 3: Groundwork
ENNRE(E-2=4) B¥E I%- — ZH:RARR: ZEZZF)\A
RERYI TR RS HEAAE95 BE =0 ATR
Kennedy Park at Central, No. 4 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong  Residential 137 Insenvice Completed 28% 100%
BERFILREE4RER iz RAER B
Tower 2, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queenway, Hong Kong Office 2,489 Inservice Completed 2059 100%
BAREERNEPL2E BT RAER B
Baoneng Taigu Shopping Mal 22,868  Inservice Completed 2052 100%
Plaza Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, Zhangjiang New
AN B RAER Bk
IREFNTEINRIGEABE 8K EK itk
Baoneng Plaza Shopping Mall 81,386 Insenice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin
District, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
EE] BORL RAER Bk
IRESNTEIHRRDRAEEH6 R
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park (Phase 1, 2) ComplexA 273,484 Phase 1: Completed;  December2025 2057 100%
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Phase 2: Groundwork
Jinwan Second West Street and
Shangang Road, East New Harbour City,
Longhu District, Shantou
UBREREIR (- —H) Al —H:BxR ZEZRETCA
WSETRENE e R AR R “HmETE
MR R B g
Shantou Taisheng Science and Innovation Park Commercial (Bay 7,483 Inservice Completed 2057 100%
Baoneng Times Bay, Junction between Culture Centre)
Jinwan Second West Street and
Shangang Road, East New Harbour City,
Longhu District, Shantou
WSEREHEIE AE(TE BRAER B
WETERE R e ER Rk iy

WEBR R 2
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